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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEmE

Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NE ZE—+F

HKS$ million BEEET
Revenue Wz
Per consolidated statement of profit or loss RIEGZAIBER 247 189
Property income and hotel revenue L EL NS €
— share of associates and joint ventures - B E R RAE AT 643 990
890 1,179
Net profit FEF 182 303
HK cents BN
Basic earnings per Share BREFEF 20 35
Dividends per Share BRERE
— first interim - IR H 10 10
— second interim - EZIRHH 12 -
— final - RHA - 12
22 22

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED o EHMESBEBRAR




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¥ ~z oh
MBmE
Revenue Net Profit
Wiz o]
HKS$’million HKS$’million
e AE R T e AE R T
1,459
5,088
801
3,080
303
1179 890 182
__ B =
FY2014/2015 FY2015/2016 FY2016/2017 FY2017/2018 FY2014/2015 FY2015/2016 FY2016/2017 FY2017/2018
ZEWAES TR —HAES CDFENES SFLES ZEWAE S SR —HAES SFENES SFLES
ZE A ZE N L =2 )E ZEIAE ZE2 A L =2 )E
BB SE B B4 B B4 A B A SE B B4 B B4 i B4
From subsidiaries B Share of associates and joint ventures
EEL Gy 7| iR AN EE = /A
Total Assets Total Shareholders’ Fund
HK$ million HK$ million
W AT W E T
o4 8,983 5517 5,574 5,533
7,679
4,194
6,206
31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2018
ZEHAE ZEANE ZFE LA ZFE)E ZE I ZENE ZE—LE ZENE
ZH=t—H Z=Z=HA=+—H Z=HA=+—H Z=H=1—H ZHA=+—H Z=HA=+—H Z=ZA=+—H Z=H=1—H
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERMES

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS
On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the Year.

The Group’s revenue amounted to HK$246.6 million, representing a
surge of 30.6%, and gross profit increased to HK$111.1 million
which was mainly due to the recognition of the first full year
operation results of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel. The Group recorded a
profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$182.5 million
and basic earnings per Share were HK20 cents.

The Board has declared a second interim dividend of HK12 cents per
Share, which will be payable in cash, with an option to elect scrip
dividend of Shares. Together with the first interim dividend of HK10
cents per Share, the total dividend for the Year shall be HK22 cents
per Share.

The economy in Hong Kong grows moderately and its property price
continues to soar due to the unresolved shortage of land supply and
the flooding of fund. Macau recovers from its economy downturn
with a healthy growth in GDP which rejuvenates its property market.
Despite the likelihood of imminent interest rate rises and the recent
US-China trade tensions, the Group remains confident in carrying out
its mission and dealing with challenges ahead.

All of our projects have been progressing well. We will focus on the
presale of remaining blocks in Sky Oasis and the redevelopment
projects in Hai Tan Street and Pau Chung Street to secure the revenue
for the coming few years. In addition to stepping our businesses
further to Canada and the United Kingdom, we will keep on
improving earnings and enhancing the Shareholders’ value by
working hard on the projects on hand and at the same time, be
selective and cautious on replenishing the Group’s portfolio when
suitable opportunities arise.

I 'would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the
Shareholders for their support, to the management and staff for their
dedicated efforts to the Group and to our clients, consultants and
partners for all their valuable assistance offered during the Year.

Cheung Hon Kit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B s L o

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$246.6 million
(2017: HK$188.9 million), representing a surge of 30.6%, and gross
profit increased to HK$111.1 million (2017: HK$88.8 million) which
was mainly due to the recognition of the first full year operation
results of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel. However, the Group recorded a
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$182.5
million, representing a reduction of 39.8% as compared to HK$303.2
million for the previous year. The decrease in profit was mainly due
to a significant decrease in the share of profits from an associate of
the Group during the Year. Recognition of profits of presold units of
the residential project of the associate has been deferred as the
relevant occupation permit has just been issued on 11th June, 2018,
and handover of the units to the purchasers is underway.

Property

Macau

The Group during the Year recognised a profit of HK$104.2 million
(2017: HK$470.7 million) from its associate, which is the developer
of “One Oasis” and “Sky Oasis” in Cotai South, Macau, upon the
handover of the remaining units and certain car parks of blocks 10 to
12. The presale of blocks 13 to 15 had been well received and
revenue in excess of HK$3.1 billion was secured. Since additional
time was spent to rectify the damages caused by the catastrophic
typhoon Hato in August 2017, there was delay in handover of the
presold units of blocks 13 to 15 and hence recognition of profits.

E4 AC1]-
REFZRER 7 Wz BB 246,600,000 7T(=
T — 4 #%188,900,0007T) © A8
30.6% * MEFMBIEZEE 111,100,000 7T (=
T —+4F : H#88,800,0007T) ' EZHMNIA
EHRBEEAANEELEEEAERMR-
R REBEBARAME ABEAFE
i A A & #182,500,000 7 0 B £ B #E
303,200,000 7T 4239.8%  FE A L T E |
RAFEERELASE—RMBE QR ZEFIX
@D - XL AR ZEEHER 2EEEMR
T N\EXNAT—BHEEREEREY
FAMEEEREEN  MXNEMTE
RIEFE#TTH o

L/ ES

BFT

BRI REEC 2 EEFIRISERE]
FrETZBR2ARTEMRETEMRZNE
REERAFENEZEREHEER 2BER
BIHERE T % 104,200,000 T (ZZE—+H4F ¢
% 470,700,0007T) c ET=FETHEZAE
RFEZZL - SRS 3,100,000,000 7T 2
Wk - AR EEHEINSFHEBEERA - —EF N
ASEHBRRAREEN B - BULEER R
Ft—E=+hAEBEZAEENIERNEA
REBREF -

Sky Oasis ‘

| 2BEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE S wm A AT

With the solid market reputation established from the delivery of high
quality residential units to the end users in the previous years, the
good performance continues for the presale of blocks 17 and 18 and
revenue in excess of HK$2.8 billion was secured. The presale of the
remaining blocks 16, 19 and 20 will commence at opportune time.

Hong Kong

The renovation works of Cheuk Nang Plaza (to be renamed as ITC
Building), which is a 31-storey commercial building with 25 car
parks situated at the heart of Wanchai district along Hennessy Road,
are in good progress and are expected to be finished before the end
of this year. Currently certain floors are occupied by the Group for
self-use while the remaining floors are for long and short term leasing
purpose. The Group recorded an increase in fair value of HK$250.6
million from this property during the Year.

BRENBEZTRARKAFPREELZEESE
i AEBEEMSELEERE  ERFE+ER
TNEZBEERERRRL - WESBREE
2,800,000,0007C 2 Wz e BT E TN T
MR-+ EGFEEREARETES -

&E

LR EF LS - RS EFEmIL 2 S EE
S(ESRAEFRE) A—EESIELZRD
¥RE HER25EEMN EFHIREER
iF ﬁ%hﬂ$¢ﬁm&l B AT AEBEH
ZYWERTEERESR  MBETEBRMER
BREHHARR - RAFEN  AEEBAZ
Y2815 A B NS 250,600,000 7T ©

TC Bulldmg

BREAE |

The foundation works for No. 23 Po Shan Road, Mid-levels have
been progressing as scheduled. The construction work for the
superstructure of a deluxe residential mid-rise building is expected to

start early next year.

REILEME 2358 2t E TR IEMBHETT
MZZEBEREREZ FBREETRETNHAF
RF -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B s L o

The foundation works for Nos. 205-211A Hai Tan Street had been
completed. This is an URA project mainly consisting of residential
flats with a few shops. The commencement of foundation works for
Nos. 41, 43 and 45 of Pau Chung Street is expected in the second
half of 2018. This is a redevelopment project comprising a residential
tower with retail shops at lower levels. Presale of these two projects
is planned to be launched in the latter part of 2018.

During the Year, a joint venture of the Group has disposed of all its
remaining interests in yoo Residence, and such joint venture
contributed a profit of HK$66.1 million to the Group.

Overseas

In December 2017, an associate in which the Group has 15%
interest, entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire the
properties located in the heart of the City of London. The acquisition
offers the chance for redeveloping the properties into one of the most
imposing visual icons on the London skyline. The acquisition is
expected to be completed in the second half of 2018.

The residential redevelopment project at Alberni Street in downtown
Vancouver is at the stage of rezoning application. The
commencement of demolition work is expected in next year and it is
planned that two residential towers comprising of a total floor area of
648,000 sq.ft. will be built upon completion.

The four-storey office building located at a prominent corner plot at
Greycoat Place in London contributed fair rental income to the
Group. The preliminary works for the proposed redevelopment into
mixed residential and commercial towers were progressing well.

REEEH20521TAF 2 A TRREE R T -
HAEMREZRER  FEREEEEMIR
BLOBHEE - BLE4 - 43R4 MET
REBER - N\FT+FRFA HAE—@
EREEE  pEEREEETERHE2EE
K- ZMEEEFTER - —NFREED
TEE °

RAFEAN  AEE—BEEARBEHEER
yoo Residence 2 & &f A T #41 - Mz & 22

A AL B R M B 66,100,000 7T °

b2/

R-F—tHF+-f AEEEF15%En
2 — FETHgt 2 R B AU A2 M BT /0B 3 R
ZOEFLEERZ R RBUHYMEERR
Heh— g KRR L& RBE 225 - R
WIBTEEER T~ N\ FTHFTK -

RSB BT E T & ) Alberni Street Z {F £ & E1H
BEEREF D EEEMRE - EHRBIRES
REAFRFA T8 5RABREREEEES
648,000 F 5 R 7 IE(EEXE -

HPIEA W Greycoat Place ZE2MEA - 25
ABZMARZEREBR/RAEETEHM MEE T W
A BRERABEANEZEARNHIEER
Rif o

The Westin Bayshore
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hotel and Leisure

Revenue from this segment increased to HK$156.6 million (2017:
HK$130.0 million), representing the contribution from Rosedale
Hotel Kowloon and Le Petit Rosedale Hotel. The segmental profit
amounted to HK$46.6 million (2017: segmental loss of HK$23.1
million) which mainly included the share of the increase in the fair
value of Rosedale Hotel Kowloon. As consistent with the market
trend in Hong Kong, there were improvements in both occupancy
and average room rate in these two hotels during the Year. The
Westin Bayshore in Vancouver, in which the Group has 50% joint
venture interest, contributed a stable return. This joint venture
received a positive response from the local authority on its promotion
carried out in April 2018 in respect of a preliminary redevelopment
plan of the hotel’s site.

HIERERE

It 93 8B 2 Uk 25 3% = 7 ¥ 156,600,000 T ( =&
—+4F ¢ 130,000,000 7T) © HE B NEEH
BAERIIBSMBIEZEE - 2BEHAES
¥ 46,600,000 T (T —+tF : DIEEBLE
23,100,0007T) * F EBFEEG NERARGE
ZATFEEN - ZMEEERAFEERNZALE
XN TFHEEHEMNE  BEEMEB8YE
B—H - REBBHEES0%AENAERZR
FEERRINTREAREEEREBEER -
ZEEARMER - — \FNAHZAEE
2 WP EREFTEIET 2 NS & BT
BIEAADEZ -

B B R

Le Petit Rosedale Hotel

il
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & oA

Outlined below is a summary of the Group’s interests in properties A& BHIY AREBEKBEA 2 W EER

significant to its operations as at the date of this report: LRl (N
Attributable
Group’s  gross floor
Location g interests area
FEE FEfh
R BEEE
(%) (sq. ft.)
(EER)
Macau ;15!
One Oasis and Sky Oasis situated at Estrada de Seac IR AHEER 2 2EFF R Residential/ 35.5 754,054
Pai Van SBLE Commercial
fte/m%
Sub-total Nt 754,054
Hong Kong B
Redevelopment project situated at Nos. 41, 43 and 45 i T IEEGLAT41 - 434552 Residential/ 100 30,000
Pau Chung Street, To Kwa Wan el Commercial
fx/mg
Redevelopment project situated at Nos. 205-211A i /K58 18H 205-211A% 2 Residential/ 100 38,000
Hai Tan Street, Sham Shui Po EREE Commercial
te/m%
Premises situated at 30/F., Bank of America Tower,  fIRHRIBERE 12 5EHHRTHL Office 100 13,880
No. 12 Harcourt Road, Central 308 2ME NS
Cheuk Nang Plaza situated at Nos. 244, 246, fINEFEEHE244 - 246 248 Office/Car Parks 100 55,600
248 and 250 Hennessy Road, Wanchai 250% 2 ZHES BRE/ S
Redevelopment project situated at IR ETE 235 2 ERIER Residential 40 32,000
No. 23 Po Shan Road, Mid-levels =
Le Petit Rosedale Hotel situated at IR RBEEES 7% 2B RNMEE  Hotel 100 31,000
No. 7 Moreton Terrace, Causeway Bay BE
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon situated at No. 86, MRABIEAAIRE 865 Hotel 40 44,000
Tai Kok Tsui Road, Tai Kok Tsui NEHEER BIE
Sub-total Nt 244,480
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & oA

Attributable
Group’s  gross floor
Location : interests area
R5H JEefh
i 3 BEER
(%) (sq. ft)
(FAR)
PRC L
Land situated at the Cyber Park, Sanya City, finEme=SmalSEXE 2t Hotel 100 886,000
Hainan Province B &
Sub-total Nt 886,000
Overseas 8o
Townsend House situated at 5 Greycoat Place, London, firA% El{&%! Greycoat Place 55,2 Commercial 90.1 23,900
United Kingdom Townsend House [EE
The Westin Bayshore situated at 1601 Bayshore Drive, fIANEARBF B4 B TE Hospitality/ 50 221,000
Vancouver, BC, Canada Bayshore Drive 1601 5% 2 &1 Conference/
ERETER Ancillary Uses
BIE/ &5/
RER®
Redevelopment project situated at 1444 Alberni Street, I IEAEBTmi Ta B TE Residential/ 28 181,000
711 Broughton Street and 740 Nicola Street, Alberni Street 1444 - Commercial
Vancouver, BC, Canada Broughton Street 711 5% )2 fix/B%
Nicola Street 740%% 2 E2IEE
Sub-total Nt 425,900
Total s 2,310,434

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMEEBARAR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Securities Investments

During the Year, revenue and segmental loss from securities
investment were HK$0.5 million (2017: HK$4.6 million) and
HK$70.0 million (2017: segmental profit of HK$19.9 million)
respectively while the latter mainly represented the unrealised loss
due to the drop in market price.

Due to the share price fluctuation of South Shore Holdings Limited
(“South Shore”, formerly known as The 13 Holdings Limited), there
was HK$251.7 million net loss on the fair value changes of equity
investments charged as other comprehensive expenses during the
Year. The Group strengthened this investment by subscribing for its
entitlement under the rights issue of South Shore in full during the
Year which will enable the Group to have a strategic investment in
hotel and entertainment business in Macau through South Shore after
the opening of its hotel in Macau soon.

As at 31st March, 2018, the Group had equity investments totaling
HK$388.4 million, mainly consisting of securities listed in Hong
Kong.

Finance

In the second half of the last financial year, the Group subscribed for
the 3-year 9.5% loan notes issued by Master Glory Group Limited in
the principal amount of HK$500 million, and advanced HK$174.3
million to a joint venture partner in connection with the acquisition
of 50% interests in The Westin Bayshore Vancouver. As a result, the
Group had interest income of HK$69.2 million (2017: HK$40.1
million) during the Year. As at 31st March, 2018, other loan
receivables of the Group amounted to HK$902.3 million.

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited

In June 2017, the Group entered into an agreement to purchase from
South Shore a 45.8% interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
(“Paul Y”), which is one of the leading management contractors in
Hong Kong and Macau, for HK$265.2 million. Paul Y is principally
engaged in civil engineering, building construction and foundation
works, project management, and manufacturing and trading of
construction materials. The completion of the purchase is pending
fulfillment of certain conditions by South Shore.

BHRERE

RAFER  BHEEMBRERDBEED
B & 7 ¥500000L( ZF —+F: B
4,600,000 7T ) K& # 70,000,000 0 (= ZF —+
&F o DEFEFEE19,900,0007T)  BETE
KRB TNREL 2 REREE -

HREEEEFRAR(EE] sIB+=%
EERAR)RERS - AEEE 251,700,000
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BEHRERFHERBE TR CEEEEERE
®E - WA S ANEEE AR FEERRM
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BB LEABE388,400,0007T * UWEB LT
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SEERAGMEBETASCSEABE
500,000,000 702 = FHI9.5 EEHREE - WA
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2 50% i 2 2 B 174,300,000 7T © E L
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Hth fEUR B 31 A 78 902,300,000 7T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB M

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintains a prudent funding and treasury policy with
regard to its overall business operations. A variety of credit facilities
are maintained to satisfy its commitments and working capital
requirements.

As at 31st March, 2018, the Group had total bank and other
borrowings of HK$1,476.9 million and loan notes of HK$1,538.2
million. After netting off bank balances and cash of HK$608.3 million
and comparing with the Group’s shareholders’ funds of HK$5,532.7
million, the Group’s net gearing ratio at 31st March, 2018 was 0.44
(2017: 0.25). All of the bank and other borrowings are subject to
floating interest rates while the loan notes are subject to fixed interest
rates. The Group will closely monitor and manage its exposure to the
interest rate fluctuations and will consider engaging hedging
instruments as and when appropriate.

As at 31st March, 2018, the Group had unused banking facilities of
HK$307.3 million which can be utilised to finance the construction
of properties and the working capital of the Group. During the Year,
a total of HK$320.6 million bank borrowings were drawn down to
finance the redevelopment projects in Hong Kong, the renovation of
Cheuk Nang Plaza and the working capital of the Group. An
aggregate amount of HK$250.0 million of the Group’s borrowings
will be due for repayment in the coming year in accordance with the
repayment schedule while another HK$1,084.8 million was classified
as current liability since the lenders have rights to demand immediate
repayment. The Group will continue to closely monitor its liquidity
and working capital requirement to ensure appropriate financing
arrangements are made when necessary.

For overseas subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other
investments which cashflow are denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group endeavours to establish a natural hedge for debt financing
with an appropriate level of borrowings in those same currencies. In
this respect, the borrowings of the Group and its associates and joint
ventures to which the Group has granted guarantee are denominated
in HK$, US$, CAD and Sterling Pounds. The majority of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalent are denominated in HK$ while its other
assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$, RMB, MOP, Sterling
Pounds, US$ and CAD. Though no hedging instruments have been
engaged, the Group will closely monitor its foreign exchange risk
exposure.

/g CI]
AEBRERREGSECRBERES LB
BR - MBS REERE AN EARE N
RHEEEESENR -

R-ZE—N\FZA=Z+—H AEEZETRE
HabE BB AB1,476,900,000 7T & E 3
Z g A 151,538,200,000 7T ° PRI R1T4
# 3R £ 5 ¥ 608,300,000 TT 14 K B2 A 52 [ A%
RE4B85,532,700,000 T HLE T » AEE
R_E-N\F=ZA=t+—HZFEEARELE
B044(ZZF—+t45F :0.25) c FTARITREM
BEWIRZEF KB - EREFHAILEEF
KB AEBEBEYERREEFNEEHE
B WHREEBR T EEFEREHTA -

RZFBE—N\F=ZA=+—H AEEZHKX
RIRTTEERE A% 307,300,000t * A A
RIBEDERTATESRASELEEES -
AFEEAN BERERBRBITEEAREER
320,600,0007C - AR E S 2 ERIEE
HEEES BN IREUNAERERZSESR
© o AEEZBEEA £ 250,000,0007T ¢
RRER LR RERHEE - SINGAR
1,084,800,0007C 2 fEEEE R A B REZ KD
KEEMOEARBDAE - AKEBTE )
ERERHESNEEEST K BREESR
EREHEERER -

AN MEAINEINE 2 BINHB AT - B
RE] AERAREMKENE - AKEHD
AW ERIEEE KT 2EHRE - AE
BB AEIRIER - Fit - AEEZERERBEAR
SEERERZEBERRRAEAREERIN
B ST IS R REEDI(E - REBAES
RekBReFEBEBNERIIE  MEMEE
REBRIAEE - AR RPFIE - 8 X
TT RN SIME - R B EAE AR Eh T
B ST BERIMERE

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ B ESEER AR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W M

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2018, the Group’s general credit facilities granted
by the banks and other lender were secured by pledges of the
Group’s investment properties of HK$900.0 million, stock of
properties of HK$475.7 million, interest in a joint venture of
HK$141.3 million and property, plant and equipment of HK$929.3
million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2018, the Group provided corporate guarantees on a
several basis to the extent of (i) HK$91.0 million (2017: HK$21.0
million), HK$377.2 million (2017: HK$362.2 million) and HK$238.1
million (2017: HK$138.7 million) in respect of the banking facilities
granted to three joint ventures (which are owned as to 50%, 50% and
28% equity interests by the Group respectively) with the total
outstanding amounts of HK$91.0 million (2017: HK$18.8 million),
HK$364.4 million (2017: HK$349.6 million) and HK$144.6 million
(2017: HK$138.7 million); and (ii) HK$565.7 million (2017:
HK$565.7 million) in respect of the banking facilities granted to an
associate (which is owned as to 40% equity interests by the Group)
with the total outstanding amount of HK$337.6 million (2017:
HK$331.4 million).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st March, 2018, the total number of employees of the Group
was 329 (2017: 273). Employees are remunerated according to their
qualifications and experience, job nature and performance, and
under the pay scales aligned with market conditions. Other benefits
to employees include medical, insurance coverage, share options
and retirement schemes.

MOVEMENT IN ISSUED SHARES

During the Year, the Company issued (i) a total of 50,406,599 new
Shares pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes in relation to the final
dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and the interim
dividend for the six months ended 30th September, 2017, and
(ii) 60,000 new Shares upon the exercise by a holder of the share
options which were granted on 17th October, 2013 under the share
option scheme of the Company. As at 31st March, 2018, there were
937,712,734 Shares in issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & oA

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations

TERBRIABERE

AEBZER  BBRRREEREZZHR
BRTEERARTE - EHA 2 EBREHT
LI

are subject to various risks and uncertainties. The principal factors
have been identified and are set out below:

Risk Trend

Principal Risks

Key Controls and Risk Mitigations

FEE B

IREERARRERER

E R

Cooling measures on property markets

= AE T

Due to the introduction of the government’s
cooling measures on property markets in
regions where the Group conducts its
business, the Group may experience market
pressures to reduce effective prices for
properties sale or rental

AR B AR & R A P SR 2 BT HE R
AETH M - ARE R REETIHEN TRE
WEZEREELES

Have ongoing update and assessment of
government policy

R B B AT BT BOR

Conduct market study and demand analysis
timely to formulate appropriate strategy

R EEIT T ISR B KON AGIEEE
H B S

Geographical diversification

HE AL

L

New cooling measures/
restrictions introduced by
the government authorities
in different regions
NIRRT HETTHT % A
EmEe &l

Highly competitive industries
TEFEAREF

Competition risks faced by the Group may
include: (i) numerous developers undertaking
property investment and development in the
markets including Hong Kong where the
Group’s property business conducts; (ii) keen
competition and pricing pressure from other
developers; and (iii) competition with other
hotels for guests

AEBEE 2 HFEAROIE - () AERELE
MEZEBMET S - BEEE  FEARK
EMREREBRZERE () KB EME
BEZHNGEFREBEN  Rii) RS
EREAEMEEMEERF

Directors and management discuss business
performance and formulate various operation
and marketing strategies to maintain its
competitiveness
EREEEEIREBRRNGTZIREE
M SR IAE R ERS S

Teams of good caliber and experience closely
monitor performance by segments

R RAFKBEFE TR ) BN 2 B8 7 AR Y
=R

a4

Remains similar

REFARE

Laws and regulations

ERRIRBI

Development projects and hotel operation
require government approvals or permits, and
some of such approvals and permits may
require an unexpected long period of time to
be granted and issued, which may lead to a
delay in completion of the project and
adverse effects on the hotel operation. The
authorities may also from time to time impose
new regulations on property owners which
may require the Group to increase manpower
and incur additional costs and expenses to
comply with such requirements, and in some
cases, may adversely affect the Group’s
property sales performance

ZHRIA A MBS 28 MRS I E ST
A A T HUE R AT AT SRS — R ATR
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K H RS EBR TP E - ERITA T
RS EE T BN SRAEEA R
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RERS  EETERTAIREREEZY
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Have ongoing update and assessment of
government policies

5 A AT B AT BUR HOR

Seek of professional advice on regulation
changes if necessary
ERZRSREMRINENTEER
Monitor the fulfillment of laws and regulations
through internal policies and compliance
checklists

BBAR RN G B EEFAPIMARGIE
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New/updated laws and
regulations at both national
and local level
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & oA

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)

Principal Risks

TEEME

Key Controls and Risk Mitigations
TEEEREREEER

FTERBRIAERERR @)

Risk Trend
[ B BB 2

4. Global economic uncertainties .

EREEFEMEERER

The outlook for the global economy and
financial markets remains uncertain. In Hong
Kong, social movements, negative sentiment
towards inbound PRC tourists and consumer
confidence continue to have adverse impact

on the overall economy. Since 2014, China’s
economy has been facing downward pressure
due to the sluggish foreign demand, excess
production capacity and adjustments in the

real estate market. The unprecedented Brexit
may cast deep uncertainties over the future of
the United Kingdom. These global economic
uncertainties could adversely affect the

business activities and the economic and

market conditions globally
EREEREBTIZZARIDRAN - &
A ERHRALEED - HEEE P BIR
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FRRA  EBRREEDS LR EE
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Submit monthly updates of financial
information of the Group to the Directors for
their managing the businesses in a volatile
market

RESREANEEET A THOPHERAE
WEENSENTISTERER

Be selective and cautious for assessment of
business opportunities
EEME R EETHE

Closely monitor the Group’s liquidity and
working capital to ensure its sustainability in
case of adverse environment
EREFRAKENRYE D N EEE T IAER
HENHBEPAHERR

T

Political uncertainties and
deteriorating economic
conditions in some markets
o mimHsm TR
BRI

L /A

5. Currency fluctuations o

G

The results of the Group are recorded in HK$
but its various subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures may receive revenue and incur
expenses in other currencies, including RMB,
CAD and Sterling Pounds. Any significant
currency fluctuations on translation of the
overseas accounts may therefore impact on
the Group’s results of operations, financial
position and cash flow

REEZ REABEIIR - EET 2HBL
A BERRRAERE 2R AT REIA R
MWEBEREL  BREARE - MEREE
HAEHRERIMNER FINHREMEREER
B AR EARE ZEEEE  MBEAR
EReRE

Continuously assess and monitor the foreign
exchange exposure

Frg T MBS R IMNE RS

Consider use of hedging devices when
appropriate

RIEE R IRE BERL P TA

T

Increasing volatility in
currency markets
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Annual Report 3 Q 2017-2018



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B & oA

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd) ITERRRIAEEEE (&)

Risk Trend
[ B BB 2

Principal Risks

Key Controls and Risk Mitigations
FEEERAREEER

TEEME

6. Associates and joint ventures e Carefully select the business partners with

BEARRAEAH

A large proportion of the Group’s project
developments and investments are carried out
through associates and joint ventures, so it
may expose to risks of having business
partners who may withdraw from the joint
ventures due to the change of their business
strategies, take some unfavourable actions to
the Group, fail to perform their duties and
fulfill their obligations in accordance with the
joint venture agreements, or undergo a
change of ownership and control or
experience material business and financial
difficulties hindering their contributions to the
joint venture projects

REBARIFNHB ERIRETHE BB E R
ARAERAHET - Bt - HAZEBRBH
BEEEEC E v - Nip - YN )
BEELREAELBITABAERETR X
AR IREA ST HIEES)  HREES
REBRPBRAEMGEEE & ZRE FH
BRI R g

long-term established relationship
ERERAREMENEBRH

Maintain ongoing communications with the
business partners to understand their business
strategies and their change of structures

FHEEEBBNBRBIAT RE SRR MEE
Incorporate contractual terms and conditions in
the agreements to safeguard the Group’s
interests

T PR A N 4 o 7 S 8 e O R R R MR 1
Monitor the fulfilment of contract terms and
legal proceedings through internal policies and
compliance checklists
BBNEEREMNE RIS BIAL S DR
ERRFFOETT
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Remains similar

REFARE

Natural disaster

A natural disaster could result in severe
personal injury, property damage and
environmental damage, which may curtail
the Group’s operations
BAXEZRANEHREAFIEE  BRUE
RBIRIRE - AIRES AR 2 X2 ERER

Formulate business continuity plans and crisis
management procedures
HERBEE A MEREERF
Arrange sufficient insurance package

ZHER AN RR

a4

Remains similar

REFARE
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERARNERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 64, joined the Company as the Chairman
and an executive Director in April 2005 and is also a director of
various members of the Group. He is also the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Investment Committee of the Company.
Mr. Cheung graduated from the University of London with a
bachelor of arts degree. He has over 40 years of experience in real
estate development, property investment and corporate finance,
holding key executive positions in various leading property
development companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is an independent
non-executive director of Future Bright Holdings Limited (00703.HK),
a listed company in Hong Kong. He resigned as an independent
non-executive director of International Entertainment Corporation
(01009.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong, with effect from 10th June,
2017.

Mr. Chan Fut Yan, aged 64, joined the Company as the Managing
Director and an executive Director in April 2005 and is also a
director of various members of the Group. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 45 years of experience in the local
construction field specialising in planning of construction business.
He is also the deputy chairman and an executive director of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited. He resigned as an executive director of
ITC Corporation Limited (now known as PT International
Development Corporation Limited) (00372.HK), a listed company in
Hong Kong, on 28th March, 2017.

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, aged 52, joined the Company in 2005 and was
appointed as an executive Director in August 2006. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and is responsible for the finance
and accounting functions of the Group. Mr. Cheung is also a director
of various members of the Group and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. He has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the
United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERATNERE

DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 34, joined the Company as an
executive Director in March 2010 and is also a director of various
members of the Group. He is also a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. He graduated from Trinity College of
Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United States of America, with
a bachelor of arts degree in Political Science — International Relations.
Mr. Chan previously worked in the investment banking division of
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. He is a director of Burcon
NutraScience Corporation whose issued shares are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX:BU), the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(BNE.FWB) and the NASDAQ Capital Market (NASDAQ:BUR). He is
also an advisor to Bisagni Environmental Enterprise (BEE Inc.).
Mr. Chan was re-designated from an executive director to a
non-executive director of PYI Corporation Limited (00498.HK), a listed
company in Hong Kong, with effect from 22nd July, 2016 and
thereafter resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 25th
April, 2017. Also, he resigned as an executive director of ITC
Corporation Limited (now known as PT International Development
Corporation Limited) (00372.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong,
on 28th March, 2017. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy who are the substantial
Shareholders.

Mr. Wong Lai Shun, Benny, aged 57, joined the Company as an
executive Director in December 2014 and is also a director of various
members of the Group. He is the managing director of the Group’s
Rosedale hotel division and is responsible for the overall hotel
development, operation and management functions of the Group.
Mr. Wong is also a member of the Investment Committee of the
Company. He graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor of arts degree with honours. Mr. Wong has over 25
years of management experience in the hospitality, media,
construction and building management industry. He has been the
head of a well-established management team with expertise and
experience in the hotel field covering city and business hotel
management since 2004. He had been an executive director of
several listed companies prior to 2004.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERARNERE

DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Gas, jp, aged 73, joined the Company
as the Vice Chairman and an independent non-executive Director in
September 2010. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Shek graduated from
the University of Sydney, Australia with a bachelor of arts degree and
a diploma in education. He has been a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong representing the real estate and construction
functional constituency since 2000. He was appointed as a Justice of
the Peace in 1995. He was awarded Silver Bauhinia Star in 2007 and
was further awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2013. Mr. Shek is the
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Chuang’s
China Investments Limited (00298.HK), a listed company in Hong
Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (01313.HK), Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited (00367.HK), Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited (00120.HK), Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(02007.HK), Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (00530.HK), Hop
Hing Group Holdings Limited (00047.HK), Lai Fung Holdings Limited
(01125.HK), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (01212.HK),
MTR Corporation Limited (00066.HK), NWS Holdings Limited
(00659.HK), Paliburg Holdings Limited (00617.HK) and SJM Holdings
Limited (00880.HK), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited — the manager of Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust (02778.HK) and an independent non-executive
director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited — the manager of
Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (01881.HK), both of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong. He was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(03699.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong, with effect from
16th January, 2018. Mr. Shek ceased to serve as an independent
non-executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited
(a company whose shares were withdrawn from listing on the Stock
Exchange effective from 17th October, 2015) on 11th March, 2016, and
resigned as an independent non-executive director of TUS International
Limited (00872.HK), ITC Corporation Limited (now known as PT
International Development Corporation Limited) (00372.HK) and
Midas International Holdings Limited (01172.HK), listed companies
in Hong Kong, on 6th January, 2017, 28th March, 2017 and 26th
January, 2018 respectively. Mr. Shek is a member of the Court of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a member of both
of the Court and the Council of The University of Hong Kong and a
non-executive director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERATNERE

DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 70, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in October 2001. He is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of
business administration system. He has over 35 years of experience
in the insurance and investment business, principally in the senior
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited
(00275.HK) and Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (01189.HK), both
of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso, aged 71, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2015. He is also the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 38 years of experience in the financial
and accounting industries. He is the sole owner of Chan Pak Cheong
(Auditor) Accountant Office, an accounting and auditing firm. He has
been a Certified Public Accountant for more than 38 years and acted
as the vice director and the vice president of Macau Society of
Accountants from 1980 to 2008 and from 2008 to 2018 respectively.
Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of Future Bright
Holdings Limited (00703.HK), a company listed in Hong Kong. He
acted as a Commissioner of the Finance Department of Macau —
Commission of the Revision of Profit Tax from 1984 to 1996, from
2011 to 2014 and 2018, as well as one of the Examination
Commissioners of the Commission of Registry of the Auditors and the
Accountants from 2006 to 2011. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy.

The executive Directors are regarded as members of the Group’s
senior management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Siu Mun was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 24th June, 2017. She is an associate of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the United
Kingdom.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited ~ZEZE AR AEBAREE 7 5 E MEFEX
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year. AV TREK -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW FERBREBER
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal AR RAREZER AR - KEE 2 TBEKA

activities of the Group are property development and investment in
Macau, the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United Kingdom,
development of, investment in and operation of hotels and leisure
business in the PRC, Hong Kong and Canada, securities investments
and provision of loan financing services. The principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the above activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair
review of the business of the Group, a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, is set out in the
“Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”,
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” and “Financial
Summary” sections of this annual report. The relevant discussions in
these sections form part of this report.

There are no material events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 84.

The Board has declared a second interim dividend (the “Second
Interim Dividend”) of HK12 cents per Share for the Year (in lieu of a
final dividend) (2017: final dividend of HK12 cents per Share) to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company (the “Register of Members”) as at the close of business on
Friday, 20th July, 2018. The Second Interim Dividend is expected to
be paid to the Shareholders on or about Monday, 17th September,
2018.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Cont'd)

The Board has also resolved that the Second Interim Dividend should
be satisfied in cash, with an option to elect scrip dividend of Shares
in respect of part or all of such dividend. The issue price of each
Share to be issued under the scrip dividend scheme will be fixed by
reference to the average of the closing prices of a Share for the three
consecutive trading days ending Friday, 20th July, 2018 less a
discount of five percent of such average price or the par value per
Share, whichever is higher. The scrip dividend scheme is conditional
upon the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the new Shares to be issued. A circular containing the details
of the scrip dividend scheme and a form of election, together with
this annual report, will be published and sent to the Shareholders.

Together with the first interim dividend of HK10 cents per Share paid
on 22nd January, 2018, the total dividend for the Year shall be HK22
cents per Share (2017 total dividend: HK22 cents per Share,
comprising an interim dividend of HK10 cents and a final dividend of
HK12 cents).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
Second Interim Dividend, the Register of Members will be closed
from Thursday, 19th July, 2018 to Friday, 20th July, 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
The Shares will be traded ex-dividend as from Tuesday, 17th July,
2018. In order to be entitled to the Second Interim Dividend,
Shareholders must lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the branch share registrar and transfer
office of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18th July,
2018.

For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’” entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members
will be closed from Tuesday, 4th September, 2018 to Friday, 7th
September, 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, Shareholders must lodge all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
with Tricor Secretaries Limited at the abovementioned address for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3rd September,
2018.

RERDIK (&)
EXQMHRNRSIKNE RPHE -
EZWEBR DA SRR BEMAE
RIFABRK S ENR TRITRD 2 BRET
B B2EROREBE_T-N\FLtA-1H
(2R ILEE =R 5 B 2 PR ERZ
FiOEs% 2T AEREROEEARS
ERE)MEE - ARG BIAFB It
ERTETZFRD ETREER - HAME
B HAEUBRKEAEIFB 2 BERFEERE
5 3E [F) AN 3R — OF 1) 3% e 27 3 AR »

BRER - E-N\F-A-t+-RBRNZE—
RPERBERRM 108 - XFEEZRE
RER RERRM 22BI(CE—EFREL
B SRR, 22 BREPHRKRE 10
RAREARR B 128) -

EERERDBFES

RETHRREZEE _XPHREZERN - AR
ARBE-F- N \FELATAR(EHME=F
—N\FELtA-TR(EHR)(BREEMBE)Y
ERERMNBPER  NEMEBIEELTE
A 2 EE - B X5Em_—F— \FLA

INFREIR R REER -ZE—N\FtA+N\H
(BH=) TFOEE =TSR ERDBFX
HERABRERSARTREB ZBRMERL
MBFPORSEMERHEERAA (Gt BE
BERRER18IFAMAPL22E) » DR
ERFE-

RETARHNERREFASANE LIRER

BRERSMD  AREER_F-NFHLANA
(BB E2-Z- \FhLALRA(EHTH) (B
REEMB)EEMERMDBPER - Rk
R TG EREARD 2EE - BTAERY
FERRBAFAGYNE LRE  BRRAR-T
—N\FNA=ZB(EH—) TFEE=+2A8
FA R BP X ERABRRARZR Lt
iz FEMERBBERARUIEELTE -

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHMESBEBRAR



DIRECTORS” REPORT
EECHEE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 208.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
Particulars of the Group’s principal properties as at 31st March, 2018
are set out on pages 209 and 210.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 88 and Note 43(a) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its Shareholders
as at 31st March, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

BARER
RE it 7

Contributed surplus
Retained profit

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay any dividend, or make
a distribution out of its contributed surplus if:

(i)  itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than its
liabilities.
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DIRECTORS ==

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are: REERNRBEAREEZHEB L2 EENT :
Executive Directors: HITES

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SREGEE(FE)

Mr. Chan Fut Yan (Managing Director)

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Mr. Wong Lai Shun, Benny

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, G8s, jp (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 22.
Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan (“Mr. Alan Chan”) is the son of Dr. Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr. Charles Chan”) and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan,
Macy (“Ms. Macy Ng”) who are the substantial Shareholders. Other
than the aforesaid, none of the Directors has any relationship with
the substantial Shareholders as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws and the CG
Code, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (“Mr. HK Cheung”) and Mr. Alan Chan,
both executive Directors, and Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Gss, jp
(“Mr. Abraham Shek”), an independent non-executive Director, shall
retire from office at the Annual General Meeting by rotation. All these
three retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) appointed from time to
time is fixed subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the requirements of code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2
of the CG Code which state that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, and that all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31st March, 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and/or their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(ii) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(I)  The Company

Name of Director

EEHR

Number of issued Shares held

FFERITROBRE

EERBESTHRAEBRRKRAG - HEKRS
SEEt A £ 95879
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Mr. HK Cheung
SRORBEEE

Mr. Chan Fut Yan (“Mr. FY Chan”)
FREE B LA ([BRFBREE])

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit (“Mr. CK Cheung”)
REBEEE ([REGHELED

Mr. Alan Chan
FeR R A o A

Mr. Wong Lai Shun, Benny (“Mr. Benny
Wong ")
=B AE ([FEIBLAED

Mr. Abraham Shek
Vaki-t &t

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (“Mr. Alva Kwok”)
M E([FBRULEED

0 EAF
Percentage (Note 1)
Bt (ffaT)
47,800,000 5.09%
3,390,594 0.36%
2,850,000 0.30%
3,856,517 0.41%
230,000 0.02%
256,274 0.02%
623,453 0.06%

Annual Report 3 Q 2017-2018



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETWMES

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)
(1)  Associated corporation of the Company
Mr. HK Cheung had personal interests in the principal amount
of US$1 million under the 4.75% guaranteed notes due 2021
in the aggregate principal amount of US$200 million issued by
Treasure Generator Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and guaranteed by the Company.

Notes:

1. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued Shares
as at 31st March, 2018.

2. The Directors were the beneficial owners having personal interests in the Shares
and/or debenture as disclosed above and all such interests were long positions.

3. No underlying Shares were held by the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and/or their respective
close associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or
(ii) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the
Shareholders pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17th
August, 2012 (the “Adoption Date”). The primary purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to retain, reward, motivate and give
incentives to eligible persons. The Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from 17th
August, 2012 to 16th August, 2022.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share
options to the following eligible persons to subscribe for the Shares:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full-time or part-
time) or executives, including executive director, of any
member of the Group, the controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any direct or indirect equity interests (the “Invested
Entity”) and/or their respective subsidiaries; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group, the
Controlling Shareholder or any Invested Entity; or

(iii) any consultant, adviser or agent (legal, financial or professional)
engaged by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iv) any vendor, supplier of goods or services or customer of or to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Share options granted should be accepted within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of the share options.
The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the date of
grant of the share options; or (ii) the average closing price of Shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; or
(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

There is no specific requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is
empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at
the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which
an option may be exercised is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than ten years
from the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date (the “Scheme Limit”). The Scheme Limit may be
refreshed by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting provided that the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of such
Shareholders” approval. Furthermore, the maximum aggregate
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time. Since the Adoption Date,
refreshments were made to the Scheme Limit due to the issue of
additional Shares upon conversion of convertible notes, exercise of
share options and payment of dividend by way of scrip Shares. As at
31st March, 2018, both the refreshed Scheme Limit and the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
were 88,730,613, representing approximately 9.46% of the existing
total number of Shares in issue.

The maximum number of Shares (issued and to be issued) upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue unless approval of the Shareholders is obtained. Any
grant of share options to a Director, the chief executive of the
Company, substantial Shareholder, or Controlling Shareholder or any
of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is
subject to approval by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the share options). In addition, where the Board proposes to grant
any share options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates, and such
share options, if exercised in full, would result in the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the share options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the past 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue on the date of grant and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares on the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options is subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BEPRFEST 2 (&)

Share options were granted under the Share Option Scheme on 17th g iEANZIEB TR —E—=F+A++HIEE
October, 2013 and their movements during the Year were set out in  BEfG#E » S ZHRENNEE 2 S FEHNAT
the table below: ol

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding as at Cancelled/ Outstanding as at
1st April, 2017 Granted Exercised lapsed during 31st March, 2018
Category and name R=B—tHF during during the Year R=B-N\&F
of participant A—H the Year the Year TEER =R=t—H
SREFHNRES ARIT FEEARE AEERT i VS fe RAT
Directors
=
Mr. HK Cheung 1,400,000 - - (1,400,000) -
FERGERE
Mr. FY Chan 1,050,000 - - (1,050,000) -
R EEE
Mr. Abraham Shek 185,000 - - (185,000) -
BgREL
2,635,000 - - (2,635,000) -
Employees 1,180,000 - (60,000) (1,120,000) -
=] (Note 2)
(Hat 2)
Other participants 430,000 - - (430,000) -
Hittp 8%
Total 4,245,000 - (60,000) (4,185,000) -
et (Note 3)
(Kt 3)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Notes:

(1) The exercise price of each of the above share options was HK$3.00. The period
during which these share options could be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme was from 17th October, 2014 to 16th October, 2017, provided that up to
a maximum of 50% of the share options should be exercisable during the second-
year period commencing from 17th October, 2014 to 16th October, 2015 and
the balance of the share options not yet exercised should be exercisable during
the period commencing from 17th October, 2015 to 16th October, 2017.

2) The weighted average closing price of Shares immediately before the date on

which these share options were exercised was HK$3.09.

(3) On 17th October, 2017, all the 4,185,000 share options lapsed following the
expiry of the exercise period mentioned in Note 1 above.

On 4th April, 2018, the Company granted a total of 27,020,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme with an exercise price of
HK$2.57 per share option. The period during which these share
options can be exercised is from 4th April, 2019 to 3rd April, 2022,
provided that up to a maximum of 50% of the share options shall be
exercisable during the second-year period commencing from 4th
April, 2019 to 3rd April, 2020 and the balance of the share options
not yet exercised shall be exercisable during the period commencing
from 4th April, 2020 to 3rd April, 2022. Accordingly, as at the date of
this report, there were a total of 27,020,000 share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme and the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was reduced to
61,710,613, representing approximately 6.58% of the existing total
number of issued Shares.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests of the relevant
Directors in businesses which competed or were likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the Year were as follows:

Mr. HK Cheung, the Chairman of the Company and an executive
Director, had personal interests and/or held directorships in
companies engaged in (i) property investment in Hong Kong, Macau,
the PRC, Canada and the United Kingdom; (ii) hotel management
and operation in Hong Kong and the PRC; and (iii) securities
investments and loan financing.

Mr. FY Chan, the Managing Director of the Company and an
executive Director, held directorship in a company engaged in
property development and investment.

Mr. Benny Wong, an executive Director, held directorships in
companies engaged in hotel management and operation in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties to the Company and
understand that they must, in the performance of their duties as
Directors, avoid actual and potential conflicts of interest and duty in
order to ensure that they act in the best interests of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole. In addition, any significant business
decisions of the Group are to be determined by the Board. Any
Director who has material interest in any matter being resolved will
abstain from voting. In view of the above, the Board considers that
the interests of each of Mr. HK Cheung, Mr. FY Chan and
Mr. Benny Wong in other companies will neither prejudice his
capacity as a Director nor compromise the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders. Also, the Board opines that coupled with the
diligence of independent non-executive Directors, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from, such businesses in which the above Directors are
regarded as being interested in.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information on the Directors since the last published 2017-2018
interim report of the Company and up to the date of this report were
set out below:

(@) There were changes to the directorships of each of Mr. HK
Cheung, Mr. FY Chan, Mr. CK Cheung and Mr. Alan Chan in
certain members of the Group.

(b)  Mr. Abraham Shek was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(03699.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong, with effect from
16th January, 2018 and resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Midas International Holdings Limited
(01172.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong, with effect from
26th January, 2018.

(¢) Details of the Directors’ emolument for the Year are set out in
Note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There was no connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction undertaken by the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this report which was required to be disclosed pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions
disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company, or were either disclosed previously
pursuant to the Listing Rules or exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FERHEREM A + 2%

PERSONS

As at 31st March, 2018, so far as being known to the Directors or W-_ZE—N\F=H=+—H EEEHLTQT
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of FE/TIMABA @ T ERERKHEMA T (E
the substantial Shareholders or other persons (other than the Directors ~ E o A AR & ST A BBRIN) A% &8
or chief executive of the Company) in the Shares and underlying &b S - WE BB EE LB EEGE XV
Shares which have been disclosed to the Company pursuant to the  ZZE2 B3 D W7 IEXEANTIWE » LURE
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been  $AARAFTIRIEE A R EEFEI6IEES
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant > Zi3fi 2 #2x RRENT -

to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of Percentage
Nature of issued Shares held Bt

interests Capacity PR E 1T (Note 1)
HmME =37} ROEE (Bt 1)

(I) Substantial Shareholders

FERR
Dr. Charles Chan Personal interests ~ Beneficial owner 181,868,017 19.39%
PREDSR G+ (EPN: F BEHEEBA
Corporate interests Interest of controlled 72,320,754 7.71%
NRER corporation
HESEEE S
Family interests Interest of spouse 234,146,834 24.97%
ENL F [
488,335,605 52.07%
(Note 3)
(Hfa3)
Fortune Crystal Holdings Personal interests ~ Beneficial owner 234,146,834 24.97%
Limited (“Fortune Crystal”) {E A#Ez EmlEA (Note 4)
ERERARAT (Kt 4)
(7l
Record High Enterprises Corporate interests Interest of controlled 234,146,834 24.97%
Limited (“Record High”) NGIL 2o corporation (Note 4)
HESEEE S (Bt 4)
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FERERHMA L+ (&)
PERSONS (Cont’d)

Number of Percentage
Nature of issued Shares held Aot

interests Capacity FIEE 81T (Note 1)
BEME 3% R E (Htat1)

(I) Substantial Shareholders (Cont’d)

TERR (&)
Ms. Macy Ng Corporate interests Interest of controlled 234,146,834 24.97%
higse 2+ NEER corporation

RAEHLAE S

Family interests Interest of spouse 254,188,771 27.10%
ENiY [kt e
488,335,605 52.07%
(Note 4)
(Htaz4)
(I1) Other persons
Hp A £
Galaxyway Investments Limited ~ Personal interests ~ Beneficial owner 72,320,754 7.71%
(“Galaxyway”) B AR EmlEA (Note 3)
(Htat3)
ITC Holdings Limited Corporate interests Interest of controlled 72,320,754 7.71%
(“ITC Holdings”) NG £ corporation (Note 3)
BHEEARAT REHEEE R (K1a£3)
([EresmE )
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued Shares
as at 31st March, 2018.

2. All the interests in the Shares as disclosed above were long positions. Also, no
underlying Shares were held by the substantial Shareholders and other persons

stated above.

3. Galaxyway owned 72,320,754 Shares and was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Holdings which in turn was wholly owned by Dr. Charles Chan. As such, ITC
Holdings and Dr. Charles Chan were deemed to be interested in the 72,320,754
Shares held by Galaxyway by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

In addition, Dr. Charles Chan was deemed to be interested in the 234,146,834
Shares held by Fortune Crystal set out in Note 4 below by virtue of his being the
spouse of Ms. Macy Ng for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Also, Dr. Charles
Chan was the beneficial owner of 181,868,017 Shares.

Accordingly, Dr. Charles Chan was interested in and deemed to be interested in a
total of 488,335,605 Shares by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

4. Fortune Crystal owned 234,146,834 Shares and was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Record High which in turn was wholly owned by Ms. Macy Ng. As such,
Record High and Ms. Macy Ng were deemed to be interested in the 234,146,834
Shares held by Fortune Crystal by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

In addition, Ms. Macy Ng was deemed to be interested in the 72,320,754 Shares
held by Galaxyway and the 181,868,017 Shares beneficially owned by
Dr. Charles Chan by virtue of her being the spouse of Dr. Charles Chan for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Accordingly, Ms. Macy Ng was deemed to be interested in a total of 488,335,605
Shares by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2018, the Company had
not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the businesses of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the Year.

FTERRRAEMA T 2B (E)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 19% of the Group’s total turnover and the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was approximately 44% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the Year were less than 30% of the purchases of the
Group.

As at 31st March, 2018, (i) Mr. Alva Kwok is an independent non-
executive director of the largest customer and (ii) a Shareholder who
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital was
interested in certain underlying shares in one of the five largest
customers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and their respective
close associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers
as at 31st March, 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group
during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy regarding the Directors, top management
and other employees of the Group was formulated and will be
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of the Company from time
to time. Directors, top management and employees are remunerated
according to their qualifications and experience, job nature and
performance and under the pay scales aligned with market
conditions. In addition to the contractual remuneration, other benefits
including discretionary bonus, medical benefits, insurance coverage,
retirement scheme and share options may also be offered upon the
determination of the Group.

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group. Details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above.
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EEGHES
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION EEFNREEMKRX

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of its Shares as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the Year and as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted at the Annual General Meeting to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Hon Kit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2018
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PEERMEE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and complying with the
statutory and regulatory requirements with an aim to maximising the
values and interests of the Shareholders as well as enhancing the
transparency and accountability to the stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has adopted the code provisions of the CG Code as its
own code of corporate governance. Throughout the Year, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
and applied the principles contained therein.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG-TERM BUSINESS MODEL
The corporate objective of the Group is to create and enhance value
for the Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, our
business strategies are to maintain continuous growth and profitability
by obtaining property sites with good locations at relatively low costs
for redevelopment, while sale of property upon completion of
development is the primary profit driver. The Group will also build a
property investment portfolio with appreciation potential in order to
secure a recurring and reliable source of income. Other businesses,
including the securities investments and the provision of loan
financing services, are part of the Group’s treasury management
when there is surplus cash, and supplement to the Group’s core
businesses of property development and investment.

Investment by way of forming joint ventures with partners having
similar investment philosophy is a preferred mode of holding
structure which can on the one hand diversify the risks and on the
other hand share the expertise of the partners.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has continued to adopt the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for Directors in their dealings in the securities of the Company. In
response to specific enquiries made by the Company, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the Year. The Company has also adopted the
Model Code to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by
its employees and directors of the subsidiaries who are likely to possess
inside information relating to the Company or its securities.
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PERERREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board are individually and collectively responsible
for leadership and control, and for promoting the success, of the
Company by operating and developing the Group’s business
operations and implementing the Group’s business strategies. The
Board consists of eight Directors, including five executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. Further details of the
composition of the Board are set out on page 2. Each of the Directors
has signed a formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms
and conditions of his appointment. A list containing the names of all
the Directors and their role and function has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant
to code provision A.3.2 of the CG Code, and will be updated from
time to time as and when there are any changes.

The Company has always maintained a sufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors representing more than one-
third of the Board as required under the Listing Rules. With three
members of the Board being independent non-executive Directors
who possess professional expertise and a diverse range of experience,
the Board can effectively and efficiently exercise independent
judgment, give independent advice to the management of the
Company and make decisions objectively to the benefits and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 22.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board has delegated the executive Board or other committees
with authority and responsibility for handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of the Group
while specifically reserving important matters and decisions for the
Board’s approval, such as annual and interim financial reporting and
control, equity fund-raising, declaration of interim dividend,
recommendation of final dividend or other distributions, decisions
regarding notifiable transactions and connected transactions under
Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules respectively and
making recommendation for capital reorganisation or scheme of
arrangement of the Company. The Company has established the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee and the
Investment Committee with specific written terms of reference which
clearly define their respective roles, authorities and functions. The
members of the said committees have full access to board minutes,
records and materials as well as the personnel of the Company which
enable them to fulfill their responsibilities. More information on each
of the committees is set out below in this report.
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Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year with at
least 14 days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors. Additional
Board meeting(s) will be arranged and held as and when required.
The Directors may attend the Board meetings either in person or
through electronic means of communication. During the Year, a total
of five full Board meetings (including four regular meetings) were
held and written resolutions of Directors were circulated and signed
by all Board members for significant matters requiring the Board’s
approval. Also, there were additional meetings held by and written
resolutions passed by certain executive Directors during the Year for
normal course of business and/or for matters under authorisation and/
or delegation by the Board.

The Directors are provided with all relevant information in advance
to enable them to make informed decisions, and appropriate
arrangements are in place to ensure that they are given an
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for the regular Board
meetings. All Directors have separate and independent access to the
advice and services of the Group’s senior management and
consultants with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are observed and complied
with. The chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) meets at least
annually with the independent non-executive Directors without the
executive Directors present.

A tentative schedule for regular board meetings, committee meetings
and annual general meeting of each financial year is made available
to all Directors prior to the beginning of the year. The attendance
record of each Board member, on a named basis, at the said meetings
held during the Year are as follows:
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Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
BHESE CEREREEEINY

Corporate  Annual
Governance  General
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee  Meeting
Committee ~ Committee Committee ~ B¥ER ES
Name of Director ERZEE FMZEE REZEE ZE® PBFXE
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) REREE (FE) 5/5 - - 111 171 1n
Mr. Chan Fut Yan RREER 4 455 - 22 - - 11
(Managing Director) (BEFp5E)
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit REHEEE 5/5 - - - 11 11
(Chief Financial Officer) (BRIFHRE)
Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BRI S 445 - - - - 0/1
Mr. Wong Lai Shun, Benny EEIELA 5/5 - - - - 1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV F#H1TEE .
Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, css,)p A5 * css, 5/5 4/4 22 171 - 0/
(Vice Chairman) (BIE£E)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BRUKE 5/5 4/4 22 11 171 17
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso REHEE 5/5 4/4 22 171 - 17
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Directors disclose to the Company periodically their directorships #EFHMAQ R HEHERNEMBLEIETSE

and offices held in other organisations as well as other significant
commitments, and also their time commitments to the Company.
Adopting the recommended best practice set out in the CG Code, the
Board has reviewed the performance of the Directors and their
contributions to the Company, and is satisfied that the Directors have
firm commitments to the Company. Also, the Board is of the view
that the Directors have positive contributions to the Board through
participating in the Company’s affairs and the Board’s discussion and
decisions, as reflected in their high attendance on the meetings of the
Board and committees as well as the annual general meeting held
during the Year.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage in respect of legal
action against the Directors and officers arising out of their duties.
Such insurance coverage will be reviewed periodically to ensure the
adequacy of its coverage.

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, held by
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Mr. Chan Fut Yan respectively, are clearly
segregated with an aim to providing a clear division of authorities
and responsibilities. The Chairman is principally responsible for the
strategic planning of the Group and the management of the
operations of the Board. The Managing Director is mainly responsible
for the operations and business development of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the CG Code, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years. All the non-executive Directors are subject to the aforesaid
retirement requirements and are appointed for a specific term of not
more than three years.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considered that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Directors’ Training

In order to uphold good corporate governance, every newly
appointed Director will receive briefing and professional
development to ensure that each of them has sufficient understanding
of the Group’s businesses and awareness of duties under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
Briefings on specific topics of significance and interests with the
relevant reading materials will also be arranged for the Directors so
as to provide the continuous professional development (the “CPD")
training as required by the CG Code. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies or chambers.

During the Year, the Company has arranged an in-house training and
site visit as part of the CPD for the Directors. The Company has also
continued to provide the Directors with materials on updates in rules
and regulations, market developments, and any other relevant topics
which enhance greater awareness and understanding of the Group’s
businesses and the compliance with regulatory development.

All Directors have provided their training records confirming that
during the Year, they have participated in CPD by site visit, attending
seminars and/or reading materials.
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Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board has delegated its authority to the Nomination Committee
for the nomination and appointment of new Directors and
nomination of the Directors for re-election by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board who will be subject to retirement
and re-election at the next following general meeting or the next
following annual general meeting after his/her appointment. The
Board has adopted a board diversity policy (as revised on 10th
March, 2016) (the “Board Diversity Policy”) for ensuring a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s businesses within the Board.
Selection of candidates for appointment to the Board will be based
on a range of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, business perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on merit and
contribution on an equal-opportunity principle, and selected
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. A candidate to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director must satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. During
the Year, no Director was involved in fixing his own terms of
appointment and no independent non-executive Director participated
in assessing his own independence.

Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and
pursuant to the Bye-laws, not less than one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, such that each Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly define its role, authority and
function. The Nomination Committee comprises four members,
namely Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, JP (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap,
Alva and Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso. With the exception of
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit who is an executive Director, all the other
members of the Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession
planning for the Directors; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and reviewing the
Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives, if any, that the Board has set for implementing such
policy. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. For effective functioning in the course of the Director’s
nomination process, the Board has also adopted (i) the procedures for
the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director in
accordance with the Bye-laws (such procedures have been published
on the website of the Company pursuant to Rule 13.51D of the
Listing Rules); (ii) the nomination policy setting out the guidelines
and criteria for selecting and recommending the candidates for
directorship (the “Nomination Policy”); and (iii) the Board Diversity
Policy. The Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to
(i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board, (ii) assess
the independence of the existing independent non-executive
Directors and (iii) review, consider and make recommendations to
the Board for approval on (a) the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy; and (b) the re-appointment of the Directors retiring
by rotation at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Corporate Governance Committee
with specific written terms of reference which clearly define its role,
authority and function. The Corporate Governance Committee
comprises three members, two of whom are executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee) and Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, and one is an independent non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. The Board has
also adopted the compliance policy, the corporate governance policy
and the code of conduct for internal guidance purpose.

The Board has delegated its corporate governance functions set out in
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code to the Corporate Governance
Committee. The principal duties of the Corporate Governance
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; and
reviewing and monitoring (i) the training and CPD of the Directors
and the senior management of the Company, (ii) the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements, (iii) the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to the Company’s employees and the Directors, and
(iv) the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Corporate Governance
Committee has been provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a
meeting to (i) review, consider and make recommendations to the
Board for approval on (a) the terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee, (b) the corporate governance policy, the
Shareholders’ communication policy, the compliance policy and the
code of conduct of the Company, (c) the Company’s practices and
procedures on corporate governance, and (d) the compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure of the Corporate Governance Report;
and (ii) review the training and CPD of the Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly define its role, authority and
function. The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Chan Fut Yan, Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, /P
and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. With the exception of Mr. Chan Fut Yan
who is an executive Director, all the other members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
(i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all the Directors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy as
well as (ii) determining the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee have been published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee has been provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review and make recommendations to the Board for approval on the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee together with
certain proposed amendments thereto and the remuneration policy
for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Remuneration Committee had also, during the Year, reviewed and
approved the remuneration package of an executive Director and a
senior staff and the discretionary bonus to the executive Directors
and management of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2018
by means of written resolutions.

Details of the remuneration packages of the Directors are set out in
Note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements. During the Year,
no Director or any of his associates was involved in deciding his own
remuneration package.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference which clearly define its role, authority and
function. The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Pak Cheong
Afonso (chairman of the Audit Committee), Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham, GBS, /P and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. Mr. Chan Pak Cheong
Afonso is a qualified accountant with extensive experience in
financial reporting and controls as required by the Listing Rules. The
Board has at all times complied with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules for having a minimum of three non-executive
Directors with at least one of them being an independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications in
the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group’s interim and annual results prior to recommending them to
the Board for its approval; making recommendation on the
appointment of external auditor and acting as the key representative
body for overseeing the Company’s relations with its external auditor;
and reviewing the Group’s financial information and financial
reporting system. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Company. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board has also adopted
the risk management and internal control policy and the procedures
for the employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal controls or other matters.
The Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board with the
responsibility for reviewing such procedures and related
arrangements. The Audit Committee has been provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings. During these
meetings, the members of the Audit Committee had reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board’s approval in respect of (i) the draft
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2017 and the draft unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30th September, 2017, (ii) the re-appointment
of the external auditor for the Shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting and the fees charged by the external auditor, (iii) the risk
management framework and internal control practices, (iv) the internal
audit checklist of the Company, and (v) certain proposed amendments to
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. In addition to the review
of the financial results, the Audit Committee had also held discussions
and reviewed with the management and the external auditor of the
Company on the changes in accounting standards and requirements
which might affect the Group.

The Board and the members of the Audit Committee did not have
any differences in opinion during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PRERRES

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Investment Committee which
comprises at least two members and at least one of them shall be an
executive Director. Specific written terms of reference were adopted
to clearly define its role, authority and function.

The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee include
(i) making recommendations to the Board on strategies and risk
control policies for the Group’s investments and reviewing the
efficiency and effectiveness of their implementation; and relevant
matters relating to acquisitions and disposals of, investments in assets,
companies, businesses or projects, and their funding requirements, (ii)
conducting necessary research and gathering necessary information
before making any investment decisions, and (iii) reviewing financial
performance of the investment portfolio of the Group. The Investment
Committee has been provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.

During the Year, the Investment Committee reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board relating to the Group’s investment
portfolio and strategy for certain listed equity securities in Hong
Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are effectively and efficiently conducted, and for the
Company’s compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and
all other relevant rules and regulations, including but not limited to
the preparation, publication and despatch of the Company’s annual
and interim reports within the prescribed time limit as required by the
Listing Rules and arrangement of Directors’ CPD training as required
by the CG Code.

In addition, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for the disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Company’s securities, connected transactions and inside information,
and ensures that the standards and disclosures as required by the
Listing Rules and all other relevant rules and regulations are fulfilled
and, if required, shall be reflected in the annual and/or interim reports
of the Company.

Ms. Wong Siu Mun was appointed as the Company Secretary in
replacement of Mr. Wong Kim Man with effect from 24th June, 2017.
She is an employee of the Group and confirmed that she has
complied with all the qualifications, experience and training
requirements as required by the Listing Rules. The said change of the
Company Secretary was approved by the Board at a physical Board
meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flows of the Group for that period. The Group has maintained a team
of qualified accountants to oversee its financial reporting and other
accounting-related issues in accordance with the relevant laws, rules
and regulations.

In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events
or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company regarding its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the management of
the Company has been providing all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was re-appointed by the
Shareholders at the last annual general meeting held on 11th August,
2017 as the Company’s external auditor to hold office until the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. For the Year, the total auditor’s
remuneration in respect of statutory audit and non-audit services

provided by Deloitte was set out below:

-
THeHERAEHMITEH) N _T—+
FNANA+T—BRTZ LERRAFAE LER
RBER/ARRFSNEZEED - ETHERERE
AFERGRI - RAFE - HEHREMEE
ERRIEEZIRTG 2 XA BN & 4 7R & 51 40
T

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered PR BR 75 e EAEA

HK$’000

BEET T

Statutory audit fee (Note) EEERER (M) 5,302
Fees for non-audit services: IEEZRIFER :

Review of interim results FRPEIEE 689

Tax related service B EERE 104

Total auditor’s remuneration for the Year AEEREENNE 4% 6,095

Note: Statutory audit fee charged to profit and loss for the Year was HK$5,326,000,
comprising amounts of HK$5,302,000 and HK$24,000 paid and payable to
Deloitte and other auditors of certain subsidiaries of the Company respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of risk management and internal control for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the key controls
on finance, operations and compliance through risk management
assessment, to integrate into the Group’s business strategies and
business operations.

The Board oversees the Group's risk management process which
comprises of the identification and assessment of the key risks
exposure of the Group based on their estimated impact and
likelihood of occurrence and formulation of corresponding mitigating
measures by management. The Group’s identified risks and
associated mitigating measures are recorded in a risk register and are
reviewed at least annually in light of internal and external changes.
An open and interactive communication channel is maintained to
enable timely reporting and ongoing supervision of the identified
risks within the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont'd)

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems include a
well-established organisation structure, comprehensive policies and
standards, periodic reviews on the implementation of the internal
control systems in respect of operation, financial function and
compliance of all the businesses of the Group, including the newly
acquired investments, in order to manage the Group's identified risks
effectively. The risk management and internal control policy of the
Group has been developed with a primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic framework of risk
management and internal control and for achievements of the
Group's objectives.

The Company has also established and maintained appropriate and
effective systems and procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Board has adopted the policy on disclosure
of inside information, pursuant to which an internal committee has
been established to review and assess any material information which
requires to be escalated for the attention of the Board and to be
disclosed. Procedures have also been implemented for responding to
external communications so that only designated personnel can
respond to enquiries about the Company’s affairs.

The internal audit function of the Group is an independent function
that reports directly to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team
from time to time reviews the Group’s business operations, risk
management and internal control systems in accordance with the
risk-based internal audit work plan as approved by the Audit
Committee. Internal audit checklists and reports have also been
prepared periodically for the Audit Committee’s review and the
Board’s consideration and approval.

The Board is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and a cyclical review has been
conducted on their effectiveness. Furthermore, the Board has ensured
that adequate resources have been spent on the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and compliance functions which are run
by professional staff with appropriate qualifications, experience and
training.

During the Year, no significant irregularity or deficiency in risk
management and internal control systems was required to draw the
attention of the Audit Committee. The Board, based on the
assessment and confirmation from the management, reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
considered them to be effective and adequate.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to code provision E.1.4 of the CG Code, the Board has
adopted and will review from time to time the Shareholders’
communication policy which was designed with the objective of
ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company in order to enable them to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders through the
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements and
circulars as well as the dissemination of additional information
about the Group’s activities, business strategies and developments.
All such information is available on the Company’s website at
www.itcproperties.com.

The Board strives to maintain an ongoing and transparent
communication with all the Shareholders and, in particular, use
general meetings as a means to communicate with the Shareholders
and encourage their participation.

During the Year, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, the Chairman, and
representatives from Deloitte attended the last annual general
meeting and were available to answer questions raised by the
Shareholders at the meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting
was sent to the Shareholders as least 20 clear business days before
the meeting. At the meeting, a separate resolution in respect of each
substantially separate issue put forward for consideration was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting, and voting on each
resolution was conducted by poll. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll was provided to the Shareholders at
the commencement of the meeting. The results of the poll were
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Bye-laws have been published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS R SR AER
Proposing a Person for Election as a Director BEALTSREESE
Pursuant to bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws, if a Shareholder wishes to  iRiEAT4HAI~ 5 88 (54H A » AR E AR AR

propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary or at the branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited. The period for lodgment of such notice will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The procedures for a Shareholder to propose a
person for election as a Director at general meeting are set out in the
“Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s website at
www.itcproperties.com.

Convening a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholder(s) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board. The requisition
must state the purpose(s) of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company
or its principal place of business in Hong Kong. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
special general meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date of the
deposit of the requisition. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) by reason of the failure of the Board duly to convene
a special general meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Cont’d)

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), (i) any number of Shareholders representing
not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a requisition in writing to the Company:

(@) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in case of any other requisition.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and comments to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by post to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 30/F.,
Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong, or
by email to info@itcproperties.com, or by fax at (852) 2858 2697.
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Company is delighted to present its annual Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”) which has been
reviewed and approved by the Board.

With its corporate philosophy of “be well-positioned as to location,
timing and strategy to maximise returns for the Company and its
Shareholders” and “be persistent in excellent development design
and execution” as its guiding principles, the Company is embedded
with a strong corporate culture for corporate social responsibilities
that forms an integral part of its business strategies. The Group
endeavours to create a harmonious and sustainable community
through cultivating its responsible corporate citizenship and integrate
ESG concerns into the businesses and operations with an aim of
aligning the interests and benefits of its valuable key stakeholders, the
society at large and the environment as a whole.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND SCOPE
The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

The ESG Report summarises the ESG-related policies, initiatives and
performances of the Group’s core operations in the property and
hotel businesses over which the Group has major financial and
operational controls as well as with significant ESG implications to
the Group and its stakeholders during the Year.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Board provides strategic direction to the ESG reporting team in
achieving the Group’s ESG objectives and sets related policies. Key
stakeholders are engaged through on-going and comprehensive
communication channels to understand their concerns and
expectations.
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“A process of identifying, understanding
and addressing material sustainability

issues and concerns”
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ENESHEHREEMTMEG (&)
ASSESSMENT (Cont’d)

Key Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations
TERR0E BERE HE
1. Shareholders and * Annual and interim reports F¥RAF HAIRE o Financial performance B #KH
investors of the Company ¢ Announcements and circulars 724 X 3 K ¢ Corporate transparency
EREIRRAMREZE o General meetings REAE TEBERE
* Meetings and interviews & 3% F175 * Sustainable development
* Website 481k AREER

e Social investment 1+ @& &

2. Customers * Daily operations H & ‘&& * Quality products and services
BE e Events /5 &) 185 7 o A0 AR 75
 Brochures and leaflets /M- & B3R * Data privacy BRI LR
e Business integrity and conduct
EBBEMITR
3. Employees e Training programs, seminars and briefing e Health and safety 2z 1% &
S sessions I BlIFHE] - FAT GRS e Remuneration and benefits
e New hire orientation ¥7T8 T FE AR A
* Regular performance reviews FEHIZREF o Career development B3 3 &
* Meetings and discussions & &% 515  Equal opportunities 51 &
e Company activities A 7]/5B) e Corporate culture 1231k
4. Suppliers and contractors * Quotations and tendering processes ¢ Product quality and safety
HEBFAER HELRIRBRE EmEsHTy
o After-sale services &1 k7% * Corporate reputation 7252
e Industrial seminars and workshops e Fair and ethical business practice
TEMT M IIED NV EREERBIED
e Long-term relationship
RIS ERER
e Supply chain responsibilities
HrERE T
5. Business partners ¢ Mutual development and sharing of resources ¢ Mutual trust and synergies
EBEIERHF HEHERMEZEIR BB EEMHRE
* Joint projects & {EIE B e Long-term partnership
REIGERH IR
¢ Return on investment
RE @R
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ENESHEHREEMTG (&)
ASSESSMENT (Cont’d)

Key Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations
FEFHOE BBER] HE
6. Community e Charitable donation Z&Z 1884 e Social contribution & & &k
HE e Community investment t &% & * Environmental responsibilities
* Volunteering activities 7 F8)& &) RERME
e Community participation
HEeH
7. Regulatory bodies and ¢ Compliance management & 1 & 12 ¢ Compliance &#3
government authorities ¢ Consultation 74 * Laws, regulations and practices
EEMBAKITHEE  « Meetings 83 ERCERAER
e Seminars T 51 & e Business ethics 381

During the Year, the Group obtained feedbacks from its key RAFE  REBFEB Fl ) ERRENGE
stakeholders through the above communication channels and then ZE#EFHEMNER - YHREEU DT AZERE
launched a materiality analysis to identify the material ESG issues. ZIRHE - A EREAEH - EER TERPH

The results are summarised in the following table: A
Subject Areas ESG Aspects Material ESG lIssues
IRHEE R -dHEeRERER EERER HERERSH
A. Environmental  Al. Emissions ¥ * Air Emissions & HEH
Big * Waste Management & %)% ¥

e Greenhouse Gas Emissions /& = .52 HF i

A2. Use of Resources & R i f * Energy Consumption FE4£E
e Water Consumption FE7K&E

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources ¢ Indoor Air Quality ZAZERE £
RERXAER e Lightings f&#H
* Noise Management i & &2
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ENESHEHREEMTMEG (&)
ASSESSMENT (Cont’d)

Subject Areas ESG Aspects Material ESG lIssues
TRHEE B dHERERER EERR HEREAREHE
B. Social Employment and Labour Practices
e ERERE TEHS
B1. Employment {E{& e Employment Practices and Relations

EEE R MR

B2. Health and Safety @ B2 & Workplace Health and Safety

TERERFEZ 2

B3. Development and Training 3 & & 3% 3|

Talent Development A7 2 &

B4. Labour Standards % T %A e No Child and Forced Labour
B IEE T Kagslss T

Operating Practices & Z 154
B5. Supply Chain Management {tfESEE 3 o Fair and Green Procurement Practices
NP MEEREBER

Products and Services Standards 7 ga 1 iR 7%

R

e Customer Services B8 & iR 7%

¢ Data Privacy and Information Security
ERALRNEERR

e Fair Marketing 2 & 8

¢ Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

B6. Product Responsibility Z @& 1E

IREFBERE

B7. Anti-corruption R &35 e Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption
REERRMRES

Community #E

B8. Community Investment L E % & e Corporate Citizenship SRR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B B REARE S

ENVIRONMENTAL
With a view to undertaking environmental protection as part of

the Group'’s corporate responsibilities and achieving sustainable
development, the Group has implemented a number of green
management measures and initiatives in order to deliver its
long-standing commitment to the environmental protection

according to its environmental policies.

No confirmed incidents, fines and non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
which have significant impact on the Group’s operations were
recorded during the Year.

Al.

Emissions

The Group strives to conduct businesses in a responsible
manner according to its Waste Management Policy and
encourages sound environmental management practices
to reduce the air emissions and greenhouse gases, waste
disposal and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes.

Air Emissions

Although no significant air emissions were generated
directly from the Group’s operations during the Year
since the construction activities of its development
projects have been outsourced, the Group has put
substantial efforts in minimising the negative impacts on
environment:

o Required its contractors to adopt a series of air
emission reduction measures, including but not
limited to requiring the submission of monthly
reports of their green performance

. Used low emitting materials for adhesives, sealants,
paints and coatings in property projects

J Used non-chlorofluorocarbon (CFC) based
refrigerants in the air conditioning systems to avoid
the depletion of the ozone layer

J Deployed hydro-vent system to effectively filter oil
and odour from the exhaust of kitchens operating in
the hotels

A.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE (LG MERABES

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

Al.

Emissions (Cont’d)

Waste Management

The Group upholds its Waste Management Policy in
applying the “4Rs” (i.e. “reduce”, “reuse”, “recycle” and
“replace”) waste management principles on the proper
handling and disposal of all wastes generated.

Recycle

REREH

¥

Businesses X%

Although the construction wastes were not directly
generated by the Group during the Year, the Group
shouldered its responsibility by monitoring waste
management practices of its contractors:

J Required the contractors to develop and implement
construction waste management plans for proper
handling and disposal of wastes

J Encouraged the contractors to recycle or salvage
non-hazardous construction and demolition debris.
In particular, recycling bins, paper recycling boxes
and steel scraps recycling area have been
designated to facilitate better waste management

J Provided regular training on waste handling and
reduction to site workers

J Requested staff to enhance the accuracy of
materials budgeting to avoid wastage

A. BRE@#E)

Al.
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A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

Al.

Emissions (Cont’d)

Waste Management (Cont’d)

The Group has also implemented various waste handling
and reduction measures across its operations:

J Established a waste classification system in its
offices for recycling and reuse to alleviate burden
on landfills. The general non-hazardous wastes,
such as kitchen wastes, bottles, paper, etc. are
properly handled in an environmentally responsible
manner on a regular basis

J Adopted recycling practices in its operations,
including collection and recycling of used kitchen
oil and plastic bottles from its hotel operations and
procurement of environment — friendly consumables
with minimal packaging

J Encouraged electronic means of communication
instead of paper form and printed in double-side if
inevitable for reducing paper usage

J Reused used paper with no confidential information
as well as sent shredded paper for recycling

J Preferred paper supply that was Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certified

During the Year, paper consumption for work-related
purposes was the major type of waste generated from the
Group’s direct-managed activities, amounting to 14.723
tonnes' (2017: 8.997 tonnes). The increment was resulted
from full year operation of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel Hong
Kong as compared with 6-month operation last financial
year since its opening in October 2016, and expansion of
the Group’s offices and staff headcounts to cope with its
operation need. Nevertheless, majority of work-related
waste was recycled, which demonstrated the Group’s
efforts in waste reuse and recycling. There were no
significant hazardous wastes produced directly from the
operations of the Group.

1 The purchase quantity of the above item by the Group during the
Year has been considered as the amount disposed.

A. BRE#E)

Al.

1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE (LG MERBES

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

Al.

A2,

Emissions (Cont’d)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s major sources of the carbon emissions were
from the consumption of electricity and water and the
disposal of wastes. During the Year, there were 3,897.66
tonnes of the carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,e)* generated
from its direct operations (2017: 3,039.48 tonnes), with
an intensity of 0.0158 kg CO,e (2017: 0.0161kg CO,e)
per Hong Kong dollar of revenue. Again, such increase
was due to full year operation of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel
Hong Kong, and expansion of the Group’s offices and
staff headcounts.

Use of Resources

Aiming at achieving operational optimisation and
enhancing the ESG performance, the Group has
implemented its Environmental Policy to endeavour its
efforts in lowering energy and water consumption (its two
major types of resources during the Year) throughout life-
cycle and carbon footprints in its business operations.

2 Carbon emissions are calculated with reference to the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol using carbon conversion factors published by the
Environmental Protection Department and electricity providers.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

A2.

3

Use of Resources (Cont’d)
Energy Consumption

The Group’s main types of energy consumption and its
corresponding reduction measures were summarised in

the following table:

For the year ended 31st March, 2018

Property Projects
NXER
Intensity
(by gross
floor area)

Type of energy Amount* BE
RERER B (BREER)
Electricity kWh 3,584 6.38
V) THE
Towngas
B
Diesel 39,569 70.4
S il

For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Property Projects
MEEE
Intensity
(by gross
floor area)

Type of energy Amount’ BE
RRER B (REZER)
Electricity kWh 44,092 13.29
EV) ThRE
Towngas
B
Diesel L 38,235 11.52
SR INIS
Petrol L
s A

The amounts represent the energy directly consumed and controlled by
the Group, as well as those used and reported by its contractors during the

Year.

A. RIE(E)
A2. BIREA (&)

FEBEE
RNEETEfEE MBRR
BRtan R -

BE-ZE-\E=ZA=+—HLEE

Offices
WAZ

Hotel Operations
EEEE
Intensity

Intensity
(by room (by gross

night) floor area)

BE Amount® BE

(BE®) B (RREER)

5,104,039

489,177 155.29

BE—Z—tF=ZA=1+—HLEE

Offices
WAE

Hotel Operations
BEEE
Intensity
(by room (by gross
night) floor area)
BE Amount® BE
(RE®) $E (RREER)

Intensity

4,439,886 28.72 335,416 134.27
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A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

A2,

Use of Resources (Cont’d)

Energy Consumption (Cont’d)

The increment of energy consumption was due to full
year operation of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong
which was also reclassified from property projects to
hotel operations after its commencement of operation in
October 2016, and expansion of the Group’s offices and
staff headcounts.

The Group has implemented a series of reduction
measures in its offices, property projects and hotel
operations to save its energy consumption as follows:

J Implementation of building management system
(BMS) and installation of devices for monitoring
energy consumption

J Use of high energy efficiency fans, pumps and
chiller with auto sequencing programme for
machineries

J Use of chiller heat recovery for hot water supply

J Regular reporting of energy consumption and
resources usage

J Procurement of energy saving electrical appliances,
including those being accredited with Energy Star
or The Electronic Product Environmental
Assessment Tool (EPEAT)

J Implementation of key card system to save energy
when the hotel room is empty

J Hotels’ participation in the “Energy Saving Charter
2017” and “4Ts Charter” schemes which were
launched by the Environment Bureau and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

In addition, the Group promotes environmental protection
among its employees through a diverse set of energy
saving programs as follows:

e Turning off electrical appliances and lights during
lunch hours and for office spaces not in use

J Installation of LED lighting in office areas and
business areas

e Control of temperature settings for air conditioners
with regular cleaning and maintenance

J Switching off office equipment and electrical
appliances to energy-saving mode when not in use

. Use of green signage and energy saving tips to
promote best practices and increase staff awareness

o Duplex printing and copying, recycling used paper
and scrapping of paper for notepads

e Telephone conferencing meetings instead of face-
to-face meetings for counterparties in different
locations
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A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

A2.

Use of Resources (Cont’d)

Water Consumption

During the Year, the total amount of water consumed by
the Group was 51,179 m? (2017: 41,523 m?), with
detailed consumption and intensity summarised in the
following table:

Property Projects
N*ER

Intensity
For the year ended (by gross
31st March floor area)
BE=A=t-AH i e
ILEFE (BREER)
2018 m’ 2,722 4.8429
“E-N\F UJTK
2017 m’ 1,350 0.4069
2 YTk

The increment of water consumption was due to full year
operation of Le Petit Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong, and
expansion of the Group’s offices and staff headcounts.

In order to consume water responsibly throughout its
operations, the Group has formulated the following water
conservation initiatives across its offices, property projects
and hotel operations:

J Installation of water efficient and/or low-flow water
fixtures including faucet and showerhead

J Reuse of water to maximise utilisation

e Reduction of irrigation by growing plants which are
suitable for the climate of Hong Kong

J Regular reporting of water consumption and saving
measures

J Promotion of water saving awareness and best
practices through provision of regular training and
use of signage

Packaging Materials
During the Year, no material packaging materials were
identified by the Group due to its business nature.

The amounts represent the water consumed and controlled by the Group
in its offices, property projects and hotel operations, as well as those used
and reported by its contractors during the Year.

A. RIE(E)
A2. BIREA (&)

FEKE

RAFE  AEBNBEFRKESR
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Use of Water
[iilS
Hotel Operations

BEEE

47,816

39,968
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A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group aims to constantly improving operational
efficiencies and reducing adverse operational impacts on
the environment through its Environment and Natural
Resources Policy with various initiatives, including
introduction of eco-friendly low-carbon measures to
minimise wastage as well as promotion of resource-
efficient and environmentally-responsible green building
design.

Regular evaluation has been conducted to identify
potential environmental risks, and timely mitigating
actions are implemented. The Group has also taken its
initiative in joining the Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (“LEED”) programme, the world’s
leading green building standard, which addresses the
whole life cycle of the property, lowers its operating
costs, increases its value and conserves energy and
natural resources. One of the Group’s hotels, namely
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon has attained the LEED GOLD
standard while another hotel Le Petit Rosedale Hotel
Hong Kong is currently in the certification process for the
same standard.

During the Year, the Group has dedicated its efforts in
improving the following environmental issues:

Indoor Air Quality
The Group recognises the importance of indoor air
quality to human health:

J Used ventilating systems with ventilation rate which
is 30% higher than the standard set by American
Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-
Conditioning Engineers in the Group’s property
projects

o Committed to use materials with minimal or no
Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) to maintain
high air quality

o Engaged building managers to perform regular
cleaning of dust filters in the office

J Used air purifiers to control airborne allergens,
viruses, bacteria and odours

J Prohibited smoking at workplace
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A.  ENVIRONMENTAL (Cont’d)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources (Cont’d)
Lightings

To uphold the slogan of “go green” and minimise light
nuisance and electricity consumption, Rosedale Hotel
Kowloon has taken initiatives in joining the “Charter on
External Lighting” of the Environment Bureau (“EB”) to
voluntarily switching off all lighting installations of
decorative, promotional or advertising purposes that
affect outdoor environment from 23:00 to 07:00 on the
following day and received “Platinum Award” from the
EB as a recognition. Le Petit Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong
has also signed up to join the programme. Moreover,
individual lighting controls enabling occupants to adjust
the lighting system have also been installed in the hotels.

Noise Management

Construction activities may generate significant level of
noise and therefore the Group’s contractors are required
to strictly follow the requirements of relevant regulations,
in particular the Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

B. SOCIAL
Being a socially responsible corporate citizen, the Group aims

to build a mutually beneficial relationship with its key

stakeholders.

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

Employment

Employment Practices and Relations

The Group values high-quality talent as an important
asset and a comprehensive Human Resources Policy has
been developed covering various human resources
aspects, including recruitment, compensation, movement,
working hour, rest period and equal opportunity as a
guiding principle for reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty and
commitment of its employees.
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B.

SOCIAL (Cont’d)
Employment and Labour Practices (Cont’d)

B1.

Employment (Cont’d)

Employment Practices and Relations (Cont’d)

The following practices have been continuously adopted
by the Group:

o Attractive and competitive remuneration packages
are offered to employees and reviewed at least
annually with reference to individual performance,
contribution and development

e Other fringe benefits, including comprehensive
medical and life insurance coverage and retirement
fund contribution, are offered to staff

. Share options are granted as a motivation to
employees by building direct correlation between
their rewards and the Group’s performance

e Annual dinner and festive luncheons are organised

J Long service awards are presented as a token to
appreciate dedication and contribution to the loyal
staff members serving the Group

e  Seasonal presents are given to staff members on
special days, such as Chinese New Year and Mid-
Autumn Festival

J Office closes early on festive occasions

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and
explicitly against any kind of discrimination on age,
gender, marital status, race, nationality, religion, disability
and family status.

The Group encourages its staff to maintain a well-
balanced life and supports its staff to actively pursue their
personal development by participating in different roles
and activities in the community. Moreover, the Group is
devoted to strengthening a sense of belonging of its staff
by demonstrating care and support in all aspects.

During the Year, the Group strictly followed all labour-
related laws, rules and regulations with no non-
compliance cases noted as well as no discrimination
cases were reported.
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B. SOCIAL (Cont’d)
Employment and Labour Practices (Cont’d)

B1.

B2.

Employment (Cont’d)

Employment Practices and Relations (Cont’d)

As at 31st March, 2018, the total number of employees of
the Group was 329 (2017: 273). During the Year, total
employee turnover rate was 32% since majority of the
employees are working for the Group’s hotel business
where relatively high turnover rate is the industrial norm.

B. #&(&)
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Total Workforce by Gender
RURE D HNBEEAH

Female
2otk
51%

Total Workforce by Age Group
BRERAERE D NEEEAR

Over 50 years old
soBbLE N\
24%

Health and Safety

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group promotes a high degree of awareness and
accountability of health and safety at work through its
Health and Safety Policy, which consists of regular
trainings, standard codes of practices and various health
and safety measures so as to promote an injury-free
culture.

Under 30 years old
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19%

30 to 50 years old
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57%
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B.

SOCIAL (Cont’d)
Employment and Labour Practices (Cont’d)

B2.

B3.

Health and Safety (Cont’d)

Workplace Health and Safety (Cont’d)

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a
healthy and safe workplace for its staff and other persons
likely to be affected by its business activities and
operations:

J Carries out periodic air-conditioning systems
cleaning, floor care maintenance, pest control and
carpet disinfection treatment to ensure a hygienic
working environment

J Participates in the annual fire and evacuation drill
organised by the respective building managers to
familiarise with the fire evacuation route and
strengthen awareness of fire precaution

e Conducts regular inspections of the facilities and
safety measures at its workplace

. Provides additional and special safety work
guidelines and equipment for the site workers

J Rosedale Hotel Kowloon participated in “Project
VanGUARD” which was jointly organised by
Kowloon West Region Police and Hong Kong
Hotels Association to ensure the safety and security
of the guests

During the Year, no injury case was reported and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with the laws, rules and regulations relating to the health
and safety issues.

Development and Training

Talent Development

Employee development is an important human capital
investment. The Group has established its Development
and Training Policy to reinforce its manpower and
develop its human capital by providing a wide spectrum
of in-house and external training and development
courses, seminars, workshops and conferences to equip
its staff members with knowledge, skills and experience
in performing their job duties effectively and efficiently.

Corporate orientation programs and briefings are introduced
to new staff to help them in familiarising with the corporate
culture and practices. Continuous professional development
training programs and briefings are provided to the Directors
and senior management of the Group.
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B. SOCIAL (Contd)
Employment and Labour Practices (Cont’d)

B4.

Labour Standards

No Child and Forced Labour

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibits
child and forced labour by having effective controls in its
recruitment process. A No Child and Forced Labour
Policy has been established to ensure that no abuse,
physical punishment and assignment of tasks with
extremely high risks of all kinds are allowed in its
workplace and business operations.

As the Group strictly adheres to the labour legislations in
its business operations, no child or forced labour was
permitted under any circumstances and there were no
cases of non-compliance against child or forced labour
related regulations during the Year.

Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

Fair and Green Procurement Practices

The Group, through its Supply Chain Management Policy,
continues to work closely with its supply chain partners
in order to facilitate its effective governance of supply
chain practices as well as execute green procurement for
maintaining a high quality for its property projects and
customer services, and enhance responsibilities with its
supply chain management system.

The Group has diversified its procurement through
different suppliers and has established stringent
procedures for the selection of suppliers with regular
monitoring and review as key assessments of
sustainability performance of its suppliers. It further
assures that the Group does not engage suppliers and
contractors with known non-compliance with all the
applicable laws and regulations, including child and
forced labour, discrimination, bribery, corruption or other
unethical practices and environmental pollution.
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B.

SOCIAL (Cont’d)
Operating Practices (Cont’d)

Bé6.

Product Responsibility

Products and Services Standards

The Group has established its Products and Services
Responsibility Policy to offer socially responsible products
and services to the public and utmost business ethics
when serving the public through its businesses and
operations.

The Group has implemented various measures to ensure
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations in
respect of health and safety, advertisement, label and
privacy matters of its products and services. During the
Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
cases of the relevant laws and regulations relating to the
products and services standards.

Customer Services

The Group, through its Customer Services Policy, strives
to enhance customer experience by demonstrating
professionalism, responsiveness and caring for its
customers and stipulates the principle of delivering a high
standard of customer services.

Adhering to its “Consistent, Comfort and Care” motto, the
Group places customers satisfaction as priority in its hotel
operations by providing its valuable customers with
thoughtful services experience and embellishing guest
satisfaction through various communication channels and
key service parameters, including but not limited to
providing a free “handy” smartphone during their stay for
unlimited internet access, local calls anywhere and IDD
calls in selected countries in order to create a barrier-free
environment.
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B. SOCIAL (Contd)
Operating Practices (Cont’d)

B6.

Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Data Privacy and Information Security

In view of high public concern over data privacy
especially in recent years, through its Data Privacy Policy,
the Group strictly adheres to legal requirements relating
to data privacy protection in order to fulfill its key
stakeholders’ expectations on information security and
confidentiality.

The Group ensures a high standard of security and
confidentiality of personal data throughout its businesses
and operations, requiring its staff to fully comply with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and similar overseas regulations in
handling information of its Shareholders, business
partners, customers and employees in the collection,
processing, use and keeping of their personal data.

Fair Marketing

The Group strictly follows the Residential Properties
(First-hand Sales) Ordinance in Hong Kong and similar
overseas regulations which require provision of true and
accurate information in marketing materials of properties,
including sales brochures and leaflets, price lists, show
flats, promotion advertisements and registers of sales
transactions, etc. The Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s Best Practice Checklist for estate agents and
sales offices is highly upheld to avoid any misconduct
and close any corruption loopholes.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group protects its intellectual property rights by
prolonged use and registration of domain names and
trademarks and has applied and/or registered trademarks
in various classes in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and
other relevant jurisdictions. Such domain names and
trademarks are being constantly reviewed and renewed
upon their expiration.

B. #&(&)

EIEER (E)
B6. EREMF(E)
BHLEMEE LS

Annual Report 3§ 6 2017-2018

ERIOIFRARYEMLENSE
BT BEHERLRBEE - K&
B B AR ST A AL R R E A B
RERE  WheEEERHNEY
ERELEMRE MWL

REBEREREAERNEEZER K
EETHREREUELREN B
KHEETxR2ETEAEHNLE)
GBI (BBIEDIE 486 ) RIKIEE
SMELUARRIRERR - RBAE
B BEENEENESE K2

EAMRFREBEAEHNESR

AEBEBBETEEN —FEED
FKIHE R M IMELIEDER - R
ERBERERNYELHER
BREEEHAERER BEX
TREMN SEERELRBEERSE
LS - AEBERTREAZNM
ERENRHEENRERODLERE
R AETTR - LITBEM

BEY5RR e

RAEHERE

7N & B & HIE A AN EE R A
7 UREEMBERE YEWE
B R REREMAARERDEE
Bm RSN SGEM A RER S
132 WA BRI A M RETT
EEMER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE (LG MERBES

B.

SOCIAL (Cont’d)
Operating Practices (Cont’d)

B7.

Anti-corruption

Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption

In order to cultivate an ethical corporate culture and
maintain a fair and equitable business environment, the
Group has established its Code of Conduct and Anti-
corruption Policy to emphasise the principles of anti-
bribery and anti-corruption to counter bribery, corruption,
extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent
activities.

The Group requires its staff to possess high ethical
standard and demonstrate professional conducts in its
businesses and operations. Employees are reminded not
to have any form of corruption including but not limited
to request or acceptance of benefits of material value
from any parties having business transactions with the
Group. Whistle-blowing mechanism has been established
to guide the employees on reporting about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal controls or
other business practices.

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations, and no legal cases regarding bribery,
corruption, extortion, fraud and money laundering-related
laws and regulations were brought against the Group or
its employees during the Year.

Community

B8.

Community Investment

Corporate Citizenship

As a long-standing supporter of a number of charity
groups, the Group has established its Community
Investment Policy which sets out its mission of leveraging
its resources to improve the community in which it
operates.
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B. SOCIAL (Cont'd) B. #&(&)

Community (Cont’d)

B8. Community Investment (Cont’d)
The Group is strongly committed to serving the
community with love and care through various charitable
services, donations, fundraisings, sponsorships and
volunteering services:

. Donated used computers, printers, scanners and
monitors to demonstrate care for the ones in need

J Rosedale Hotel Kowloon has been cooperating with
Hong Kong Community College of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in providing a 3-month
internship programme for students of hotel
management

J Rosedale Hotel Kowloon participated as a
supporting organisation for “Work Experience
Movement”, which was organised by the Education
Bureau in providing career exploration
opportunities for the secondary students

GOVERNANCE

Referring to the keystones of its corporate philosophy, the
Group believes that ESG should be embedded in its core
businesses and operations. Its sound corporate governance
system and professional working team have enabled the Group
to lay a solid foundation for its ESG initiatives so as to enhance
accountability, integrity, transparency and honesty which drives
the Group forward.

The Board takes an overall responsibility to oversee the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basis in order to safeguard the stakeholders’ interests and
enhance our sustainability performance. The governance
practices and procedures are reviewed from time to time to
ensure they remain in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements. During the Year, no incidents of misconduct
were identified.

For more information on the “Governance” section, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

BY 2B RE S

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ITC
Properties Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 207,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st March, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,  iBIEZAR7T 7 B2 KL - BB SEARNTE
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ZHRARNHBZGEAMBREAPRZEE 2 FE o

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the — AR{TEEIZARAS M BRI ERIERE AR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a IR} £ E1F  MASp S EEEBFERE
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea  § o

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BARETER

Allowance on other loan receivables

HttEREF 2R

We identified the allowance on other loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgment exercised by the management in
respect of the collectability of other loan receivables.
AT EAM R E R 2 BE R SR ETFH
AReEREAREMEEER Z AT REENIERE
Gl

Referring to Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) perform ongoing evaluation of
collectability in assessing the ultimate realisation of
the other loan receivables, including the repayment
history, subsequent settlements, financial conditions
and current creditworthiness of each borrower. Were
the financial conditions of the borrowers to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make repayments, allowance may arise. As at 31st
March, 2018, the carrying amount of other loan
receivables was HK$902,324,000 (2017:
HK$667,235,000). No allowance was provided for
both years.
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REFHEEBERBEABEZILE

Our procedures in relation to allowance on other loan
receivables included:

AT E MR E R BEMERBEF 21

o Understanding the management’s assessment in relation
to the collectability of other loan receivables;

T R ER B Sk B M B R A 1 B O H 2 A

J Understanding the terms and conditions of and
inspecting the relevant loan agreements; and
TERAARE B B R 2 AR S R - W E AR B AR i

==
X

J Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assessment in relation to the collectability of other loan
receivables by referencing to the audited financial
statements, fair value of collaterals, repayment history
and/or subsequent settlements of each borrower.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HARETER

REETTSER )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REFHEEBERBEABEZILE

Valuation of investment properties

REY*14E

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the judgment involved in
the valuation of investment properties.
FITHREMFREERN SBEREFFE RES
REWRMGES A -

Referring to Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the valuation of investment properties
was based on valuation on these properties
conducted by independent professional valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the fair value changes reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As at 31st March, 2018,
investment properties were carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
fair values of HK$900,000,000 (2017:
HK$754,000,000).
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

RITRIRE Y EAEMMRIEF R

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional valuers;

AHZE BRMGEMZEN - s RFEIME

e  Obtaining an understanding from the independent
professional valuer about the valuation methodology,
significant assumptions adopted and critical judgment
on key inputs and data used in the valuation;

B HEEMGERM TRGEEDE  REERARAE
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e Checking the relevance of market transaction price used
by the independent professional valuers on a sample
basis by benchmarking them to relevant market
information; and
MEERBLEELEMAAT SR ZEREEEE -
TERRZEEMEERTSEETEERNR &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of adjusting factors on the
locations and conditions of the properties made by the
independent professional valuers by comparing them
with historical adjusting factors applied, comparability
and other market factors for similar properties.
AZBEYEEMEMEYERI RAARELRAEZR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

1‘2%&%%%1‘2%%%%’?%&%&%5@%25
e

AITZ B RRHGAVBRRERES AR
RRGEFE R M B 2 EXBERRAIG A
BRE  WHASRBATER ZRBEIRE
RRBAFERTEF I IRERBEBRRRS
BRUEIASN » RBREAL MEREMAE - RITILA
IARE 2 ARHEMEMAL ARSI AER
F-AEEEBSEAZIZE HEREEEE
AHERETZER TE TR EBEREMTF
2 EARSHERRAL  $8RRIRAM A] I BRRF 388 R
EL - WENRBERESERRABEATARE
ERERBEAVBRRMEH ZEERER
AR S E A RERAL -

ERBEBETEAETE ZBET - K17
EREXHE - REFEXEREE - K75

o BRIRFHEARRFRERMEBRE
MBBEREFEERHERBL 2R - &
S RMITE R AREZERR - LA
RERTRMEE 2 ETRE  FRA
TERZEM - AR RFFAES L&
womE ERER ERREIEE
MEBEE IR Z 1B - EI R RE IR A RRE
M2z B AR 2 b = 7 R AE
HHRRFRMEB 2 BRI 2

B o

TR AR 2 A B EREE - ARREHE
BEENEF KEALFEEY BEEE
NEEE R s BB RER

o HMAEEMERASFEERZREERE
HEFHEFTAMRERE SR -

e HEERAFELESERZREN
e - WIRBAT R 2 BAHERE
BEROAFEEEHABREMIEX
THEEW EMAEERYE EEEZ
FEEERNELBARE © WATTR
REEEATHEEG  BABEERZH
B &R IRFEAE I BHRA M ®RE
Rz ERBERE - MAERRETR - Rl
RIARTTER - ATEm NERBERH
RisRE BHILEPAERS < BAT/BRE - A
- REFEXBERLATEEH E&H

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEtESEER AR



INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

BY 2B EN RS S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Sau Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26th June, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AN =

f— Z N
Ao TEm

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

Revenue

Hotel operation income
Property income

Direct cost

Gross profit

Income from loan financing

Net (loss) gain on financial instruments

Other income, gains and losses

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Administrative and other expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic (HK dollar)

— Diluted (HK dollar)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR

EIEZETERA
LYE L ON

HEMAA

EH

BB ERA

TR T (BB EFIFE
HABYA ~ i 2 B 18
BREWMENFERINE

TR REME R
f5E R

(g AN E S
EBIEREREIESA

BR L Al A
BiIA

RE i A
THALREREE
A (E51R) -

ZA/NCIEZE N
FRER

BREF
-EARCGET)

-#5(8T)

5&6

16

20
19

10

11

14

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
246,625 188,871
156,606 130,021
20,280 14,117
176,886 144,138
(65,747) (55,310)
111,139 88,828
69,219 40,147
(69,387) 20,915
56,015 133,177
274,606 10,272
(312,016) (308,155)
(113,566) (67,424)
96,942 464,318
70,674 (79,229)
183,626 302,849
(1,477) (24)
182,149 302,825
182,488 303,238
(339) (413)
182,149 302,825
0.20 0.35
0.20 0.35




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e fRm M EMEE KSR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF

HK$/000 HK$'000
BET T AT IT

Profit for the year REEm A 182,149 302,825
Other comprehensive expense Hit 2 HEBAX
Item that will not be reclassified to profitor —~ T@EF HIEEEzm 7IHE :
loss:
Net (loss) gain on fair value changes of equity 57 &iZAFEFIER Mt AEAM
instruments designated as at fair value PHKRSEZBRATAZ XAFE
through other comprehensive income 28 (BR) RN FHE
(“FVTOCI”) (252,130) 189

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to & ] & B 7 B E 1875

profit or loss: ZIEF :
Exchange differences arising on deregistration &7t 85— B A 7 M E £ 2

of a subsidiary fEHE=H (2,785) =
Exchange differences arising on translation of E/FINER Z[EH =R

foreign operations 101,274 (63,153)
Share of translation reserve of associates and ~ JE{RE A 7] & & A RIAE fFE

joint ventures (8,098) 981
Other comprehensive expense for the year ~ AFEHM 2 EFH S (161,739) (61,983)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEE2EW =BT 20,410 240,842
Total comprehensive income (expense) THATRIEARFEE 2 E W

for the year attributable to: (Fx)#a%E -

Owners of the Company RRBERA 19,802 241,254

Non-controlling interests FEPRR M £ 608 (412)

20,410 240,842

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018



CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

(at 31st March, 2018) (R=ZF—/\&F=HA=+—H)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Equity investments

Interests in joint ventures
Amounts due from joint ventures
Interests in associates

Amounts due from associates
Other loan receivables

Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories — food, beverages and general
stores

Deposits paid for acquisition of leasehold
land

Stock of properties

Other loan receivables

Amount due from a joint venture

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Equity investments

Debt investment

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accrued charges
Amount due to an associate
Tax payables
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR

FRBEE
VI - R
BREME
PR E
INN=—UNCIP&: £
FEW & & R BIFR
N YNCIPA: £
& Wi Bt 2 R B 5O0R
H it R U E 5K
Hﬂlﬁ% Gl yNCIpd
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HitIFRBEE
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WERE Ty BES
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FEUWERTR - 1RE RIAN IR
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RBAE
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FES — B = R R RIR
FESTIE
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HibfgE

RBEEFE

REERRBAE

Notes

B &E

15
16
17
19
19
20
20
21

20
22

23
24
21
19
25
17
18
26

27
20

29

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
943,586 800,409
900,000 754,000
110,633 255,020
1,088,564 1,093,094
435,194 598,584
1,806,774 2,003,907
9,097 91,686
752,324 667,235
159,000
140,588 128,434
6,345,760 6,392,369
732 768
371,684 338,463
799,273 731,373
150,000 -
274,155 -
155,713 158,285
277,745 84,577
- 7,960
608,334 1,728,748
2,637,636 3,050,174
117,430 164,187
132,532 418,915
181,292 177,550
65 109
1,334,761 1,464,526
1,766,080 2,225,287
871,556 824,887
7,217,316 7,217,256




CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R MBI R

(at 31st March, 2018) (W=ZF—//\&F=A=+1—H)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E BT T BT
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Loan notes — due after one year —FRBE s ERERE 28 1,538,209 1,515,550
Obligations under finance leases —FRIMMEEE AR
— due after one year 60 126
Bank and other borrowings —F RN RITR
— due after one year HiEE 29 142,139 124,154
1,680,408 1,639,830
5,536,908 5,577,426
Capital and reserves BRAER FE
Share capital %N 31 9,377 8,873
Reserves B 5,523,278 5,565,402
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 782 RI# A A JE(L#E = 5,532,655 5,574,275
Non-controlling interests JEFERR = 4,253 3,151

5,536,908 5,577,426

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 207 were  £84Z207 EFf&ifZ & MBHREREN_Z—/\
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26th ~ F/XAZ+/"ABRESSHMERTETE - I

June, 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: HTIERRREE
CHEUNG HON KIT CHEUNG CHI KIT
RIER REH
CHAIRMAN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FE HITEFE
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A s L 4
FeEEmEER

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company
ALAREEARESD
Share-
based
payment
reserve

Investment
revaluation Non-
reserve Special  Translation  Retained controlling
HRAKA BE&  reeve  resene profits Total interests Total
xfEf  EGEBE  SHBE  AEEE  REEd Gt FERER &5t

Capital

redemption

Contributed reserve
surplus  FRARE
HABH 1]
HK§'000  HK$'000

Share Share

premium

capital

B&  RiEE

HK§'000  HKS$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK§000

BETT

AR

HKS000  HKS'000
BT BET

HK§'000
BETT

HKS'000
= =

AT

AETT

HKS'000
AETT

AR

At Tst April, 2016 RZZ-AEBA-R 8,602 3,099,694 113,020 9,185 2928 (271,831 (8,908) (8,641) 2,572,700 5,516,749 (1,851) 5,514,898
Profit (loss) or the year RERER (BR) - - = - - - - - 33B8 30338 (13) 302825
Net gain on fai value changes of equity instruments 8 ARAFEFIERETA

designated as at VTOCI Afp2EREZRETIAZ

AVERDETFE - = = = = 189 = = - 189 - 189

Exchange diflerences arising on tanslation of forefgn ~~ AZGH £ ES£E

operations - - - - - - - 63,154) - (63,154) 1 63,153)
Share of transation reserve of associates and joint EEBEARRARATRERE

ventures - - - - - - - 981 - 981 - 981
Total comprehensive income (expense) for theyear A% [E 2 EliE () 48 - - - - - 189 - 62173) 303238 241,054 (412 240842
Exercise of share options friziE 4 1317 - - (225) - - = = 1,0% = 1,0%
Capital injection from a non-controlling interest ~REREE AN = = = = = = - - - - 6,785 6,785
Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend scheme for — BIEGAR A B5F 8RR G

~2016final dividend - TRAERERE M 68403 = = = - - - - 68667 - 68667

- 2017 inerim dividend - R EERERE 3 7,052 - - - - - - - 705 - 70
Transfe of apse of share options REREEAEER - - = = (81) = = = 81 = - -
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) e 2 R (it 13) - - - - - - - - (260566)  (260,566) - (260566)
Acquisiion of additional iterests in a subsidiary from ~ [1—&3E 2R

anon-controlling interest —EHEARZES - - - = - = = - = L
At31st March, 2017 RZE-t5=f=1-H 8,673 3,176,486 113,020 9,185 2620 (271,642) (8,908) (70,814)  2,615453 5574275 3151 5577426
Proit(loss) for the year REREH (5E) - - - - - - - - 1488 182,488 (339 182149
Netloss on fair value changes of equity instruments 8 ARAFETIEREFA

designated as at VTOCI Ef2EMEZRATEL

ATESHEREE - - - - - (252,130) - - - (252,130) - (252,130)

Exchange differences arising on deregistration of Rt -RHBAAREL

asubsidiary EizR - - - - - - - 2,785) - (2,785) - 2,785)
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign ~ AEFNERVESZE

operations - - - - - - - 100327 - 100,327 947 101,274
Share of translation reserve of associates and joint EEBREARRAEAAERE

ventures - - - - - - - (8,098) - (8,098) - (8,098)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AR 2 () hatE - - - - - (130 - 944 182488 19802 608 20410
Evercise of share options friRiBsE 1 216 - - (37 - - - - 180 - 180
Issue of shares pursuant o scrip dividend scheme for — BIESAR( B3 BT A

2017 final dividend -ZE-ERERE ” 75184 - - - - - - Y] - T5

- 2018firstiterm dividend - TR \EE-RRARE B2 6113 - - - - - - - 6367 - 6367
Transfe from investment revaluation reserve upon REERERRATEIRRA

disposal of financial assets designed as FVTOCI Efp2EdE, SHARR

(Note 17) SEERASERRE(WE1) - - - - - 304108 - - (304108 - - -
Transfe of apse of share options REREX R ER - - - - (258) - - - 2585 - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) e 2 B (it 13) - - - - - - - - (197.924)  (197,924) - (1979)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from  [FEARIEREEE

non-controlling interests WRARZ - - - - - - - - (500) (500) 494 )
At31st March, 2018 RZB-\#=f=1-R 9377 3,313,021 113,020 9,185 - (219,664 (8,908) 18,630 2.297.994 5,332,655 4253 5,536,908

note:

of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the

Special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value

M AREFHNREEAARTARER - NANFEES
BB HTE AR 2 RAEEEAR B ETEAR

BZBRARERER 2 EHE

share capital of the Company issued as consideration under the group
reorganisation in 1994.

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED EEMESEBARAR



CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

melReRnER

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before taxation R B BT S A 183,626 302,849
Adjustments for: AEIER :
Allowance for doubtful debts RERB B - 97
Decrease (increase) in fair values of BAFET R R AR
financial assets at fair value through (MR AFEYER R AEBZE])
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ZEREENTERD (EM) 69,907 (24,600)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - R NEREBITE
equipment 30,444 17,161
Exchange differences arising on HeF i —EM B AR mEEL L
deregistration of a subsidiary EHER (2,785) -
Finance costs MsER 113,566 67,424
Gain on derivative financial instrument PTESRI A AN - (54,233)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - B KRR 2 5
equipment (924) =
Interest income MESA (46,963) (47,036)
Loss on repayment of loan notes BEEFERZEE - 7,840
Net foreign exchange loss bE H B E R 16,408 -
Net increase in fair value of investment KEWEZ N THEEIHE
properties (274,606) (10,272)
Share of results of associates JEARHR & R B RAR (96,942) (464,318)
Share of results of joint ventures e & RNEIRE (70,674) 79,229
Operating cash flows before movements in ~ REt&EE S E A2
working capital REXBHRIRE (78,943) (125,859)
Increase in other non-current assets HAthIE B & E L N (800) (800)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD () 36 (193)
Increase in deposit paid for acquisition of W BT & £ 3 2 B RS 1N
leasehold land (2,996) () A
Increase in stock of properties MEFEEM (64,887) (248,622)
Increase in other loan receivables H A EYC S FIE N (228,000) (248,530
Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUTERFK « & E K TBS FIBIE AN (3,307) (13,431)
Increase in equity investments g Eog= gyl (262,876) (47,319
Decrease in debt investments ERERER D 7,813 -
Decrease in creditors, deposits and accrued — JEfTERER « 124 KBTI SR
charges (46,815) (944)
Cash used in operations REPFER S (680,775) (689,142)
Interest paid ERAE (109,559) (36,382)
Tax paid B HIE (285) (76)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBMERSFE
ACTIVITIES (790,619) (725,600)

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018




CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meaReRER

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (EHZ - —\F=A=1+—HI-FE)

2018 2017
—E-N\E T —tF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E BETT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX®
Dividend from associates ik YN ) 5\ 464,025 833,340
Dividend from joint ventures BERAIZIRE 167,448 85,000
Repayment from joint ventures BERNAIEK 51,485 6,870
Interest received B W B 22,400 32,827
Proceed from disposal of equity investments & J& 418 & Fr1S 5008 6,545 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - B RRE
plant and equipment FriSskIE 2,360 27
Advance to associates BT HEE N F] (298,794) (275,765)
Advance to joint ventures BARFEZLNA (190,580) (136,641)
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate W is — = A5 2
Bz (159,000) -
Purchase of equity securities BERER S (114,226) (21,409)
Investments in associates NN = (70,210) (14,000)
Additions to investment properties NEREME (24,576) (45,194)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE ¥ % « H  :& & (20,602) (43,013)
Investments in joint ventures REERAIZIKRE (2,339) (528,513)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yo B P B 2 &) 36 - (78,959)
Purchase of other non-current assets BEEMIERIEE - (1,854)
Compensation received on land resumption  BtUe[E +ith > B Yk E - 345,000
Refundable earnest money received B TRERES - 23,923

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REXK (FTR)FBREE

ACTIVITIES R (166,064) 181,639
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXK
New bank and other borrowings raised FIBIRITREMEER 320,567 963,876
Net proceed from issue of shares BATIRGD PRASFIRF 5 180 1,096
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITNEMEE (449,710) (428,198)
Dividends paid BT E (61,102) (184,824)
Repayment of obligations under finance BERMEHEHAIE

leases (110 (112)
Acquisition of additional interests in EEZEDEE Fadec

subsidiaries from non-controlling interests [ /& A &) 2 #25 (6) (1,371)
Repayment of loan notes BRERRERE - (200,000)
Net proceeds from loan notes EREBRSTIRFH - 1,508,846
Capital injection from a non-controlling —HIEREECEREE

interest - 6,785

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING @& X% (FiA)fERS
ACTIVITIES HE (190,181) 1,666,098

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ ErEESEER AR



CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

melReRnER

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF

HK$/000 HK$'000
BET T AT IT

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HERBELZEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2) B niF5E (1,146,864) 1,122,137
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZEER

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Re&%HEER 1,728,748 615,357
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EREFH o HE

CHANGES 26,450 (8,746)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REKRKZEHER

THE END OF THE YEAR, HEeEEER -

represented by bank balances and cash FIRTTHEBRRIRE 608,334 1,728,748

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

s

GENERAL

ITC Properties Group Limited is a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and the issued shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 199) (the “Company”). The
ultimate controlling shareholders (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”)) of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
are Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and his associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development and
investment in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”),
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC (“Macau”),
Canada and the United Kingdom; development of, investment
in and operation of hotels and leisure business in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Canada; securities investments and provision
of loan financing services. The principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs

2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HZE—F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)(Cont’d)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in Note 35. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in Note 35, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A SRR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs and Interpretations that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HZE—F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective(Cont’d)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by observable evidence that a change in
use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change
in use, and that a change in use is possible for properties under
construction. For example, change in use for transfer from
properties under development for sale in the ordinary course of
business to investment properties could be evidenced by
inception of an operating lease to another party. Currently, the
Group accounts for such transfer only upon commencement of
an operating lease.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments will result in early recognition of such transfers on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should there be a change in use of any of its properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A SRR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 (“HKFRS 9 (2009)”) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and was early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on Tst April, 2014. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 (“HKFRS 9 (2014)”) mainly to
include a) impairment requirements and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a FVTOCI measurement category for certain simple
debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) which are relevant to the
Group are:

] in relation to the impairment of financial assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKFRS 9 (2009).
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

J In addition to the requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009), debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31st March, 2018, the Directors
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application
of HKFRS 9 (2014):

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 (2014) will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2014) by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected credit
loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated
amount of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at
1st April, 2018 would be increased as compared to the
accumulated amount recognised under HKFRS 9 (2009) mainly
attributable to expected credit losses provision on debtors and
deposits, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
associates, other loan receivables and bank balances, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained profits at 1st April, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract
e Step3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract
Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

e Step5:

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Upon application HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing and operating cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A SRR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31st March, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$170,125,000 as disclosed
in Note 38. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$21,284,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$1,522,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

J Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combination (Cont’d)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

J assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009) are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9 (2009), the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation

to its interest in a joint operation:

J its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

J its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

J its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

J its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Interest in a joint operation (Cont’d)

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets),
the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses
until it resells those assets to a third party.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food and banquet
operations are recognised when the services are provided.

Sales of securities investments are recognised when the related
bought and sold notes are executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Consultancy fees are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance lease) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing (Cont’d)

Leasehold land and building (Cont’d)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests
in associates and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Club memberships are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is any indication that they may be impaired
by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. If the recoverable amount of club memberships is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the club memberships is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the club memberships is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed original cost. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Stock of properties

Properties under development which are developed for future
sale in the ordinary course of business and completed
properties held for sale are classified as current assets and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to professional
valuations or Directors’ estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
other income, gains and losses except for interest income on
other loan receivables, which is included in income from loan
financing.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates such investment that is not held for
trading as FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is held for trading if it has been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss and included in net
(loss) gain on financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument by instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.

Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held for trading.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTOCI (Cont'd)

The Group has designated certain investments in equity
investments (listed or unlisted) that are not held for trading as at
FVTOCI on initial application of HKFRS 9 (2009).

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established in accordance with HKAS 18,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends earned are recognised in
profit or loss and are included in net (loss) gain on financial
instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL and FVTOCI, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

] it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment of trade debtors could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 60 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor or
an other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for a financial
asset that is classified as at FVTOCI, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity reserve is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including creditors and deposits, amount
due to an associate, loan notes and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(ii)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re VB HRAR N

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment losses on non-financial assets (Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying

impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. TR o
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying e REEEEEEE @ BEE (si—
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to SEASEMN) ZEMEKEEERKE4S%E

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the ZRIEET(HET - I N2 2 BREE TS
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amount that would have been determined had no impairment ) REEE AERAEFEE Y ER
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in B o S5 (EE5 18 5 O BN A I8 25 FERT o
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR M R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (H=—Z

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance on other loan receivables

The Directors perform ongoing evaluation of collectability in
assessing the ultimate realisation of the other loan receivables,
including the repayment history, subsequent settlements,
financial conditions and current creditworthiness of each
borrower. Where the financial conditions of the borrowers were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make repayments, allowance may arise. As at 31st March,
2018, the carrying amount of other loan receivables was
HK$902,324,000 (2017: HK$667,235,000). No allowance was
provided for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A SRR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties was based on valuation
on these properties conducted by independent professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
and corresponding fair value changes reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31st March, 2018,
investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their fair values of HK$900,000,000
(2017: HK$754,000,000).

Amounts due from joint ventures and associates

As at 31st March, 2018, the carrying amounts of amounts due
from joint ventures and associates were HK$709,349,000
(2017: HK$598,584,000) and HK$9,097,000 (2017:
HK$91,686,000), respectively. The Group continuously
monitors the financial positions of these joint ventures and
associates, and additional allowances may be considered if the
financial conditions of these joint ventures and associates were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. DH¥ER

The segment information reported externally was analysed on §1§|\¥|§¢Z/\fzg§ﬂ;§$;ﬁk@ A48 2T P
the basis of the goods and services delivered or provided by the R SRAZ M T B N RS A EL T
Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with the ﬁ*ﬁ B TEE(TEREREE
internal information that is regularly reviewed by the executive BRIBREE | REBESI R RIR LG
Directors, the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), TMEHER ~ AZEEE — B o |t JyAE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of B A EE . HhSIEEIRIZIRNE
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, ERRBREEEAEE -

whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are as follows: REBZ AT MERKEEDFWAT :

Property - development of and investment in JES - VEBRRKE
properties

Hotel and leisure —  development of, investment in and BERER - BR RERKE
operation of hotels and resorts B E ME R

Securities investments —  trading and investment of EFRE - BFZEBEERKRE
securities

Finance -~ provision of loan financing BE - REEFRERS
services

Information regarding these segments is reported below: BEZED 2 ERRENT ¢

For the year ended 31st March, 2018 BE-_Z—N\E=A=+—HLEE

Segment

results:

Share of profit

Operating Share of results (loss)

Segment profit  results of of joint  Finance before
revenue (loss) associates  ventures costs taxation

S

e BRBEAT
A EEmE  EGESE A
AlE  (BR) 2QFEXE QFRXE HBER (1)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETR BETr BETR B%Tr BETx

(note a) (note b)

(Mf&Fa) (HiEED)
Property (note c) W (eEc) 20,280 303,518 104,058 41,291  (17,859) 431,008
Hotel and leisure (note d) JBJE K& JEH (HizEd) 156,606  (29,748) (7,116) 97,102 (13,680) 46,558
Securities investments BHRE 520 (70,013) - - - (70,013)
Finance B 69,219 73,975 - - - 73,975
SEGMENT TOTAL 2Rt 246,625 277,732 96,942 138,393  (31,539) 481,528
Unallocated APEED - (148,156) - (67,719)  (82,027) (297,902)
GROUP TOTAL E@EALT 246,625 129,576 96,942 70,674 (113,566) 183,626
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Segment  Operating
revenue  profit (loss)

AEkE RN (BR)
HK$'000  HK$'000
AETT BETE

DEER (&)
BE_FTLF=HA=T—HILFE

Share of
results of
associates

T
GIESS
HK$'000
BT

Segment
results:

Share of profit

results (loss)

of joint Finance before
ventures costs taxation
DERE

e BRBiAT
REEE  HHER EN(ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BTt EBETR

(note a) (note b)

(Fifzta) rd)
Property (note c) % (M) 14,117 64,830 470,514 (13,958)  (16,818) 504,568
Hotel and leisure (note d) /& R AR (i d) 130,021 (9,391) (6,196) 5,350 (12,883)  (23,120)
Securities investments EHRE 4,586 19,938 = = = 19,938
Finance FE 40,147 43,731 - - - 43,731
SEGMENT TOTAL et 188,871 119,108 464,318 (8,608) (29,701) 545,117
Unallocated ADEHS - (133,924) - (70,621) (37,723) (242,268)
GROUP TOTAL SEA 188,871 (14,816) 464,318 (79,229) (67,424) 302,849
notes: BfzE -
(@  Revenue as set out above comprised rental income, properties commission (@  EXBERREEFAESEA  BERS

income, building management fee income, hotel operation income, loan
financing income, dividend income from equity investments and increase
in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL disposed of during the year. All
segment revenue is from external customers.

(b) The aggregate of the segment results as set out above comprised the profit
(loss) before taxation from each segment without allocation of certain
other income, gains and losses, certain administrative and other expenses,
certain share of results of joint ventures and certain finance costs.

() During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the segment result of property
segment included increase in fair value of investment properties of
HK$274,606,000 (2017: HK$10,272,000).

(d) During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the segment result of hotel and
leisure segment included share of increase in fair value of investment
properties held by a joint venture amounting to HK$80,000,000 (2017:
Nil).

(d)

WA - REERBRA  BEXBKRA B
HBERA - BERERSBRAREERZA
FEIREGABRGZ EMEEL R FER
B0 e BT 2 B a9 2R B ANERR P ©

EXFr# D BB A BIEE D R Z R TAT
wAM(E1R) - BEARDEE TEMKRA - EF
KRB ETTRREMER BETEHES
ERAEEURETHBER -

BE_Z—\F=A=t—BHILLFE Y%
DEZ D BEERITFREMEZ AT AN
75 #274,606,000L( =T — £ F: B
10,272,0007C) ©

HE_Z-—N\F=ZA=+—RHALFE B
EHEBABz o BEELEEE—HEEA
AT REMEZATFTEE MBE
80,000,000 7T (ZF—+H4 : ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ERR M A

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. The
CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on the profit (loss) before taxation of the group entities
engaged in the respective segment activities which represents
the segment results. Segment results are analysed before

taxation whereas tax payable is allocated to operating segment
liabilities. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

5.

TEER (&)
i%%ﬁﬁ[ﬁz TR 3 AT AN &
BEHBR - T2LERKER
#1&?**@%"*&%@2’%.&%2&%
Hanm A (E1R) (B0 & %4E) fHE =
DEBZRIR > D EPFRE TIR IR TLIRA
ETON AMENHBARDEELE
DHEEME o WHRAEREERKEER
U E RS i e KB FHE 21616

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERAERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities REBEIRARE QLB DI 2D 2 EE
by reportable and operating segment: REBESWINT :
Segment assets Segment liabilities
PEMEE SEEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F Z=EB-N\F —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT B®TR BETR
Property LI ES 4,498,865 4,471,087 1,094,620 1,539,527
Hotel and leisure B IE KB R 2,091,728 1,963,201 751,749 750,139
Securities investments BHRE 388,384 347,662 4,042 3,963
Finance & 942,111 675,566 1,275 25
Segment total 2 Eb AT 7,921,088 7,457,516 1,851,686 2,293,654
Unallocated: RO BECER S
Bank balances and cash  $R174& 8% MRS 608,334 1,728,748 - =
Loan notes E%’/{E‘% - - 1,538,209 1,515,550
Accrued coupon interest EREEEFTES
on loan notes - - 34,581 34,246
Others HAit 453,974 256,279 22,012 21,667
Total wt 8,983,396 9,442,543 3,446,488 3,865,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) FUEERERE(E)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

REEDBREARDEDHFEER

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than .

MBEEONEEZRENE S

certain property, plant and equipment, deposit paid for
acquisition of an associate, certain other non-current
assets, certain debtors, deposits and prepayments of the
corporate offices, certain interests in joint ventures,
certain amounts due from joint ventures and bank
balances and cash; and

all liabilities including tax payables are allocated to
operating segments other than loan notes and its accrued
coupon interest, certain creditors, deposits and accrued
charges and obligations under finance leases of the

THE - B EERE - B
BRARIZENERE  BHTHMIER
BEE  BTRBZEERNR &
EREMNFKIE ETRELERF L
s B TRKRSEARFIRER
TTRBIREHRIN - R

MAERBERRESREDDEEL
B ETHRBZENERER ek
FERT RIS A R B E R EASERRSD

corporate offices.

Other segment information

Hth 7 &P &R

Additions to property, Depreciation Increase
plant and equipment and of property, in fair value of
investment properties plant and equipment investment properties Interest income
REME - R ESE 1]
REURRENE RRGEHE REMEDFEEM IECON
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“®-\F -3-tF ZR-\F -T-tF ZR-\F -T-tF -R-N\F —I-tF
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  B%TL  E%Tn BT B¥Tn  E¥Tx E¥TRn B%Tro
Property S 41,580 45,975 16,229 8,694 274,606 10,272 20,086 19,944
Hotel and leisure BIE KB 76 43,010 11,781 6,138 - - 19,822 20,264
Securities investments EHRE - - - - - - 400 504
Finance BE - - - - - - 74,032 43,808
41,656 88,985 28,010 14,832 274,606 10,272 114,340 84,520
Unallocated ROEHD 4,621 3,188 2,434 2,329 - - 1,842 2,663
Total e 46,277 92,173 30,444 17,161 274,606 10,272 116,182 87,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR M s R Mo

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. oEER (&)

Geographical information it B &R

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on REBKXKBINEEP ZNBIEMERK
location of properties and goods delivered or services delivered NEYSRE AR EIETEEE
and information about its non-current assets, excluding (TEESHEE) BHIREE 2B AL
financial assets, by physical location of the assets are detailed BEEHOT -

below:

Revenue from Carrying amount of
external customers non-current assets

RENBEF ZWH FRBEEZREE

2018 2017 2018 2017
—E2-NF —ZT—tF ZEB-N\FE ZZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
BT T ST T BT T ST IT

Hong Kong B 233,325 183,467 2,660,292 2,140,843
Macau R - - 1,151,135 1,496,441
PRC e - - 450,331 451,653
Canada nEX - - 583,709 566,597
Others Hih 13,300 5,404 95,747 39,166
246,625 188,871 4,941,214 4,694,700
Information about major customers FRXTERFZER
During the year, the Group included only one customer (2017: REERN AEEEF—E2FF(ZE
Nil) with whom transaction has exceeded 10 per cent (“%") of —tF B) 2R GBEAEEWREB
the Group's revenue. 10% °

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT

Customer A ZPA 47,500 N/A i A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

6. REVENUE 6. Ukzs

Revenue includes rental income, properties commission WHBEERZESKA - MEBEI
income, building management fee income, revenue from hotel A ABEEEBIWA  KREABEEEBEY
operations, loan financing income, dividend income from W5 BEZEEWA - BERE RS
equity investments and increase in fair values of financial assets WA R EEAT@ESE R ABZE Y
at FVTPL disposed of during the year. S RVEEZ NFER o

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts received WstE R 85 =72 W R EW R IEFEEE
and receivable from third parties. An analysis of the Group’s TR o NEBAEE ZWEESTOT

revenue for the year is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+5F

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Rental income AL UWA 16,436 13,822
Properties commission income MERESA 3,420 148
Building management fee income AEEEEBRA 424 147
Revenue from property segment REYED S 2 W= 20,280 14,117
Revenue from hotel and leisure segment 2 B8 5 K2 58 0 26 2 U 5 156,606 130,021
Revenue from securities investments REBHEREDE 2 Was - B -
segment representing:
— Dividend income from equity - AR E Z R BMA
investments 520 4,155
— Increase in fair values of financial - FRHERATEIRR
assets at FVTPL disposed of during STABRCEREEL
the year NFEIE N - 431
Revenue from finance segment RERE D302 W
representing loan interest income BIE A B WA 69,219 40,147
246,625 188,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

NET (LOSS) GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. BIA(HE)EANEE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—+&

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

(Decrease) increase in fair values of BRAFEIIREG AR
financial assets at FVTPL: TREBELIAFECED) B
— held at the end of the reporting period ~ — R¥REBIRFH (67,853) 24,169
— disposed of/matured during the year — FRHE BIH (2,054) 431
(69,907) 24,600
Dividend income from equity investments  BX#EIE 2 B 5 U A 520 4,155
Loss on repayment of loan notes BEEENREE 2 EBE
(Note 28(a)) (FfE28()) - (7,840)
(69,387) 20,915
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HA - RBFREE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Bank interest income HRITHEWA 1,842 2,663
Consultancy fee income EISE- LN 13,480 26,455
Net foreign exchange loss bE H 1R F AR (17,171) (2,290)
Interest income on amounts due from IS &R RIFRIEZ
joint ventures (Note 41(i)) FEWA (FFE413) 39,908 38,850
Interest income on consideration receivable & A& 2 5] BUg A - 1,358
Other interest income Hfth ) S U4ZA 5,213 4,165
Gain on derivative financial instrument TTHESRT A 2% F
(Note 19) (MtsE19) - 54,233
Exchange differences arising on iH— B AR mEL
deregistration of a subsidiary ZIERER 2,785 -
Others HAth 9,958 Uil
56,015 133,177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. BXKEH

2018 2017
—¥-\F 2%

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Effective interest on loan notes (Note 28) B ZEig » BEEF 8 (M5£28) 82,017 40,527
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEZH S 35,651 32,341
Interest on obligations under finance leases & & & & 2 7 & 10 17
Total borrowing costs BIEEKA 117,678 72,885
Less: amounts capitalised in qualifying W HEENMEGRHZEE
assets 2 HERENEE (4,112) (5,461)
113,566 67,424
10. TAXATION 10. BiE

2018 2017
—E-—N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Hong Kong Profits Tax: FEMEHR
Current tax REAFL IR 1,556 -
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFE (BREE) BHETRE (79) 24

1,477 24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

TAXATION (Cont'd) 10. BIE (@)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated WIEFE 2 BBMER TGt FERT
assessable profits for both years. A2 16.5%5THE o

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for g A P S AE B 22 B0 % A1 2 B 2 B B 1B
prior year as the assessable profit was wholly absorbed by tax B2EKY W EEXEREEFN
losses brought forward. 1SHGHRRE -

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates RNEMBEEEERES 2B TIRAH
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. AEEERITETE -

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made B P 1 € B S M {r] FE SR BDE A - iR
as there was no assessable profits for both years. WERE M DA EER 2 FHIE R -
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AEEHETHAGSEEMNEMEH
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss W KRR BB AR 2 SR T -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$000 HK$'000
BET T AT

Profit before taxation R A5 B A 183,626 302,849
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBMNEHRE16.5%

at 16.5% STE 2 HIA 30,298 49,970
Tax effect of share of results of /NI N /NG|

joint ventures and associates BTGB E (27,657) (63,540)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for — NAIHF S 2 FRIFH L

tax purpose 4,827 6,749
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERTIMA Z I E

purpose (62,023) (23,052)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFE (GRRERE) BETR (79) 24
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERRIBER RS2 62,355 34,974
Utilisation of tax losses previously )AL AT AR TR 2 IR & 18

not recognised (note) GE) (2,979) (3,202)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ REAMENEEEELL 2

operating in other jurisdictions MEBARREIRzFE (3,265) (1,899)
Tax charge for the year REEHIAXH 1,477 24
note: During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the tax losses utilised were W : 2T N\F=A=+—HIEE B2F

HK$18,055,000 (2017: HK$19,406,000). T EE1E R % 18,055,000 L (= F —+

4F ¢ 7% 19,406,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. AEEEF

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Profit for the year has been arrived at REZHMEMERGTA) -
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration BN N &

— current year RN 5,908 4,766

— under(over)provision in previous years — —iB{EFEEEEH T E (REEREE) 107 77)

6,015 4,689

Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) EEEE (H3E12) 44,158 38,110
Other staff costs: H 8 TR

Salaries and other benefits e REAMmREN 114,333 123,142

Retirement benefits scheme contributions  E/R4&Fl 51 S 3% 5,095 3,937
Total staff costs B T ZA4%8 163,586 165,189
Gross rental income BESEA (16,436) (13,822)
Less: direct operating expenses that W FAEERESKRAZ

generated rental income during HEZEMX
the year 3,499 3,841
(12,937) (9,981)

Depreciation of property, plant and YIS - B RS ETE

equipment 30,444 17,161
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERBFZ 2 FEKA

expense 8,525 8,673
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - #2125

plant and equipment (924) -
Allowance for doubtful debts (Note 25) RERB A (71 25) - 97
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR M s R Mo

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12, BEERIETHAEMEURES

AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AT

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments @ EERFIETHAENS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the BNSEMNNEG(—E—+4&F: )\
eight (2017: eight) Directors including chief executive for ZVEE(BEITETRAE) 2B
their services rendered to the Group were as follows: SEHESRIOT -

Other emoluments

it

Discretionary
and
performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total

henefits payments contributions  emoluments
HER
FEk BRE BIEN
kA HitfgRl HAzRe st B HeaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
BETn  EBTn  E¥Tr  E%Tn ERTx

(note (i)

(B W)
2018 —E-N\§
Executive Directors HITEE
Cheung Hon Kit Rz 10 3,480 16,000 18 19,508
Chan Fut Yan (note (i) ) 10 3,240 4,500 324 8,074
Cheung Chi Kit G 10 2,280 2,800 114 5,204
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BEEE 10 2,640 3,500 18 6,168
Wong Lai Shun, Benny =EIR 10 2,280 2,000 114 4,404

Independent Non-executive Directors &1/ 317& %

Chan Pak Cheong Afonso BB 300 - - - 300
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BRYL 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham Vol 300 - - - 300

850 13,920 28,800 588 44,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12, EE&EE EA{AQMQU\&EH
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Cont'd) AL (E)
(@ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (Cont’d) (@ EBEERFETHAEMS (&)

Other emoluments
Hit e

Discretionary

and
performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
BiER
HeRk R RIKTEA
e HiiRA By %e ATEIfR MetEsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BETT BETT
(note (i)
(PZE()
2017 g%
Executive Directors HiTEE
Cheung Hon Kit REH 10 3,480 16,000 18 19,508
Chan Fut Yan (note (ii) BRee 2. (Bt i) 10 3,240 4,500 324 8,074
Cheung Chi Kit R 10 2,280 2,800 114 5,204
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan RizE 120 - - - 120
Wong Lai Shun, Benny =E)E 10 2,280 2,000 114 4,404

Independent Non-executive Directors &1/ 3E8177 %

Chan Pak Cheong Afonso BB 300 - - - 300

Kwok Ka Lap, Alva iy 200 - - - 200

Shek Lai Him, Abraham higsk 300 - - - 300

960 11,280 25,300 570 38,110

notes: e

(i) The amounts included discretionary and performance related (i) ZeBeERMEFEREASEL
incentive payments which are determined with reference to the BEE BAARBRAUBLETSR
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable BB E 2 RIS R BRI A 2 4%
market statistics for both years. e

(i) Mr. Chan Fut Yan is considered as chief executive of the Company (i) FRBRBEETHRER/RERARZEELT
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services BAER  EXFIHEMEaERIER
rendered by him as the chief executive. EETHABFTRELZ IRISEN S -

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFRZATEENE B BRSE

for their services in connection with the management of AERARRF RAEEEBRMR

the affairs of the Company and the Group. % e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12, EENFETHRAEMEURES

AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d) HFMAL(E)
(@ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (Cont’d) @ EERIETHAEME(E)
The emoluments of the independent non-executive YR B ITEEME A
Directors shown above were for their services as BRERETESEK -
Directors.
There was no arrangement under which a Director or the RREEEN BEEHETETHA
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any EEST N T H AR E S R = R E
remuneration during both years. EI M -
(b) Employees’ emoluments b EEME
The employees’ emoluments are based on their EEMNE THIRES 2 BF K& &8
qualifications and experience, job nature and performance, TEMEE RERIBUAETSHINER
and under the pay scales aligned with market conditions. EBEo
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AREERSHFMZzZARZALTH |
the Group, five (2017: four) were Directors whose Z(ZE—+E IR BES - 1
emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note 12(a) EZ7MER EXHiE12@HE -
above. The emolument of the remaining one individual in RE—FEF #T—ZBATZHE
prior year was as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e hEMEF] - 1,440
Discretionary and performance 15 R B R IR AN 2 525
related incentive payments - 1,000
Retirement benefits scheme RIREAFT SR
contributions - 18
- 2,458
His emolument was within the following bands: B2 Me N FIATEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

Number of Number of
employees employees

BEAZ BEAK

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 782,000,001 TE

752,500,000 7T - 1
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RREFER - REELER TSR
Group to the five highest paid individuals and Directors, BReFMALREEINME  1F
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ARSI RFMAKR AR EFE
compensation for loss of office. Z RENSAERBERAIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

13. DISTRIBUTION 13. 2K

2018 2017
—BE-NE Tt

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Dividends recognised as distribution MAFEBRRIEDIR RS
during the year:
— 2018 first interim dividend, -BRNZ=Z— )\i% R A HR
paid — HK10 cents (2017: 2017 BB - AR E B 0l
interim dividend of HK10 cents) (Z=2—tF: —F—+tF
per ordinary share HERA B 1078 L) 91,447 88,498
- 2017 final dividend, paid — HK12 cents - 2Rt —ZE—+FKH
(2016: HK10 cents) per ordinary BB - B AR 2781l
share (ZZ—7"%F 1074l 106,477 86,034
— 2017 special dividend, paid - Nil - BRI ZE—EFER
(2016: HK10 cents) per ordinary BRE -E(ZT—REF:
share B R 1078(00) - 86,034
197,924 260,566
Dividends in form of: B
— Cash -AE 61,102 184,824
— Scrip shares (Note 31(b) & (c)) — AR R (Bt 5E31(b) K2 (c)) 136,822 75,742
197,924 260,566
Dividends declared/proposed in REEBEER BORZIKRE
respect of the year:
— declared 2018 second interim dividend - EE/kR—Z— /\F5 =)k H
— HK12 cents (2017: proposed IRE - FRCE EAR 12784l
2017 final dividend of (ZF—t5F : DR
HK12 cents) per ordinary share R FEREAKRET2
= (lip) 112,526 106,470
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board has RABRERRZ % BEFSELHARME
resolved to declare a second interim dividend of HK12 cents EF_T-)N\F=A=t— EHJ:iJ_L 5K
(2017: a proposed final dividend of HK12 cents) per share for FEZRFHREER2BW(ZZ
the year ended 31st March, 2018, which will be payable in F:BORARBABRE12EM) - BIAR
cash, with an option to elect scrip dividend of shares in respect TR - MEADEBREEUR O IARE 28
of all or part of such dividend. HEDBRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

14.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RATEEANELEERERNRBERT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the THERB A TSR E -

following data:

2018 2017
—=E-—N\EFE —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT

Earnings: B :
Earnings for the year attributable to owners F{ET E SREARREERF] 2
of the Company for the purposes of basic ~ ANA B A A5 AN EE 27
and diluted earnings per share 182,488 303,238

Number of shares: ROEE :
Weighted average number of shares for RESTESRERRF 2

the purpose of basic earnings per share I R 8 B 905,378,635 873,036,595
Effect of dilutive potential shares: Min 2 B g2

Share options HEherE - 123,819
Weighted average number of shares for ~ FA{EstEESREERF] 2

the purpose of diluted earnings per share  JI#EF ¥ i% 1D E B 905,378,635 873,160,414
note: P&t
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, AEEE_Z-N\F=A=+—H iirz&ﬁﬁﬁ
2018 did not consider the effect of exercise of the Company’s share options as the SRR EEEANRBREETEZZE -
exercise price of those share options was higher than the average market price of ERZEBREZTEESNRG FHWE -
shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - R RE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEL# HE GH- -%E
kEF MERE ET | "E @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BEFT BETT
CosT A
At 1st April, 2016 R=E—~FEA—H 236,829 0,716 4,652 14,071 262,268
Exchange adjustments B Ji AR - (52) (72) (155) (279)
Additions NE 41,502 - 675 2,961 45,138
Transfer from investment BRBRENE
properties (Note 16) (Mizt16) 557,153 - - - 557,153
Acquisition of a subsidiary EE—AHE R
(Note 36) (MzE36) - - 154 = 154
Disposals/written off HE /i = (3,924) (376) (156) (4,456)
At 31st March, 2017 RZE—+F=A=1-H 835,484 2,740 5,033 16,721 859,978
Fxchange adjustments B 5 A - 112 143 218 473
Additions NE 14,477 1,018 1,365 4,023 20,883
Transfer from investment BRAREME
properties (Note 16) (W 16) 154,000 - - - 154,000
Disposals/written off HE /s - (1,124) (439) (6,899) (8,462)
At31st March, 2018 “T-\FZA=T-8H 100391 2,746 6,102 14063 1,026,872
DEPRECIATION HE
At st April, 2016 RZZ—"5MA—E 29,782 6,402 3,374 7,498 47,056
Exchange adjustments B 5 A - @1 (49) (129) (219)
Provided for the year AEERE 14171 213 669 2,108 17,161
Eliminated on disposals/ HERH /W
written off - (3,924) (365) (140) (4,429)
At31st March, 2017 —F—+%¥=R=t-H 43,953 2,650 3,629 9,337 59,569
Exchange adjustments [ Ji AR - 66 68 165 299
Provided for the year KEEEE 27,196 163 722 2,363 30,444
Eliminated on disposals/ HERSH /W
written off - (1,124 (423) (5,479) (7,026)
At 31st March, 2018 R-Z-N\FZA=+-H 71,149 1,755 3,996 6,386 83,286
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31st March, 2018 R-_E-\F=ZR=1—H 932,812 991 2,106 7,677 943,586
At 31st March, 2017 “E—+E=f=1+—H 791,531 90 1,404 7,364 800,409

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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15.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over 50 years or the
remaining term of the
relevant lease, if shorter

Over 3 years or the
remaining term of the
relevant lease, if shorter

Over 3 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The leasehold land and buildings shown above are located in
Hong Kong under long leases.

At 31st March, 2018, the carrying values of furniture, fixtures
and equipment of the Group included an amount of
approximately HK$132,000 (2017: HK$242,000) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with
carrying values of approximately HK$929,200,000 (2017:
HK$787,706,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (EHZ - —\F=A=1+—HI-FE)

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWE

HK$'000
Completed investment properties EERIREYH BT T
FAIR VALUE DFE
At st April, 2016 RZZE—AFWHA—H 1,254,000
Additions INE 46,881
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note b) BEEsZ 35 - #k & 254 (FIsED) (557,153)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss ~ PEZEHER 2 AFELE N 10,272
At 31st March, 2017 RZF—tF=A=1+—H 754,000
Additions NE 25,394
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note b) & =¥ 3£ « A K 25485 (FI5ED) (154,000)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss A8z ER 2 A F{EHE N 274,606
At 31st March, 2018 RZF-NF=A=1+—H 900,000
notes: s -
(@)  The investment properties shown above are located in Hong Kong and @  AEATREREMEROUREERRERGE
held under long leases. ¥R -
The valuation of investment properties at 31st March, 2018 was valued by REVENR_ZE-—NF=A=+—H2ZMHE
Asset Appraisal Limited (2017: RHL Appraisal Limited and Asset Appraisal RN B TR B 2 B A ERT
Limited), an independent professional valuer not connected with the EEENEEMARAR(ZZE—1F  XF|
Group. TRHERM A R A R R =S E T ERER
BRAR)ETHE
(b)  During the year ended 31st March, 2018, investment properties with b)) BEZ-NF=A=+—HBIFE KE
carrying amount of HK$154,000,000 (2017: HK$557,153,000) were BARE 154,000,000 7T (ZF—+4F : B
transferred to property, plant and equipment as the management had 557,153,0007C) Z IR EMEEE =Y - #
changed the use of the properties to owner occupation purpose. The WEERRF  RAR/EEREDSY*RGHE
properties were valued by RHL Appraisal Limited (2017: Asset Appraisal REA - FAMFERERNEERERELE
Limited), an independent professional valuer not connected with the S HEEBEMKATEERERAR(Z
Group, at the date of transfer on the basis of direct comparison method T+ F PREBENERERERAFDRN
(2017: income capitalisation method or direct comparison method) and it BEEARAERLRA(ZT—1F : kA
was concluded that the carrying amounts approximated to their fair values BARMOESERLBOR) E1THE - WEHR
at the dates of transfer. EBRE AREERQFERE 2w
(c) At 31st March, 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s investment properties (© %:%—/\E\&:%—tﬁzﬁ] ?+_ B
had been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. AREEHREMREAR - (FRAKREN
BERRITRIE 2 B e
o) d) REZERLAAREMERTFEZMZAR

The unrealised gain on property revaluation recognised in profit or loss for
the year amounted to HK$250,606,000 (2017: HK$8,522,000) which was
arisen from the investment property held at the end of the reporting
period.

IR Y B (H ) B 250,606,000 7T (=
T—+F : #B¥8,522,0007T) Jh AR R 2
RIFARIREMEMEE ©

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ ErEESEER AR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 16. BEWE (&)
Followings are the key inputs used in valuing the investment UWFTE-_ZE—N\ERE_Z—+F=H1
properties as at 31st March, 2018 and 2017: =+ AEREYEGHEFRREETEn AY
5

Relationship of

Fair value Key Range or unobservable inputs

Category hierarchy Fair value as at Valuation techniques unobservable inputs  weighted average  to fair value
IREEER BiBERARE

£5 AYEER RTIRMZAYE  fHERE BARE HEANETIE HAYEZBR
31.3.2018 31.3.2017
B\ —Et%
ZA=t-B =A=t-H
HK$/000 HK$'000
BER BETR

Completed investment properties

BERRENF
(i) Carparksin Hong Kong  Level 2 - 6,000 Direct Comparison Method ~ N/A N/A N/A
BBRES B4 based on average of TER TER TNER
market observable
transactions of similar
properties
RERENF 2T
MEABER 53R
BREEE
(i)~ Commercial propertiesin  Level 3 900,000 748,000 Direct Comparison Method - Adjusting factors on ~ Adjusting factors  The higher the
Hong Kong =R based on the average locations and ranging from 85%  adjusting factor, the
EREENE market observable conditions to 114% (2017: higher the fair value
transactions of similar RHERARAE  ranging fom85% ABAEZES @ A
properties after applying ~ F% to 115%) TE#S
adjusting factors to reflect HERENT
the conditions and 85% £ 114%
locations of the subject (Z2—tfF:
properties N 85% %
RAERZURRER 115%)
MEZINRRIBEER
BRENZ 25
UERRSRAEEL
R

900,000 754,000

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (EHZ - —\F=A=1+—HI-FE)

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 16. WEWHE (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of investment
properties are as follows:

FBAFEFEZREMEHRNT

HK$'000
BT

At st April, 2016 RZZE—RFMNA—AR 1,249,800
Additions B 46,881

Transfer to property, plant and equipment SRS YNE MR R (557,153)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBHER 2 N FEE N 8,472

At 31st March, 2017 R-B—+tHF=H=1T—H 748,000
Additions INE 25,394
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE - W ERE (148,000)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss PMBRTER 2 A FEIE N 274,606
At 31st March, 2018 R—F—-N\F=A=+—H 900,000

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the
Directors have set up a valuation team which is headed up by
the financial controller of the Company to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

There were no changes from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

REFEHRBYEZ X FER  EFEKTL
BHARBMFRERE 2 EERK - A
BREa A ATEFEZHETERBA
2% -

PrAMEDEEEFRL L EEE

FR - F=RAEEBEALEL -

REEETIEZA FHEHT MERZE&RE R
RIERZSBATA

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ ErEESEER AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

17.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong B LR
Unlisted equity securities in overseas BINE ETHRRANE
Unlisted investment funds in overseas BHINELTIRERES
Analysed as: DR
Current mE
Non-current FEMED
Classified as: DR -
FVTOCI BATEIR R AR
gl g
FVTPL BERFEIIRERTABRS

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based on
the closing prices quoted in active markets in Hong Kong.

The above unlisted equity securities and unlisted investment
funds represent investments in securities and funds issued by
private entities incorporated in overseas. The unlisted equity
securities and unlisted investment funds are measured at fair
value.

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the Group has
disposed of and subscribed for the shares of South Shore
Holdings Limited (“South Shore”, formerly known as The 13
Holdings Limited), being equity investments designated at
FVTOCI, at fair value of HK$6,545,000 (2017: Nil) and
HK$112,277,000 (2017: Nil), respectively, with a view to lower
its average investment cost of such equity investments in the
long run. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 19th March, 2018. As a result of the disposal,
cumulative losses of HK$304,108,000 were transferred from
the investment revaluation reserve to the retained profits.

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018

17. BRERE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
351,016 302,171
30,300 30,700
7,062 6,726
388,378 339,597
277,745 84,577
110,633 255,020
388,378 339,597
103,571 249,969
284,807 89,628
388,378 339,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

18. DEBT INVESTMENT 18. BREEE
The amount represented notes listed in overseas carrying ERFIBENETEFNX65EEZE
interest at the fixed rate of 6.5% per annum which were INETEE REBEE_ZEZ—N\E=A
matured and fully repaid during the year ended 31st March, =+ HBIFEECRHUREBER - %
2018. Such debt investment was accounted for as financial TE E R E ABRSER A EES R K Et
assets at FVTPL. ABRZEREE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19. REE QAT 2R RS E AT
JOINT VENTURES MIE

2018 2017
—EBE-NF T +tF

HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Cost of unlisted investment in joint ventures REEARIFELETIRE Z KA 1,573,475 1,548,484
Share of post-acquisition results and e BB R EMEE
other comprehensive expense, X - MRS
net of dividend (484,911) (455,390)
1,088,564 1,093,094
Amounts due from joint ventures (note) fEM & &~ ml A (F ) 923,850 732,994
Less: Share of post-acquisition losses that are i tﬁ&ﬁﬁk$2}?§
in excess of cost of investment EPERER (203,479) (123,388)
Less: Impairment loss o OREER (11,022) (11,022)
709,349 598,584
Analysed as: DR
Current mEh 274,155 -
Non-current FEMED 435,194 598,584
709,349 598,584

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19,

JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)
note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of

repayment, except for,

(i) an amount of HK$276,765,000 (2017: HK$285,269,000) due from
a joint venture which carried fixed interest rate of 7% (2017: 7%)
per annum and was repayable on demand; and

(i) an amount of Canadian dollar (“CAD”) 22,658,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$137,625,000) (2017: CAD21,221,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$123,656,000)) which carried
fixed interest rate of 15% (2017: 15%) per annum, and was
repayable on 1st March, 2022.

Except for the amount of HK$274,155,000 (2017: Nil), the management
did not expect to recover the remaining amounts of HK$435,194,000
(2017: HK$598,584,000) within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the amounts were classified as non-current

assets.

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

19.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

The Group’s material joint ventures at the end of the reporting
period included Vastness Investment Limited (“Vastness”),
Mavis Q Properties Limited (“Mavis Q”), More Star Limited
(“More Star”), 1488 Alberni Development Holdings Limited
Partnership (“1488 Alberni LPDH”) and 1488 Alberni
Investment Limited Partnership (“1488 Alberni LP1”), Bayshore
Ventures JV Ltd (“Bayshore”) and Star Trail Limited (“Star
Trail”). All of the Group’s joint ventures were accounted for
using equity method in these consolidated financial statements.
Details of the Group’s material joint ventures at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

19. REERRZEE BHRE

BT
$5 ()

REERBRERARZEIESCLERAIBRE
Vastness Investment Limited
(['Vastness]) * Mavis Q Properties Limited
([Mavis Q1) * More Star Limited ([More
Star|) + 1488 Alberni Development
Holdings Limited Partnership ([ 1488
Alberni LPDH ) +1488 Alberni Investment
Limited Partnership ([ 1488 Alberni
LPI]) - Bayshore Ventures JV Ltd
(Bayshore]) X Star Trail Limited ([ Star
Traill) - XEBFAAEERRNZEFRE
MR AEREANR - REBRER

Name of the entity

BEsHE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

B3
R %

Class of
shares/
capital held
fiERe/
BARER

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital
BRTR
BERAEE

ZE-N\fF

FHRZEBALERRFBWT ¢

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued

share capital

held by the Group
FREFBERT

RAEELH

2018 2017
“ET+F
% %

ZEB-0\F

Proportion of
voting
power held

i RE LA

2018 2017
“ZT—+tfF
% %

Principal activity

FEXK

Vastness British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary  United States Dollars 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
ERANHS TER ("US§") 100 (note a)
100X (%)) REER (Frita)
Mavis Q British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Uss$2 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
EBRLHS LEk 2ETT (note b)
RALER (Htith)
More Star British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary uss$10 40 40 40 40 Investment holding
RERIES LBk 10X (note ©) (note ¢) (note d)
(WaEo (W&o REER (Frad)
1488 Alberni LPDH  British Columbia, N/A N/A 28 28 28 28 Property development
Canada (note ) TEH (note e) (note e) (note e) (notee) MEERE
MEREE TR (Kizte) GED) (Wzte) (MizEe)
BB AR (Hfite)
1488 Alberni LP! British Columbia, N/A N/A 28 28 28 28 Property development
Canada (note € TER (note ) (note €) (note e) (notee) MEER
MERER Tam (Wize)  (Wie)  (Wie) (e
FHakEa (Mizte)
Bayshore British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary CAD172,200,000 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
RBRLES EER  H0%172,200,0007 (note )
REER (D)
Star Trail British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary us$2 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
ERRLAE EER 2ETT (note g)
RaER (Fritg)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR
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19.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

notes:

(a) The principal activities of its subsidiaries are property sales and
development in Hong Kong.

(b) The principal activities of its subsidiaries are property development in the
PRC.

(c) The Group is able to exercise joint control over the relevant activities of

More Star as major decision regarding the relevant activities of More Star
requires unanimous consent of both of shareholders of More Star
according to the shareholders’ agreement. The Group has pledged the
40% equity interest in More Star to secure the other loan facilities granted

to the Group as set out in Notes 29 and 39.

(d) The principal activity of its subsidiary is holding of a hotel property in
Hong Kong.

(e) The Group is able to exercise joint control over the relevant activities of
1488 Alberni LPDH and 1488 Alberni LPI, limited partnerships
incorporated in British Columbia, Canada, as major decisions regarding
the relevant activities of 1488 Alberni LPDH and 1488 Alberni LPI require
unanimous consent of their shareholders according to the shareholders’

agreements.

() The principal activities of its subsidiaries are holding of a hotel property

and hotel operation in Vancouver, Canada.

(g) The principal activities of its subsidiaries are property development in
Hong Kong.

On 8th June, 2016, Rank Ace Investments Limited (“Rank
Ace”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Bayshore to subscribe for
86,100,000 new shares of Bayshore at a consideration of
CADB86,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$507,560,000) (the “Subscription Price”) such that upon
completion, Rank Ace would own a 50% equity interest in
Bayshore. The subscription was completed on 29th December,
2016 (the “Completion Date”).

Since the Subscription Price was less than the fair value of the
interest in Bayshore at the Completion Date of CAD95,300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$561,793,000), a fair value
gain on derivative financial instrument of CAD9,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$54,233,000) was resulted
during the year ended 31st March, 2017.

19.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

19.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of
the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other joint ventures would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s material joint ventures and the aggregate of other joint
ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amount shown in the joint ventures’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

19.

REELRzER BRSEQAT
R (18)

LRI EERR/HAFEEEFEX
FEIBRAKEEEFETERD
AEBEERF  -EEZRR JIHEM

BERRZENSEUREBN IR °

ERAKEEIERERAIRAEMA S

ARBHZHBERNEERIIMT - T
XA B E R B BRI E S G
SRAFHY ABATNHBREF T
gEO

2018
“E-0\f
1488 1488 1488 1488
Alberni  Alberni Alberni— Alberni
Vastness  MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH LPI Bayshore StarTrail Sub-total Vastness MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH Pl Bayshore  Sub-total
gt it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AT BMTn BETR ANTn BNTn RMTR AMTn BMTn B%Tn EETr ANTrn RETn BETn BT A%t
Current assets THAE 17487 462,627 15562 1,053,560 55451 123,868 430,338 2,158,893 219258 462,627 1273 997984 52525 91,650 1825317
Non-current assets FhEEE 40,620 - 1,069,113 - - 1,642,837 - 2,952,570 170,957 - 869,113 - - 1,777,235 2,817,305
Current liabilities RHAE (12,737)  (42,163)  (13,710) (492,013) (25,895) (782,630) (203,110) (1,572,258) (141,831) ~(42,163) (11,644) (473,199) (24905) (742,073) (1,436,015)
Non-current liabilities FraakE - - (7,719 (599,718)  (31,564)  (16,659) (163,129) (1,528,789) (394) - (735,869) (486,494) (25,605 (16,187) (1,264,549)
The above amounts of assets  HAZEREESE
and liabiliies include the ~ &4EMT& 5 :
following:
Cashand cash equivalents ~ H& RBEESERE 16,305 S 141 34584 1820 99710 13265 166,825 29,643 - 140 33659 1772 77279 143,593
Current financial liabiliies ~ ZE14RE B(TEE
(excluding trade and BARAMERTER
other payables and IEER)
provisions) - - - (490,477)  (25,815) (723,112) (202,920) (1,442,324)  (40,004) - (11,844) (470,531) - (692,512) (1,214,891)
Non-current financial FnacRat(Tal
liabilites (excluding trade B 52t E(ZUE
and other payables and IWREE)
provisions) - - (685,388) (599,718) (31,564) - (163,129) (1,479,799) - - (726250) (486,494)  (25,605) - (1,238,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19, RS AT 2z WS E AT
JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d) MIE (&)

2018
“E-N\E
1488 1488 . 1488
Alberni  Alberni Alberni Alberni

Vastness  MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH Pl Bayshore StarTrail Sub-tofal Vastness MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH LPI' Bayshore  Sub-total
e it

HKS'000 HKS000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$'000
BRI AMTR RMTR BMTr BYTR B¥Tn EMTR BMTn BMTI BMTI ARTT R%Th T T

Revenue Wiz 29935 - 73000 14790 778 335,642 - 453,145 269,409 - 70400 17,298 910 - 3807

Profit (loss)for the year/period V4% /£

w58 132,276 - 230572 (86265  (4540) 9744 147 281934 13,928 - 13376 (75239 (3,959 - (51,894)
Other comprehensive KER/ Skl
(expense) income forthe 27 (B3) Yz
year/period - - - (283 (1500 4514 - 1,532 - - - 1,982 104 - 2,086

Total comprehensive income A% /SE2H
(expense) for the g (R 88
year/period 132,276 - 30572 (89,097  (4,690) 14258 147 283466 13,928 - 13376 (73257)  (3,8%9) - (49,808)

Dividends received from A& /#EEM
ajointventre during the ~ AERFRE
year/period 167,448 - - - - - - 167,448 85,000 - - - - - 85,000

The above profit lss) HAREE /R
for the yearfperiod include ~ (&5%8) RFEL TEE

the following:

Depreciation and HEREH

amoron B - o oo - 6
et one L o v m - 1
e IR,
Income tax (expense) credit /7 (B4 (6,878) - (512 - - 206 - (0,184 (9224) - (2639) = = - (11,863)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19, RAE AT 2% EHRASE AT

JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd) ,-T-AIE ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information B S B R E NG A ISR K AT
to the carrying amount of the interests in the joint ventures EEEZ%?EAAM’“joEVZEE@EﬁE’E

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2018
= it
1488 1488 1488 1488
Alberni  Alberni Alberni~ Alberni

Vastness  MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH LPI' Bayshore StarTrail ~Sub-fofal Vastness MavisQ MoreStar  LPDH Pl Bayshore  Sub-total
Bt bt

HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HM’OOO HK$'000  HK§'000
n OEMTT ARTR BRI RWTR RMTR AMTR ARTn BRTR BMTR AMTR A%t ERTn BRTR BNTR

Netassets (iabilities) of ~~ AEAFZARE
the joint ventures (Bf)58 45370 420,464 353246 (38,171)  (2,008) 1,167416 64099 2010416 247990 420464 122,673 38291 2,015 1,110,625 1942,058

Proportion of the Group's ~ AEERAE
ownership interests in ARZHE
the jint ventures et 0% 0% 0% % 2% 0% 0%  NA  S0%  S0% 4% 2% 2% S0%  NA

Netassets ofnterestsin -~~~ A&EEERE SRR
joint ventures atrbutableto 7 i 2 AE (A
the Group 22,685 210,232 141,298 (10,688) (562) 583,708 32,050 978723 123,995 210232 49,009 10721 564 555312 949,893

Lossallocated inexcessof ~ BHRERAZ
investment costs BARER - - - 10,688 562 - - 150 - - - - - - -

Canyingamountof e~ AEERNABATZ
Group's interest in the 3k
joint ventures 22,685 210,232 141,298 - - 583,708 32,050 989,973 123995 210232 49,069 10,721 564 555312 949,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19, REE ATz #ER EWEE AT
JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d) SRl =)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRIEFEZEE DT ZEHER :
individually material:

2018 2017
—=E-—N\EFE —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT

The Group's share of loss REEELER (67,213) (69,367)

The Group's share of other comprehensive 75 B fiE 5 H fth 2 &

(expense) income (FX) Uzt (14,260) 3,268
The Group'’s share of total AEEEEEAERS L

comprehensive expense (81,473) (66,099)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERZEFEERAZ

interests in these joint ventures R ZEmAE 98,591 143,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO) 20. A& AT 2% FEW (FER) B
ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN OATIEIE NS -EBE AT
ASSOCIATE 2ftkE

2018 2017
—B-N\FE T —LF

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cost of investment in associates, unlisted ~— RAFE& AT IE L THIEE 2 K2

Share of post-acquisition results and other  JE{GUREETE £ & R H 2@
comprehensive income, net of dividend U e (FOBR AL B s E b B3R )
or other return

Amounts due from associates (note a) JE U B R Bl E (Fd st a)
Amount due to an associate (note b) JE At — T EsE 8 2 R IE (B REb)
notes: B EE
(@) The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and had no fixed (@)

repayment date. The management did not expect to receive the amounts
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the Group capitalised the
amount due from an associate of HK$95,000,000 (2017: Nil) as cost of
investment in that associate.

(b) The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within (b)
one year from the end of the reporting period.

915,740 750,530
891,034 1,253,377
1,806,774 2,003,907
9,097 91,686
132,532 418,915

BRRASEER 28 RERETERA
- EEEEHTERBEHRES =@
AR EIE A

HE-ZT—N\F=-ZA=1+—HLFE &%
5] % i Ui — Pl B 5 2 R] R IE 7 #5 95,000,000
m(—f & E)BRERN  (ERZHE
PR ZFZERA o

BRRAAERR  2ERANRSHRE
FF—FAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e ISR R

20.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO)
ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

The Group’s material associates at the end of the reporting
period included Orient Town Limited (“Orient Town”), Empresa
de Fomento Industrial E Comercial Concordia, S.A.
(“Concordia”), Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale
Beijing”) and Wealth Explorer Holdings Limited (“Wealth
Explorer”). All of these associates were accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial statements.
Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

20.

REBE DR 2R B () B
ERNRRE WE-—BBHEQT 2
ENRE @)
AEERHEPRZEBHE QR BRE
FRARAA(FER])  BMEZRED
BERAB(BAED ERABBERR
BEERANRIHEED kWealth
Explorer Holdings Limited ([ Wealth
Explorer]) o il BB & A RN & 4R
EMBHREEARDEALR - ARER
BEPRZ T EMEQRFTOT

Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value of
Place of (Class of of issued and issued/registered Proportion of
incorporation/ shares/ fully paid share capital voting
Name of the entity establishment capital held share capital held by the Group power held Principal activity
fiishtt/ BEAR AEEFBERT/
BR4E if/HIY  ERER YERAEE AMBAEELA izl 341 IERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
8- CFF Z®-\E CRAF
% % % %
Orient Town Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$700 4 45 4 45 Investment holding
24 B EER AR007T (note )
RERR (M)
Concordia Macau Quota capital (note h) Macau Patacas 355 355 35.5 35.5 Property development
3 27 - gAGED) 100,000,000 NE%E
9% 100,000,000
Rosedale Beijing ~ PRC Registered capital US$86,000,000 20 20 20 20 Hotel operation in Beijing
TREE P itEx 86,000 000 %7 MRERER
Wealth Explorer  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1,000 40 40 40 40  Investment holding
ABRNEE Lk 100057 (note c)
RELR (Wit c)
notes: Bt
(@) The principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly property development @@  HETHEBRAZEEEBABRRIRPIEST
and property management in Macau. MEBRRYFEERE
(b) Quota capital represents the Portuguese equivalence of registered capital (b) Quota capital PORME HRBE B BRRIERE
as Portuguese is the official language of Macau. MEA -
() The principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly property development (¢ HETHBRAZEEEBABAREBEN

in Hong Kong.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the
year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

W N
(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO) 20, R A T > 3 FER (FE() B
ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN ',%f’&j;mlﬁ/l.l&ﬂﬁ ER@E NT 2
ASSOCIATE (Contd) eftR&#)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the EAAERRSETERES NG R EMES

Group’s material associates and the aggregate of other
associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents the amount shown in the

AAFZHMBERMBEHINMT - T
XFrE B E R R IR BT BB R
SEANRHR B E RPN BREATE

associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with 28 o
HKFRSs.
2018
“E-)\§
Orient Rosedale Orient Rosedale
Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth  Sub-total Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth  Sub-total
| Bt LTHE  Bplorer it b i E Explorer
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
BETRn E%Tn  AMTn  BBTn  A%Tn  BETR BETT
Current assets nOEE 6,328,826 5,600,534 572,998 1,765,204 14,267,562  6,615847 5,025,740 567,896 1,725,625 13,935,108
Non-current asses ERHEE 08366 899928 1052475 o 2800769 956781 925754 1086993 - 2969528
Current liabilities mEaE (2,561,177)  (2,564,814)  (435,031)  (854,069) (6,415,091) (2,559,887) (2,602,764)  (452,571) (1,051,756) (6,666,978)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (1,786,024)  (1,786,024) - - (3,572,048) (1,028,401) (1,028,401) - - (2,056,802)
The aboveamounts of assetsand ~~ HiiAERAESE
liabilities incluce the following: BIENTEE
Cash and cash equivalents BARALZHERER 32311 623256 519,198 5521 1500286 78421 784N 460824 6179 2,036,838
Current financial liabilties THeRAR
(excluding trade and other (TBEEHR
payables and provisions) At ENFENRER) 2 (10872 - - (10898) (1,046 (52,004) - - (33,050
Non-current financial liabilities ErBemaE
(excluding trade and other (TBEEHR
payables and provisions) R FENREE) (1,729,025)  (1,729,025) - - (3458,050)  (968,512)  (968,512) - - (1937,004)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR M s R Mo

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO) 20, RE& AT 2R FEUR (FELT) B

ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN SNATISE WE—-ERE AT
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) SRR &AL,

2018
—E-N\E

Orient Rosedale Orient Rosedale

Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth  Sub-total Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth — Sub-total
4 B HFHE  Explorer Wt B2l BE  ERNE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETn  EETRm  BMTn  EWTRn  BMTx BT EMTx

Revenue 63 673,611 655,628 66,822 - 1,396,061 2,346,529 2335955 64,051 - 4746535
Profit(loss) for the year FEREF(BR) 335,650 329,295 (35,582) (234 629129 1323382 1,338,535 (30,984) (501) 2,630,432
Other comprehensive income AEREMEERE(FR)

(expense) for the year - - 23,700 - 23,700 - - (14,355) - (14,355)
Total comprehensive income AEEEENG

(expense) for the year (A%)a% 335,650 329,295 (11,882) (234 652,829 1323382 1,338,535 (45,339) (501) 2,616,077
Dividends received from associates ~ AEEEHBENFRS

during the year 0055 43500 - S 405 675000 158340 . - B33
The above profit (loss) for the year _Fil A R (B518)

include the following; AFEATER :
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (16,153) (15,493) (41,607) - (73,253) (8,339) (7,788) (43,089) - (59,216)
Interest income FlEKA 1,371 1,371 14,850 - 17,592 5137 5137 12,847 - 23,121
Interest expense HERR - - - - - (6) (6) = = (12)
Income tax expense FEHRA% @4,797)  (44,797) - - (89594)  (181,027)  (181,027) - - (362,054)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B RS R R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO) 20, RE& AT 2R FEUR (FE) B

ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN ATIEE W - EBE AT
ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) E',ﬁjg"‘iﬁ(zg)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information i B S B R B EH N A B RS R K T
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate EEE?S\E’\ e N E s REESER

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2018
—2-N\F

Orient Rosedale Orient Rosedale

Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth  Sub-total Town  Concordia Beijing Wealth  Sub-total

E BE  LFHE  Explorer it £ BE  LRHE  Bgplorer liy
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS$'000
BBTn BT RMTn  EMTn  BMTR  ERTn BNt BMTr A%t BMTx

Net assets of the associates BENT 2 EERE 2,909,991 2,149,624 1,190,442 911,135 7,161,192 3,984340 2320329 1202318 673,869 8,180,856
Less: shared by non-controlling B BERAFARERER
interests of the associates (943,182 - - - (943,182)  (1,281,926) - - - (1,281,926)

1966800 2049624 1190442 911135 6208010 2702414 2320329 1202318 673,860 6,898,930
Proportion of the Group's direct REERBEAT ER

ownership interests in the associates  FiE £z L0l 45% 8.7% 20% 40% N/A 45% 8.7% 20% 40% NA
(note (i)) (note (i)
(W& G) (GEL0);
Net assets of interests in associates ~ AEEEERBENE 2
attributable to the Croup ERZEERE 885,004 187,017 238,088 364,454 1,674,623 1,216,086 201,869 240,464 269,548 1,927,967
Goodwill BE VAT - VAT VAT - - 12795
Capitalisation of imputed interestof ~ AREAZ &S EFHEE
non-interest bearing loans (note (ii) 1|8 (¥fz£ i) (52,019) - - - (52,019 (52,019) = = = (52,019)
Other adjustments thgs S a8 - - a8 S 0209) - S 0209)

Carrying amount of the Group's REBRBERR Z G

interests in the associates KR 833,045 313,754 238,088 364,454 1,749,341 1,164,067 328,605 240,464 269,548 2,002,684

notes: B EE

(i) As at 31st March, 2018 and 2017, Orient Town and the Group held (i) RZE—NER-_ZF—t&F=ZA=+—80"
59.5% and 8.7% equity interests in Concordia, respectively, thereby AR AR B 5 R B LR 59.5% K% 8.7%
leading to the Group holding an effective equity interest of 35.5% in PRARER - ABUR SR BN B4 2 BRI A
Concordia. #8/335.5% °

(i) Oninitial recognition, the fair value adjustment of the non-interest bearing (i) ROFERE  REERZ A FEABRER
loans was treated as a capital contribution to Orient Town and recognised ﬁmﬁfﬁiﬁ I i R AR IR E A E  —&D
as part of the investment cost. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the o IHHERIL  EHREZEEFNBRAER
imputed interest expense of Orient Town was capitalised in its properties EEE%%ﬁzﬁ

under development.
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20.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM(TO) 20, AB& AT~z FEW (FEL) B

ASSOCIATES/DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN SN | fﬁlﬁ/ﬂ&,ﬂﬁ — R gE N T2
ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) [EERE:&AC D,

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BEREFTECHE AT Z2EETER -
material:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$/000 HK$'000
BET T BT

The Group's share of loss AEEEGEER - -

The Group’s share of other comprehensive 7 £ B [ {5 £t 2 T 5 2
expense - -

The Group's share of total comprehensive 7S£ [ fE {2 [ 7 Sz 4238
expense - =

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AN&EERZEHE N T2

interests in these associates w2 RERE 57,433 1,223
In June 2017, Precious Year Limited, a wholly-owned RZEBE—tFRA ARAIZ2EH B
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement to ‘A7) Precious Year Limited BRE 32 AT ETh

NAElEEZZ2EN B R FThe 13 (BVI)
Limited5] 32 % & WA K B B &

acquire 45.8% interests in Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited

from The 13 (BVI) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of South 265,200,000 7T Ui B (R 28 12 2 = WA TR A
Shore, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, at F145.8%HE 2% N - FE — N\ &£ = A
consideration of HK$265,200,000. As at 31st March, 2018, the =+—H A&EFSH R E L iR
Group has paid the deposit of HK$159,000,000 for the ©4% 159,000,000 7T XX 5 AR °
aforesaid acquisition and the transaction has not been

completed.
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

21. OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES

21. HEWER

2018 2017
ZEB-NF T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Fixed-rate loan receivables E B EWEK 728,000 500,000
Variable-rate loan receivables 7 B ER 174,324 167,235
902,324 667,235
Secured Vg 174,324 167,235
Unsecured i 728,000 500,000
902,324 667,235

Analysed as: DATE
Current mE 150,000 —
Non-current FERE 752,324 667,235
902,324 667,235

KB \FR-F—tF=H=+—
B - ERERIREIE A 51T 2 B R

A maturity profile of the loan receivables as at 31st March,
2018 and 2017, based on the maturity date is as follows:

s
2018 2017
—B-N\FE T —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
On demand and due within 1 year BRERRR—FRNEIE 150,000 -
2 to 5 years M2 R GF 752,324 667,235
902,324 667,235

At 31st March, 2018, the Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables of
HK$500,000,000 (2017: HK$500,000,000) represented
unsecured and unlisted loan notes issued by a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability with its shares
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry interest at the fixed rate
of 9.5% per annum and will mature on 27th November, 2019.
The fixed-rate loans of HK$78,000,000 (2017: Nil) and
HK$150,000,000 (2017: Nil) are unsecured, carry interest at
fixed rates ranging from of 12% to 18% per annum and are
repayable on 7th August, 2019 and with scheduled repayment
date within one year, respectively.

R-ZZE—-N\E=A=+—8 K"&EEz
B JE I E FB # 500,000,000 T (= F
—+4F: B% 500,000,000 7T ) fE B —E
B R A S B 0 R B BT TR
ZHEBRARBITEKFEIELMERE
B RETFEMNERISEE - TR =
T—NAF+—A=-+tHBIH- 5EB
# 78,000,000 (=T —tF: &) B
#150,000,000 C( — T —+F: #)
EEERAEER  HEEFEFER12E
FZ18EFE  DRIAR_ZT—NF/N\A
tHEERFETERABAE—FNA -
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21.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

At 31st March, 2018, the Group’s variable-rate loan receivables
represented a loan facility of CAD28,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$174,324,000) (2017: CAD28,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$167,235,000)) granted to
Caufield Investments Limited, the joint venture partner of
Bayshore. The loan receivables are secured by 16.67% equity
interest in Bayshore, carry interest at CAD Prime Rate plus
1.25% per annum and are repayable on 28th December, 2021.

These loan receivables were accounted for as financial assets
carried at amortised cost.

At 31st March, 2018, the effective interest rate of the variable-
rate loan receivables was 4.39% per annum (2017: 3.73% per
annum).

Before granting any new loans, the Directors will assess the
potential borrower’s credit quality and define credit limits of
the borrower. The Directors perform ongoing evaluation of
collectability in assessing the ultimate realisation of other loan
receivables. The amount of other loan receivables are either
with repayable on demand clause or repayable upon maturity
date of the loans and the borrowers have no history of loan
default. Therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the balances
are neither past due nor impaired.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has monitored the repayment ability of the borrowers
continuously.

21.
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RRABEHRERARITERE -

SREEERR AEEEEERES
REEANZERET -
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HZE=—T—)\&F#=A=1+—HIFE)

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS HIERBEE

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—F—tF
HK$’000
BT T

HK$'000
BET T

Tax indemnity asset (note a) MIAEEEE (Mita) 66,744 66,744
Rental deposits (note b) HeMe (ffEb) 19,200 18,400
Club memberships/club debentures % SeffEs 4,124 4,124
Deposit paid (note c) BftiRe (Mistc) 39,166 39,166
Interest receivables FE U F B 11,354 -

140,588 128,434
notes: Pt &

(a) Prior to the Group’s acquisition of Makerston Limited (“Makerston”) from (a) AEER T NFMHBEEERARA
Rosedale Hotel Group Limited (“RHGL”) in 2014, DS Eastin Limited (“DS 7] ([ AR 5 5@ |) U B8 Makerston Limited
Eastin”), a subsidiary of Makerston, completed a deemed disposal of 80% ([Makerston ) AT * Makerston 2 ft & 22 7] B
equity interest in Rosedale Beijing. As such, there was a potential tax BRAREFRAG([BERF ) THRRME
liability for the capital gain on the deemed disposal of Rosedale Beijing to HERIL RIAR 2 80% R A it - 1%
be borne by DS Eastin or Rosedale Beijing. Accordingly, a tax provision B BB RT Sd RIAB AR S IR
amounting to HK$66,744,000 was recognised. Zﬁm”ﬁl%ﬁﬂﬁ%%fﬁ&ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ o Bt B

RTLIRRE Y 66,744,000 7T ©
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, RHGL undertook to Silver RIEE B %= I EEE % B [Silver
Infinite Limited (“Silver Infinite”), Makerston and DS Eastin (collectively Infinite Limited ([ Silver Infinite ) + Makerston
known as the “Makerston Group”) and Rosedale Beijing that RHGL will K BR5R 7 (4878 4 [Makerston 5 @ 1) &1t
fully indemnify Silver Infinite, the Makerston Group and Rosedale Beijing RIABE  HEEESE MR IELEE
against any taxation under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law arising EZHBECEMSIEZERBIR(INAR
from the deemed disposal, when the same is payable by the Makerston Makerston 5 B % /53t SRR 2 15 ) JA R Pt
Group and/or Rosedale Beijing, and all demands, claims, proceedings, BRE BR EFEEF EETH &
actions, liabilities, costs and expenses. Accordingly, a tax indemnity asset £+ & A % & B M[Silver Infinite »
of HK$66,744,000 was recognised upon the completion of the acquisition Makerston £ B &4t REARE{E H B ECEE - B
of Makerston. I+ B A UEE Makerston 52 % 14 1 3R 8 18 7
{E&E B 66,744,000 7T ©

In the opinion of the Directors, the tax indemnity asset was not expected EXZRR MABEEERPDIERNEBE

to be recovered within twelve months from the end of the reporting period REEET+ZEAARYKE - 5 ﬁﬁﬁv?F//méfJﬁ
and therefore classified as a non-current asset. e

(b)  The amounts represented rental deposits paid to a joint venture, Fortress (b)  HEFRREREELEBHER S ERRHA
State International Limited (“Fortress State”) in connection with hotel BEERAR(RE DX H2HeRE - B
operating agreements, which entitle the Group to manage and operate a EREEHEE T AREESN  BRERRL
hotel exclusively in Hong Kong for a period of 6 years. The rental deposits M?f%—lasﬁ BIE - REARE c HE RS BR
will be fully refundable upon the end of the lease term on 31st March, —E_THE=A=+—-BENBERREZER
2020. &

() The amount represented deposit paid to an independent third party with a () ZEREEINT-—EBBILE=FUARBEE

view of setting up a company in Vietnam which was proposed to hold and
develop a parcel of land in Vietnam.

B —RRARZES
N3 — gL ith o

ZARRNEERE

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR
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24.

25.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LEASEHOLD 23, WEHE+ O ixd
LAND

The amount represented deposits paid for acquisition of ZERIBERFPREXREEB WEMR
leasehold land for a property development project situated in S+ MRS BEEASNE Y
the PRC. The Directors intend to hold the leasehold land for BEREPEEHEE T HIAREREEY
development of properties held for sale in the ordinary course £

of business.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES 2. YEHE

2018 2017
—EBE-NF —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT  BETR

Properties under development for sale REZEEYHE 673,465 605,565
Completed properties held for sale FEZEEKRME 125,808 125,808
799,273 731,373
At 31st March 2018, stock of properties included an amount of RZZE—N\E=A=+—8 ¥WxEHFE
approximately HK$673,465,000 (2017: HK$605,565,000) BIETERENREHRETEAE T [
which is expected to be realised after more than twelve months A ’é: BN 7 A B ¥ 673,465,0007T
from the end of the reporting period. (ZZF—t4F : B%605,565,0007T) °

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 25. BWERN - RERBARE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Trade debtors B 5 MR 3,278 2,870
Less: allowance for doubtful debt o REREAE - -
3,278 2,870
Refundable earnest money (note) ATREHES (KE) 24,296 23,308
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments — E A EURIEFR - 24 KR I (708 128,139 132,107
155,713 158,285
note: As at 31st March, 2018 and 2017, the refundable earnest money was in et R N\FR-_Z—+tF=A=+—8"
relation to a project. The Group assesses the recoverability of the money ATRERESS R —(EHE - AEEFHE
paid and the progress of the project on a continuing basis. The vendors AEENeBEzIRERRERBRELEER @
had no history of default. B BRI R BTN ARE ©
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 25.
The Group's credit terms are negotiated at terms determined
and agreed with its trade customers. The Group allows an
average credit period of 60 days (2017: 60 days) to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors,
net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Trade debtors aged: B 5 YRR
0 - 60 days TEXRTH
- 90 days ATt—HBZEATH
Over 90 days i@+ A

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. 98% (2017: 94%) of the trade debtors, that are neither
past due nor impaired, have the best credit rating as of 31st
March, 2018.

The Group has provided fully for general trade debtors over
two years because historical experience is that receivables that
are past due beyond two years are generally not recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt on trade debtors

EWERR - RERFENSREE)
AEEZEEHNKEAEE S RERER
MBEMEIMN - AEBRTFTHESEF
ZEEHTFHEOB(ZZT—+F : 60
H) - AT AE S EKER(EMHRREE
BE) RN RESRIZEZB IR ZER
DHT o

2018 2017

—EBE-NF —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

3,206 2,708

5 54

67 108

3,278 2,870
REMERFETER - NEEHFEE

EREFEZEEEGEURTEEERE - K
SESFEHEFPZGERETMAR
5 e %jz:?s E-NF=A=+—8"
98% (—Z— L 1F : 94%) BE ok %81 B IR 4
7‘)@%@2%%%%&%%@%&‘%&%& °

AEEERBRBEMEZ —RESHE
WEERE2 B &R REEEELERE
T % F R EMF 2 BYGIR R
ExgE -

EZBUSRRRIRRE 228

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Balance at the beginning of the year FEW) 4Lk - 79
Allowance for doubtful debts AR - 18
Written off as uncollectible H 88 A 7T m Uk [B] 3R I8 - (97)
Balance at the end of the year FIRAEER - -

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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25.

26.

27.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Group had made
an allowance for doubtful debts of HK$79,000 (2018: Nil) on
other receivables which was included in other debtors, deposits
and prepayments.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt on other
receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year FY4E

Allowance for doubtful debts ROREAE

Written off as uncollectible 8 A7 AT Uk [B] 3RI8
Balance at the end of the year FIRIERR

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.48% (2017: 0.01% to 1.35%) per annum.

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

25¢

27

EWERR - RERFENSRIE(E)
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HLLtFE"
AEBERIAEMERIER e RTE
NEIE Eh EBGRIEF R R RBRES
#79,000 L (ZZT—N\F : £]&) o

Hitb B IARRBRE 228

2018 2017

—E-NFE —T—+tF

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

5,243 5,243

- 79

- 79)

5,243 5,243
RITERREE

IRITEBETMBEFNENT0.01/EE1.48
E(ZZE—+% :0.01EZE1.35E):t8 °

AR - B REFTRAX

2018 2017

—B-NE —ZT+iF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T B¥TT

Creditors, deposits and accrued charges BTSRRI ~ &E REFTHX 82,849 115,941
Accrued coupon interest on loan notes EREBEAER 34,581 34,246
Provision for tax and other indemnity %RIE&EP@ FEBE - 14,000
117,430 164,187

Included in creditors, deposits and accrued charges are trade
creditors of approximately HK$1,498,000 (2017:
HK$1,716,000).

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018
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27. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

(Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors presented
with reference to the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period.

Trade creditors aged:
0 — 60 days
- 90 days

28. LOAN NOTES

B 2R RSKARE
ZE"t+H
ANtT—HEATH

FEAS BRR

- RERERAX )

UTRESENERR RSP RIZER

B SR Z Rl DA

28. EXRE

The movements of the loan notes for the year are set out below:

At the beginning of the year

Issue of loan notes (note a)
Effective interest charged (Note 9)
Repayment of principal (note b)
Coupon interest paid/payable
Exchange realignment

At the end of the year

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current liability

2 -5 years

REH)

BITEREE (HiEa)
BB SR (MEE9)
BEAE (HED)
EN/EARE

BEE 57, 5

SRRSO/ -

FRBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$/000 HK$'000
BYTT BT T
1,468 1,706
30 10
1,498 1,716
EREBRFRNESHNOT
2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —EFE—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
1,515,550 190,544
- 1,508,846
82,017 40,527
- (192,160)
(74,214) (35,451)
14,856 3,244
1,538,209 1,515,550
1,538,209 1,515,550
1,538,209 1,515,550

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B ZE—Z— \F=ZA=1+—HILtFE)

28. LOAN NOTES (Cont’d)

notes:

()

(b)

In October 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group (“Issuer”)
issued guaranteed loan notes (the “Notes”) with a nominal value of
US$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,508,846,000),
which are guaranteed by the Company and listed on the Stock Exchange.
The Notes bear coupon interest at 4.75% per annum and will mature on
14th October, 2021.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Issuer has the right to redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part at the sum of (a) the principal amount
outstanding on the Notes; and (b) the outstanding interests up to the date
of redemption. The Notes include the value of the early repayment option

as the option is closely related to the host instrument.

In addition, at any time the Controlling Shareholder (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 6th October, 2016), (i) cease to
hold, directly or indirectly, at least 35% of the voting rights of the issued
share capital of the Company; or (ii) cease to be the largest single
shareholder of the Company, the holder of the Notes will have the right to
require the Issuer to redeem all but not in part of the Notes at 101% of
their principal amount, together with accrued interest.

The loan notes bore coupon rate at 5% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears and would mature on 15th December, 2016. During the year
ended 31st March, 2017, the Group had repaid the remaining loan notes
with principal amounts of HK$200,000,000 and the corresponding losses
on such repayment of loan notes of HK$7,840,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

28. EREE (&

Bt

(a)

(b)

Annual Report % % @ 2017-2018

RZZF—AF+A A5E—HzEHBA
7l ([317 A 1) 31T E & 200,000,000 % 7T (18
E R4 1,508,846,00070) Z B ERE R
ZR(ER])  BARIHEHERERER
Frbm o BRI FEF X475 EAEESE - W
BR=ZE=—F+A+mAEE -

RERBEGE  BTAGERQRERZIRE
BASEHE  ROBEEEL RS2 REER
BZANER2AmELIRE - REES
RAENREEEZBE RE/BEREET
TAREREY

SN - EAE B EIERR R (ERAAR
HR-ZZ—RE+ANBZRAM) [)TEE
EAFEFEARRRAEHTRARED35%
ZRFANE RN TBERAABZRAE—K
R EERAADERERETARAES
BN 101%ER B A EEEERA 228
[ES=PEs

BERZREEEENRSEANE (B¥EFEAY
ft—k) R _ZE—X~E+_A+HBE
H-BE-_ZT—+tE=ZA=+—RHILEE "
AEBMEREERTASSHEABE
200,000,000 CZEHREE  BEBERER
FTE & 2 fHFE B 18 A 75 ¥ 7,840,000 7T 1A
A M HRETER ©
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29, RITREMEE

2018 2017
—BE-NE Tt

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Bank and other borrowings: RITREMEE :
Secured HEA 1,356,985 1,348,843
Unsecured K 119,915 239,837
1,476,900 1,588,680
Carrying amount repayable: FEfERREE -
Within one year —FR 250,000 250,000
More than one year, but not exceeding HBiE—F  ETEBEMF
two years 142,139 124,154
392,139 374,154
Carrying amount of bank and other B A iR B SRR KR 2
borrowings that contain a repayment RITREAMBEEREE :
on demand clause:
Within one year —FR 198,882 252,719
More than one year, but not exceeding Bil—F BB BEMRE
two years 51,898 92,846
More than two years, but not HRME - BETHEERF
exceeding five years 395,576 415,733
Over five years AENUE 438,405 453,228
1,476,900 1,588,680
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : —&F R 2| Hl 2 7B
under current liabilities BIRREAEBIET) (1,334,761) (1,464,526)
Amount due after one year —F & EH 2 508 142,139 124,154

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 29. RITNEMEES (&)
Carrying amount
REE

Bank and other borrowings comprise 2018 2017
ROREMEERE —E-NF —FtF

HK$/000 HK$'000

BRI BT
Variable-rate borrowings: EREE:

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR")  &/BR{TRERE ([EBETRAERE])

plus 1.15% to 2.32% (2017: HIBOR MEFE1ISEZ232E
plus 1.15% to 2.32%) per annum (225 BERTRERE
HK$ bank loan (note a) MEME115EZE2.32E)
BRRITER (HiEa) 1,084,761 1,214,526
Higher of HIBOR plus 2.5% or 3% BARTARKEMEFX25EH
(2017: Higher of HIBOR plus 2.5% or 3%) 3SEUABRSERE)(ZE—+F: BBHT
per annum HKS other loan (notes a &b) REFEMEFR25EHIE (URFE
) BB EAME (A a fb) 250,000 250,000
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) RAEBITRAERE ([RBEBTRERE])
plus 2.25% per annum British Pound MEERE 225 BHEE (RS |) RITER
(“GBP”) bank loan (note a) GEDY 142,139 124,154
1,476,900 1,588,680
notes: Bt E
(@ Interest was repriced when HIBOR or LIBOR changed. @  MEEEBRTRERERGRRTRER
BEFMEFEE -
(b)  The amount was due to an independent third party. (b) BEFERBN—EBILE=TZ2HIA -
(c)  The effective interest rate of bank and other borrowings at the end of the (0 RITREMEERBESHRZERMNER
reporting period was 2.64% (2017: 2.22%). 264E(ZT—+EF:222E) -

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

30. DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

30. EEHIE
INTARFENBEFECHERZEE
BEERIBEAE(BE) REBEE) :

prior years:

Accelerated tax Tax losses
depreciation recognised Total

=X
IEBIETE RERSE o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB T T BT T BET T
At Tst April, 2016 RZE—XREMA—H 12,116 (12,116) -
Charged (credited) to profit or loss Ik B (5t A) B2 1,041 (1,041) -
At 31st March, 2017 R-—E—+tF=A=+—H 13,157 (13,157) -
Charged (credited) to profit or loss Ik B (5F A) B2 1,440 (1,440) -
At 31st March, 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H 14,597 (14,597) -

W=F—\F=A=f—0 AREA
PR IR 845K HOR 7 2 K B B B B S 1R

At 31st March, 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,650,873,000 (2017: HK$1,282,292,000) available for

offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been 7B #51,650,873,000 C( —ZF—+4F : /&
recognised in respect of approximately HK$88,466,000 (2017: #1,282,292,0007T) - Bt EHEEEE

HK$79,739,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been MR A9 B ¥ 88,466,000 TT( —Z—+4F : /B

recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,562,407,000 (2017: HK$1,202,553,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unused tax losses are tax losses of HK$1,531,399,000 (2017:
HK$1,194,895,000) which may be carried forward indefinitely
under current tax regulation in Hong Kong and the remaining
tax losses of HK$119,474,000 (2017: HK$87,397,000) will
expire from 2019 to 2023 (2017: 2018 to 2022).

#79,739,000 7o) FERIEEF B EE © A
TR T )28 I S TR B A BRI - R £ R
BB A BIIAR B LB 1,562,407,000
TE(=Z— 4 : #%1,202,553,000 7T)
HRELEHBEE - RPAREEBER
FERIBEE BRI THIS A8 6] o] PR B4
Z TR IEE 1B % 1,531,399,000 T (=&
—+4F : B 1,194,895,0007T) © M Fl
# i 18 &5 18 78 #5119,474,000 0 ( = &
— L4 B%87,397,0007T) B —-F
—NFEZE_=F(ZT—+F: =F
—NEE-EB-—F)fEme

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

SHARE CAPITAL 31. BRA

Number
of shares

RO E

Amount
B
HK$’000
BT T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEEE0.01 Tz EBRK

Authorised: SEE
At st April, 2016, R-ZF—XRFWOA—AB
31st March, 2017 and —E—+tF=A=1+t—HK
31st March, 2018 T N\F=A=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At Tst April, 2016 RZZE—XRFWMA—H 860,193,860 8,602
Exercise of share options (note a) e AR (Fifata) 365,000 4
Issue as scrip dividend for (note b) BITIERARARE (FiEED)
— 2016 final dividend - 2 RERRE 24,419,213 244
— 2017 interim dividend -t FHREES 2,268,062 23
At 31st March, 2017 R-_ZBE—+FE=H=+—H 887,246,135 8,873
Exercise of share options (note a) TR AR (st a) 60,000 1
Issue as scrip dividend for (note c) BITER AR S (FisEc)
— 2017 final dividend - T FREKEE 27,170,324 271
— 2018 first interim dividend - ZE - N\FEIRFHRE 23,236,275 232
At 31st March, 2018 R_F—N\F=A=1—H 937,712,734 9,377
notes: B aE
(@) During the year ended 31st March, 2018, options were exercised to @ BEZZT-N\F=A=+—HILFE BR

subscribe for 60,000 (2017: 365,000) shares in the Company. The option TEE AT LA R BB 60,0000 (=T — £ F :

(b)

(©)

exercise price was HK$3.00 (2017: HK$3.00) per share.

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, pursuant to the scrip dividend
schemes announced by the Company, the Company issued 24,419,213
and 2,268,062 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company to
the shareholders on 25th August, 2016 and 16th December, 2016,
representing approximately HK$68,667,000 and HK$7,075,000, who
elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of the final and interim
dividend for the years ended 31st March, 2016 and 31st March, 2017,
respectively. These shares ranked pari passu with the then existing shares
of the Company in all respects.

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, pursuant to the scrip dividend
schemes announced by the Company, the Company issued 27,170,324
and 23,236,275 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company to
the shareholders on 29th September, 2017 and 22nd January, 2018,
representing approximately HK$75,455,000 and HK$61,367,000, who
elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of the final and first interim
dividend for the years ended 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2018,
respectively. These shares ranked pari passu with the then existing shares
of the Company in all respects.

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018

(b)

365,000 %) LK/AETH%} ° E%Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%
A& % 3.00 T (ZF—+14F : B¥3.007T) °

HE_Z—+tHF=A=1+—HILFE RE
ARAR DM ZARREGTE - AAR]FEE
MBE-_T—"F=ZA=+—HER=F—+t
F=A=+—HILFERERH ARSI
DBRREZRE  2RIR=—X<"FNA
Zt+RBEEZZE-ARFE+ZA+ABET
24,419,213 B% % 2,268,062 % & I% [ B 7 &
001 TZAARFEBR(BE RN B
68,667,000 7T &2 7% % 7,075,000 7T ) ° % F %
MERAARERBEEROGESTAZARSE
HEF o

BE-Z-—N\F=A=+—HILFE ' RE
Z!K’ATA%ZMH%&%#%J RRATFEE
MEBE-_T—+tF=A=t+—HBER=F—N
FZA=T—HIFERARE XK
BWELARREZERE  DRIR =T —+tF
NhB=-t+hBER-—E—NE—HA=-+-RA%
1727,170,324 % % 23,236,275 IR B AR E B 5
¥0.01 TTZ AR R EBR(FBERLOBKE
75,455,000 7T & 7 ¥ 61,367,0007T ) ° % &
RNEARAAREREERNESHEZER
FhER -
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted on 17th August, 2012
pursuant to a resolution passed on the same date, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible persons and
will expire on 16th August, 2022 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share
options to the following eligible persons to subscribe for shares
in the Company:

(i)  any employee or proposed employee (whether full-time
or part-time) or executives, including executive director,
of any member of the Group, the Controlling Shareholder,
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
direct or indirect equity interests (the “Invested Entity”)
and/or their respective subsidiaries; or

(ii)  any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group, the
Controlling Shareholder or any Invested Entity; or

(iii) any consultant, adviser or agent (legal, financial or
professional) engaged by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; or

(iv) any vendor, supplier of goods or services or customer of
or to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Share options granted should be accepted within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of the
share options. The exercise price shall be determined by the
Board and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant of the share options; or (ii) the
average closing price of shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

There is no specific requirement that an option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board
is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum
period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period
during which an option may be exercised is determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than ten years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options under the Share Option Scheme may be granted when
aggregated with the maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under all the other schemes (the
“Scheme Limit”) is 10% of the total number of shares in issue
on the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme. The Scheme
Limit may be refreshed by a resolution in shareholders’ meeting
such that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of such
shareholders” approval. However, the Scheme Limit and any
increase in the Scheme Limit shall not result in the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and other schemes exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. No person shall be
granted a share option, within 12-month period of the date of
grant, exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of grant.

Annual Report % % @ 2017-2018
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32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The following table sets out the details of the Company’s share
options held by Directors, employees and other participants,
and movements in such holdings during the current and prior

years:

Exercise

32.

UBROBEAXN2RZ (&)
TERERES REERHEMSEEMRS
ARNRBREFT  ARKTFERBE
FERBED

Number of share options

EREHA

price
per share Exercised Lapsed Exercised Lapsed
Vesting (subjectto  Outstanding during during  Outstanding during during  Outstanding
Date of grant proportion  Vesting period Exercisable period adjustments)  at1.4.2016 the year theyear  at31.3.2017 the year theyear at31.3.2018
R R R
%-R7E “2-tE —2-)\F
SRARE  mA-A ZR=t-A ZR=t-8
BENS  BEAE (TFHE) HATE EREN HATE ERRN HAGR
HKS
Employees and other
participants:
EERAMSEE:
17102013 50% 17.10.2013-16.10.2014  17.10.2014-16.10.2017 3.00 235,000 = (20,000) 215,000 = (215,000) =
“R-SETATLR ZR-ZETATEEE R-METATLREE
Z3-RETATAR ZE-tETATRA
50% 17.10.2013-16.10.2015  17.10.2015-16.10.2017 3.00 1,790,000 (285,000) (10,0000 1,395,000 (60,0000 (1,335,000) -
ZT-=FtAttHE ZT-IFTATHEE
ZE-RETATAE ZE-HETATAR
Directors:
iz
17102013 50% 17.102013-16.102015  17.10.2015-16.10.2017 300 2,715,000 (80,000) - 2,635,000 - (2,635,000) =
Z2-ZEtATtE ZR-ZETATEAE ZR-RETATLRE
ZT-RFtATAR ZE-tETATAR
4740000 (3650000 (130000) 4245000 (60,000)  (4,185,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the years
ERT R 4,740,000 4,245,000 -
Weighted average exercise price per share (HKS)
SRIETSTER(ER) 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 300 3.00 NA

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average closing price of shares at the date of exercise
was HK$3.09 (2017: ranged from HK$3.03 to HK$3.13).

No share options were granted by the Company during both
years. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
4th April, 2018, the Company has granted a total of 27,020,000
share options to the eligible participants (the “Grantees”),
subject to acceptance by the Grantees, to subscribe for the
shares of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. As at
the date of this report, the Directors are still assessing the
impact of the share options granted.

HEABITEEREMNS - R1T6 B &
2 BB INREF W (B A 3.09 T (=
T—+F: NFEEE303TEEE313
TG °

A B L E R 3 R AR B AR o R
MARARHHA-Z—/\FNANAZ
NI E AR R ERIZEREE
MeEER2EE(ERADELEGH
2ﬂmmmﬁﬁhﬁuw$$®7&

D EEGFERAENEIAUEE - B
$$%H%v§$%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%
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34.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of loan notes and
bank and other borrowings disclosed in Notes 28 and 29,
respectively, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@ Categories of financial instruments

33.

34.

EXEBERE

AEEERHEN  UERALERE
BEARBELE  AEEBELERR
RaEthmRERHEREFALCR - AKH
ERRBEXFREIFTE -

REE 2 BREHEBIENE28 X295
AW E 2 BREER A RIBT REME
B RekBReEEBEBUAREKRQRE
BEAEGhEDZ(AEBTRARFEER
%) °

EEBXFEHNENEE - FRILERN
Hbh—R EFZEEARARERSR
MEAHERZER RREFZEH
AEEKBEBME - BT M
BRI RFIEEHRBERREER
FEHEBENGRE -

EMTIR
@ SMIASE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Financial assets SEEE
FVTPL BRAFESIREE AR 451,624 230,760
FVTOCI BRAFEYIER R AR
2E 103,571 249,969
Amortised cost B E RN
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEHEEERSEEIER) 2,237,882 3,137,357
Financial liabilities AR
Amortised cost BRI 3,225,749 3,646,852
Obligations under finance leases BB EAIE 125 235
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 34. ERMIAE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HEREKREEEEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity AEFBTESH T EBERER
investments, debt investment, debtors and deposits, other B EEEE EREREES -
loan receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, Hipelh B EIRES 2 DA
amounts due from associates, bank balances and cash, I8 - EUREE A TIERIE -« SRIT4E
creditors and deposits, amount due to an associate, loan EBRE FEHEE I RIES - B —
notes, and bank and other borrowings. Details of the BN T200E - BERERARE
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. ﬁ);zﬁ{ﬂ;{gg WESm T A=
The risks associated with these financial instruments ISR T IHEE - St ESF T
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and BEEzRRaETERRE (&I
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies GRS J—L & E 4 (BRE
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The ) EERBRERHESRERE
management manages and monitors these exposures to ;zu {a] Y51, ﬁtvﬂﬁﬁZB{%ﬁE{\T
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely Yo EIEEEIE REER N EE R
and effective manner. He(R S5 OIS B At BT
i
Market risk 5 7 f
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RIBEFH]  REEUIINESHEY
denominated non-monetary assets, monetary assets and EEKEE  EEEEREKAE
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: ZEEEMEMT :
(i) Currency risk (i) EEEE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have certain AAGZEHNBAREET
foreign currency bank balances, amounts due from PAONEESHE 2 $R1T4560 - &
joint ventures, amount due from an associate other A NTIZE - ER—F
loan receivables, refundable earnest monies, equity BESNTIRIE - HihEE

FoATREHED  KE

investments, debt investment, loan notes and certain

creditors and deposits which expose the Group to 8- EHEE - ERERE

foreign currency risk. Management has closely UEREFEMNEZEES -

monitored foreign exchange exposure and will SRNEHEAZINE R o

undertake procedures necessary to mitigate the EIE B 2 ) BE R ANE & R

currency risk. ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%gﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
REBRERE

Non-monetary assets
FEWEE
2018

Monetary assets
EREE

2018

—2-N\5

HK$'000

BRI

Monetary liabilities
ERAE

2018 2017

ZB-N\F —T+F

HK$'000  HK$'000

BT BETR

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
BETL

2017
“T—+tF
HK$/000
BETT

—B-N\%
HK$'000
BRI

us$ e - = 11,193 13,763 (1,572,790) (1,549,796)
EURO BT 30,985 25,325 - = - =
CAD e - = 24,296 23,308 - -
GBP HEE - - 4,411 = - -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

34. ERMI A ()
b)) BEEREEBEEERBEE)

Market risk (Cont’d) miEE R (&)
(i) Currency risk (Cont'd) (i) EERE(E)
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to effects of AEBFEAIZKEET
fluctuation in US$, EURO, CAD and GBP. BT - N R EEE R E) 25
2 .

The functional currency of the respective group
entities is HK$. The Group’s exposure to the
currency risk of US$ is limited because HK$ is
pegged to USS$.

HESEERZEERR
B AN EITEAEEH
0 AEEEHZXTEE
REBRAR

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to TR AEBERABE S
a 5% (2017: 5%) increase or decrease in HK$ B3 BT~ s g B 8E K
against EURO, CAD and GBP. 5% (2017: 5%) is the 5%(ZF—+H%F :5%) 2%
RE ° 5%(=F—+F : 5%)
RITASRELL X TIHEE
EEHEXAELRZAE

sensitivity rate used and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

BEEDR 2 5T -
Impact of EURO Impact of CAD Impact of GBP
Bnz¥eE mgzEe REHE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-0\F —FtF ZB-\F —FtF Z8-N\F -T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR E%TL B%TRn BT E%TR BRI
5% appreciation of the & &M FHE 5% :
functional currency:
Decrease in post-tax ~ NEERREi/4
profit for the year AR - - (1,014) (973) (184) -
Increase in other AEEAMEE
comprehensive FSC A2
expense for the year (1,294) (1,057) - - - -
5% depreciation of the e EMEE5% :
functional currency:
Increase in posttax AN EERFE
profit for the year A - - 1,014 973 184 -
Decrease in other TEEAMEE
comprehensive B
expense for the year 1,294 1,057 - - - -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the debt investment, fixed-rate
amounts due from joint ventures, fixed-rate other
loan receivables and loan notes as set out in Notes
18, 19, 21 and 28, respectively.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate other
loan receivables and bank and other borrowings as
set out in Notes 26, 21 and 29, respectively. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its bank and other
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, CAD
Prime Rate and LIBOR.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period which carried floating market interest rate.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
asset and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. Bank balances are excluded from the analysis
as the management considers the change in interest
rate is not significant. A 100 basis points (2017: 100
basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
March, 2018, excluding the capitalised borrowing
costs of approximately HK$1,773,000 (2017:
HK$1,184,000), would decrease/increase by
HK$9,138,000 (2017: decrease/increase by
HK$10,730,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate other loan receivables and bank and other
borrowings.

34. EWMITHE(E)

(b)

B %5 L B
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(if)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

Debt investment is excluded from the analysis as
the management considers the effect arising from
change in interest rate is not significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity investments and debt investment.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
listed equity investments. In addition, the Group
has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below includes equity
investments that are carried at fair values and has
been determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period. Debt
investment is excluded from the analysis as the
management considers the effect arising from
change in price is not significant.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 30% (2017: 10%) higher/lower:

e post-tax profit for the year ended 31st March,
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$71,344,000
(2017: HK$7,484,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity investments; and

o Investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$25,945,000 (2017:
HK$20,872,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of equity investments.

—NF=A=1—HIFE)

34. EWMITE(E)
b)) BREREEEERBEE)

5 ()
(i) FIEERE (&)

(iii)
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2018, other than debt investment,
debtors and deposits, other loan receivables, amounts
due from joint ventures, amounts due from associates and
bank balances whose carrying amounts best represent the
maximum exposure to credit risk as disclosed in Note
34(a), the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising
from the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed
in Note 42.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debtors and other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures and amounts due from associates at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due or being demanded for repayment.
Impairment allowances are made for losses that have
been incurred at the end of the reporting period. Exposure
to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the
ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet
interest and capital repayment obligations and by
changing the lending limits of each individual borrower
when appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed
in part by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal
guarantees from the borrowers. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the credit risk in relation to
amounts due from joint ventures and associates and the
development prospect of underlying projects or assets of
the joint ventures or associates, other loan receivables is
monitored on a revolving basis and subject to a quarterly
or more frequent review.

34. EWMITHE(E)

(b)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which accounted for
100% (2017: 100%) of the trade debtors as at 31st March,
2018.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in other loan
receivables as disclosed in Note 21, as two borrowers
accounted for 75% (2017: two borrowers accounted for
100%) of the total other loan receivables as at 31st
March, 2018. At 31st March, 2018, the majority of
borrowers of the loan receivables are either listed
companies in Hong Kong or private company (2017:

listed company in Hong Kong or private company).

The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk, other than concentration of
credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with high credit ratings, debt investment as
set out in Note 18, amounts due from joint ventures as set
out in Note 19, amounts due from associates as set in
Note 20, other loan receivables as set out in Note 21,
debtors as disclosed above and refundable earnest money
as set out in Note 25. The Group assesses the credit risk
by reviewing and monitoring the financial performance of
the counterparties and the management considers the
default risk is not significant.

—NF=A=1—HIFE)

34. EWMITE(E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1A

N

B 755 5 BT =E
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34.

—N\F=A=1+—HIFE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The Directors are taking active steps to improve the future
liquidity position of the Group by generating sufficient
operating funds internally and utilising undrawn banking
facilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

34. EMI A &)

(b)

BHEBEEEERBEK(E)
HmEEZEE
EERPDETARE  AEEER
&Hﬁﬁ%&iﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ B#ERNE
EEJ"‘ RAFEKF - U RAEE

BREESMAERSRERD
ZEE - EEEERRITEEZH
RER - LIRS ERRE -

EERIVEBREHNEAEERR
ZRBEEMR - BRERBEE
RACEESRBAARBARITE
BERE -

T%Eﬁﬁ‘]ﬁiITEEET%IHEﬁ?Mmm
ZIETESRBERTEROZNHRE
S e Ti‘%ﬂ&ﬁfﬁ(‘ﬂ‘%@//\ﬁﬁz
KPR EMBERURR SR
ERE - ABME - WHREKRE
BERZRITER  THRBTER

AJREE R Tfiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ C—E#ETA
XFPHHARREEE - TREIEN
BREASHERE - FBRER
FEGE  RMRBEBERBREH
RZFEFH -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 34. WMIA )
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) BHEEREBEEERBEE)
(Cont’d)
Liquidity tables mBELEK

On Carrying

Weighted ~ demand or 3 months Total amount
average less than to Tto5  undiscounted at
interest rate 3 months 1 year years cash flows 31.3.2018
R

Z2-)\F

N2 =

mEFS  BEXY AeRE  =1-H
NE  OR=AAR -E3f a5 2REE

) HK$000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Tn  EMTn  ERTR  EBTR BWTx

2018 “ENF
Non-derivative financial labilties ik emMaR
Creditors and deposits ERERiEE - 78,108 - - 78,108 78,108
Amount due to an associate fEf— B A A A)Z0R - 132,532 - - 132,532 132,532
Obligations under finance leases RAREAE

~ fixed rate -E8 5.67 22 49 63 134 125
Bank and other borrowings BhRAR &

~variable rate - 28 2.64 1,339,625 - 143,072 1,482,697 1,476,900
Loan otes - fixed rate S9ZH 78 475 18132 54307 1641786 1714315 1538209

1,568,419 5446 1784921 340778 3225874

Financial guarantee contracts (Note 42) HBERAH(HE4) 937,507 - - 937,507 -

On Carrying

Weighted ~ demand or 3 months Total amount
average less than to Tto5  undiscounted at
interest rate 3 months 1 year years cash flows 3132017

HSR=fiA : —En% 25
HK$/000 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$/000
BT R¥Tm  A¥Tr EETE

2017 “E3-tf
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fiitemat
Creditors and deposits ERETREE = 123,707 = = 123,707 123,707
Amounts due to associates ENBEARTE = 418,915 = = 418,915 418,915
Obligations under finance leases BEANEAE

fixed rate -E8 5.61 3 87 135 254 235
Bank and other borrowings RIRAMEE

~ variable rate -%5 222 1,220,370 253,438 125550 1,599,358 1,588,680
Loan notes - fixed rate ENEE-ER 4.75 17,956 53,868 1,697,636 1,769,460 1,515,550

1,780,980 307,393 1,823,321 3,911,694 3,647,087

Financial guarantee contracts (Note 42) s ERA D (it 4) - 838,472 - - 838,472 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (EHZ - —\F=A=1+—HI-FE)

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st March,
2018, the carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$1,084,761,000 (2017: HK$1,214,526,000). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the Directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that the undiscounted
principal and interest of such bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements as below.

PR=@EHA

Less than 3 months

3 months to 1 year —EBRE—%F
1to 5 years —ZERF
Exceeding 5 years HehF

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amount included above for variable interest rate
instrument for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if variable interest rate differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of reporting period
based on spot rates.

34. SRMIAE(E)

(b)

MBEREEEBRREE (&)

TREELE (&)

MR ESREBIERZ RITE KR
FABIER R DA A [ B Sk D
R=Z@EA] 2REEE - R=F
—N\E=ZA=1+—8 " %ZS5RTE
A2 BREE A% 1,084,761,000
T( = T — £ &£: & ¥
1,214,526,0007C) ° &£t R AL E
2R - EEAEERITAA
REITHEEMBREELINEERE
ko BEMEXERITERZ AR
WAE &S5RI E K HFrak
TEEERAEENT »

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok v
24,726 19,315
200,989 303,284
509,982 523,748
488,257 488,548
1,223,954 1,334,895

LR AMBERENZEBEARN
ERXZE T HRRBEAZUAR - K
SERBERBERI L REEZBIER
SRZESEHE - REREHRZ
B AEERSTAAIEARE
LR SEMFRIAE - AT - BREAME
AR ZH T REEREOR
B2 AIREMEm TR EE) - BRAA AL
MERIEE R 5 $ 75 i R R 5 8
WHRIBEHREEERZAELEER
e

557 B F) R B0 85 25 R DN
B 2 B TR - 8] R
WD EERAEZFRTASE
B IRRE T -
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

34. ERMI A ()

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (00 ZMIBZAFEE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are BEEMREEL N FEFTEZERE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis Bt EEZ A FE

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3 as set out in
Note 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

Set out below is the information about how the fair values
of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair
value are determined, including the valuation techniques
and inputs used:

Fair value
hierarchy

Financial assets Fair value as at

Valuation technique
and key inputs

fhERER

SREE RUTBHZATE
313.2018  31.3.2017
“E-N\f —Tt%

ZA=t-H =A=1-H

HK$'000  HK$'000
BEtn  BETRH

NYESER

Financial assets at FVTPL

ELL DN 1]

AEERD EREETRRE R
ZRFERE - TRIEHAHET
ZETMEELAFEZEN (AR
mE - B AAETEREARK
B RBEBREBEAFEFEMRE
ABEZABEEEHATEFE
DRERFESFR(MEIMFSE
—E=R)Z2ER -

AT ESERBEEAEERAFE
AEZERMTAZAFEZER
BREMAABMBETERBABIE

Significant Relationship
unobservable  of unobservable
inputs  inputs to fair value
BiBER
ABER
NYEZBRE

EXBLRE
aArRE

BRATEFIRRAABE
ZEREE

Listed equity securities 277,745 82,902 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in an active N/A N/A

FTRAES F— market T @R
REBTEM R E

Unlisted investment fund - 1,675 Level 2 Quoted price from broker in N/A N/A

FrmREES F=H markets that are not active T @R
ROERMS BLERE

Unlisted investment funds 7,062 5051 Level 3 Net asset value of the unlisted Net asset value An increase

BEZE  inthe net asset
value would result
in an increase in

fair value, and

in overseas F=5

WS LREES

equity and partnership
investments that are the deemed
resale price of the investments
provided by the external

counter-parties vice versa
FETRAREEAIBRS BEFEEN
UhMREREEER, REHATE
A¥RECEERE B R
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 34. €WMTIH#E)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont’d) (© SRMIBE>ATVMEINEE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are RS N EE T RE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont’d) EeREE>AFE(E)

Significant Relationship

Fair value Valuation technique unobservable  of unobservable

Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs  inputs to fair value
BiBRG

fhERER EXRERR ABBR

THEE RATEM2AYE AFESE  FEGARE BAEE  AVEZERE

3132018 31.3.2017
“E-\E —T—tF
SESr=F EF=—E
HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT  BETn

Debt investment - listed - 7,960 Level 2 Quoted price from broker N/A N/A
notes Ff in markets that are not active TR TER
[BRRE - LARE RAREMS B HE
Financial assets at
FVTOCI
BATEFIRREA
Af2EKE
Listed equity securities 73,271 219,269 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in an active N/A N/A
ERRAES E-& market TER eyl
REBTEAEUHE
Unlisted equity securities 30,300 30,700 Level 3 (note (i) Market approach which uses prices  Minority and Asignificant
I ERAES E=H (M) and other relevant information marketability  increase in the
generated by market transactions  discount of 25% minority and
involving comparable businesses ~ (2017: 25%) marketability
migE RS RREEKL (note (i) discount would
s AMEERRER SURRER R resultin a
REER e significant
HEE25%  decrease in fair
(Z2—tF: value, and
25%) vice versa
(W) DRBRERR
sk NirE
RELIHS
NFHEAE TS
RZIFR

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED (k1Y) EriEEEAR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont’d)

notes:

(0]

(i)

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities as at 31st March,

2018 and 2017 are determined by Asset Appraisal Limited, using
the Guideline Public Company Method.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial

assets is as follows:

At 1st April, 2016
Addition
Unrealised loss, recognised in:
— profit or loss
— other comprehensive income

At 31st March, 2017
Addition
Unrealised loss, recognised in:
— profit or loss
— other comprehensive income

At 31st March, 2018

34. ERMI A ()
muaz/*wa—rg( E)

(c)

Unlisted investment

p

(i)

HF

FETRABSN T\ FRF
—tF= A=+ —AZATEETH
FAEFERNERATNRAREA
RATEEE -

E=RAFEFEZCHEEHRN
T:

Unlisted equity

funds in overseas securities Total
HWighz
FLHREES FEHRAES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEETIT BT T BT
RZE—RFHA—H 3,490 30,800 34,290
#n 1,561 = 1,561
KA TR Z ARBBEE

- 8% -

- Hfth 2ERes - (100) (100)
RZF—tF=A=+—H 5,051 30,700 35,751
N 2,011 - 2,011
RATRER 2 R EHEE

— 1Bz -

- Hith 2 E Rz - (400) (400)
R=ZF—/\F=A=1+—8H 7,062 30,300 37,362

A 5% increase/decrease in the minority and marketability discount

holding all other variables constant would decrease/increase the

carrying amount of the unlisted equity securities by HK$2,000,000

(2017: HK$2,100,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 34. EMIAEE)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont’d) (00 ERMIBZAFEIE(E)
There was no transfer amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level RREEEXN F— —R=H2
3 for both years. RS 48 11 B LA B R ©
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities SREERSHEEZ AT ETIE
are determined in accordance with generally accepted BEAZEBEAUGBEESRED
pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis. MEBTE -
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of EEHRANGA VS RE IR
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at RIEZSHEERERHEBEZER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements EEEEAFLEREE -

approximate their fair values.

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 35. BIEEZBEFIEEA BB YR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRFAVNAREEREZDMELRELZ
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash 28 ERBRERFRSETH - EE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those PRELARBEEDFEKLIBENEAE
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, EireRenE RN EARE G
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows EEBREREZREMEBIXRKREER
as cash flows from financing activities. =i
Obligations
under Bank
Dividend finance and other
payable leases  borrowings
BE RITR
BARE HERE Hipfe &
At Tst April, 2017 RZE—+FWMA—H - 235 1,588,680 1,588,915
Financing cash flows MERERE (61,102) (1100 (129,143)  (190,355)
Scrip dividend AR (136,822) - - (136,822)
Dividends recognised HRED K ZEE
as distribution 197,924 = = 197,924
Exchange adjustment P& 5 8 = = 17,363 17,363
At 31st March, 2018 RN-F— \F
=RA=+—H - 125 1,476,900 1,477,025

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=—F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 36. FHRWEHB AT MWEEE
SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries during REBZE-Z—tFE=A=+—HLEE
the year ended 31st March, 2017 ERWBEHBATMKBEE
(@ On 3rd May, 2016, the Group entered into a sale and @ MZE—XRFhHA=H K~EHRHE
purchases agreement with certain independent third ETBIE=FFIVEE W A
parties to acquire the entire equity interest in CWB Land Iy B CWB Land Limited ([CWBJ)
Limited (“CWB”) for a cash consideration of PG AREZ  HEREABK
HK$43,000,000. The transaction was completed on 4th 43,000,0007C ° K ZHER=_F—~
July, 2016. FLAMAREX -
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: T HHNEEEEFEMT
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets acquired: Fr S & E#1E -
Stock of properties MEFE 42,846
Furniture, fixtures and equipment &L RERRB 154
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWBR SR - =& RIBRT IR 11
Bank balances and cash IRITAEREIRE 41
Tax payables JERTHIR (52)
Net assets acquired P iE & EFE 43,000
Total consideration satisfied by: BUATHRAXIANRERE -
Cash H& 41,000
Deposit paid as at 31st March, 2016 RZE-—RFE=RA=+—HBZEN
(included in other non-current assets) e (BIEEEMIERBIEE) 2,000
43,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEEIR ML FE -
Bank balances acquired FrU g IR T 45 8% 41
Less: Cash consideration paid B BREReRE (41,000)
(40,959)
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 36. EBWEHB AT HIKEEE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries during REBZE-ZE—tFE=A=1+—HLEE

the year ended 31st March, 2017 (Cont’d) ZBWEHBATMKBEE (&)

(b)  On 8th April, 2016, the Group entered into a sale and by RZE—XREWMANR - K~&EEH
purchases agreement with an independent third party to — BN E=HEINEEHE A
acquire its entire equity interest in Anyone Holdings 15 8% E 78 Anyone Holdings Limited
Limited (“Anyone”) for a cash consideration of (TAnyone]) By 2 ZBAG A #E 25 - B
HK$38,000,000. The transaction was completed on 11th SR (B A 38,000,000 7T © X5
April, 2016. RZZE—ARFEA+—HZK -
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: TS EEFEMT

HK$’000
BT T
Net assets acquired: P & E#1E -
Stock of properties MELFE 38,000
Total consideration satisfied by: BRATHRZANRERE :
Cash Re 38,000
Cash outflow arising on acquisition: WS FrEE £ IR & L F 88 -
Cash consideration paid ENBRERE (38,000)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR M s R Mo

37. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

38.

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

— construction of investment properties
— acquisition of stock of properties

Other commitments:

— acquisition of stock of properties

— construction of stock of properties

— investment in an associate

— investments in joint ventures

— loan to an associate

— loan to joint ventures

— capital contribution in a company for
a proposed land development in
Vietnam

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year:

Premises

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

37. ERXRRHEHMEE

2018
—B-N\F

2017
ZE—+tF
HK$’000
BT

HK$'000
BET T

ERTRERNGRE M HHRE

BBz EARMY
- BRI EE 16,073 26,787
- WEYMEFE 14,060 -
30,133 26,787
H fth A&
- WEMEFE - 55,343
-HEMEFE 176,569 -
- AR —EHE QR 106,200 -
- REREE AT 895 3,091
- [ —fEEE QR ERK 598,745 _
- AEENRREER 3,357 11,593
— BB R B R A T |
—FAENEE
9,937 9,841
895,703 79,868
925,836 106,655

38. RKREHERE
AEBERABEA

2018
—E2-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
BT

HK$'000
BET T

FARBEEREX 2 &KIE
HERK :

95,472 82,761
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

. REHEERE@®)
FEBEREBEA(E)

RBERR - AEERBE AT HELE
MEARTHFMNZRRKERE
FEELDT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

Within one year —F A 84,037 78,679
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EERF(BEEERE) 86,088 158,363
170,125 237,042

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and hotel. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms of one to six years and rentals are
fixed.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$16,436,000 (2017: HK$13,822,000). The properties which
were leased out as at 31st March, 2018 had rental yield of
approximately 1% (2017: 2%) and with committed tenants with
the longest tenure for two (2017: two) years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

REHENAEARERESE TR FE
MBERNzEE - HARER—EXR
F - HEEE -

AEBEERHHEA
FABERZYERS KA AEBE
16,436,000c( = T — + F: B &
13,822,000T ) °c R =T — \F = A
—t+—HEHEYFE2HERRKRO A1
E(ZZ—+4F:2F) BEEPFFIZ2H
PEREBHME (ZZT—EF : MF) -

RIS ER - AREE R T KRR
AE R REAS T -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Within one year —F R 3,077 3,556
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZELF(BEERWF) 208 1,261
3,285 4,817

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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39.

40.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (Z - —/\F=A=+—HILFE)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings and credit facilities were secured by the following:

UE 2 YT
BREME
MEGFE
R—HEAERAZ

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Stock of properties

Interest in a joint venture

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance for eligible employees. The assets of the
scheme are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents contributions paid or payable to the fund by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there
are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving
the retirement benefits scheme and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group has also
joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee.

39.

40.

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018

BEEEHA
RBERR  AREZRTREMER
UREEREIATIISREER

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BYEFTT BT T

929,332 787,948

900,000 754,000

475,690 605,565

141,298 49,069

2,446,320 2,196,582
EAREREE

AEE AL EREBHITREBRERN
(RBE ST BB RE 2 € BB FUR K A& F
8 e ZATEIZEETARTATEZ
EEHFRFE °

RER BB RIBR 2 KA TE AR EIZZ
FEIREMERFELRAZES DMK
PR 2 15K - B B E 2 BUEUSH A
RHFZEE - RDR Y 2 3R] A MR H0R
REB RN 2] -

RBERR - ARELEFEBROR
RAEFIEt 8 A A BIAETR AN S B 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (HE—ZT—N\F=ZA=1+—HILFE)

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme with a cap.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$5,683,000 (2017: HK$4,507,000) represented
contributions paid or payable to the schemes by the Group
during the year.

40.

RKEREHE ()

RERESFTEZRA  BERERES
RE B RAP AT E L R A ET Sl
R AERERBEAEZE—BEER
TS AT ARE K - NGRS
KPR 2 RBE MK - DEAE
B %A R OIS LR 2R E
HRAES B HEN Z 5K - WEE
a2 W R A E DR A R F R 2 B

TFEIBAR BB AT ERMEEZ
BREERAKBHAIZKE - HHEAR
BIAMETER —B 5 AR RENE
BRI BIFRAZES - AKREHE
REMET S 2 E— B ERIELTEIET

FRTE LK o

FRN - REEERR IR ZBK A
5683,000C( — & — £ F: B &
4,507,000 70 ) IE AL B E Mk B 2 5t

IR -
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41. BREATRSZRES
Related party transactions FREALRS
(i)  During the year, the Group entered into the following (i) TR AEEZHEFHE E v
transactions with related parties: ARG :

Related party Nature of transaction 2018 2017
REEAL XHH%E —B-\E —T—+f

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Joint ventures:

BENA

Fortress State (as defined in Note 22(b)) Interest income 19,822 20,264

R (& RMRE22(b)) B A
Rental expense 72,000 70,400
HEM

1488 Alberni LPDH (as defined in Interest income 19,082 17,657

Note 19) (& L HI7E19) M BWA

1488 Alberni LPI (as defined in Note 19) Interest income 1,004 929

(E&ERHFTE19) ESEON

City Synergy Limited Management fee received 480 240
ERERE

Eastern Cosmo Limited Property commission income 3,420 =
BERMERE

Associates:

BERA

Concordia (as defined in Note 20) Management fee received 120 120

B4 (E& RME20) BEkERE

Macau Properties Holdings Limited Rental income 1,141 1,110

P ESB AR AT HBWA

Concordia Properties Development Consultancy fee 14,000 14,000

Holdings Limited BRE
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Cont’d)
Related party transactions (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

(i)

Related party
EREAL

Other related companies:

41.

notes Nature of transaction

M REME

EREALRGRERRE)

BBREALRE (B)

M (&)

BtEERA -

ITC Management Limited (“ITCM”) (@ Rental income and
EHEEXEERRAR management fee income
(IEHhxER]) HEWAREERERA

Hi Park Limited (“Hi Park”) (b)  Licence fee received

SAERAR(=AE])

received
HeRXEUEeREER
Rental expense
HEeMx%
Vectr Venture Limited (“Vectr”) (c) Rental income and
management fee income
HEBRAREEERA
notes: PfaE -
() ITCM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PT International (@
Development Corporation Limited, which was a substantial
shareholder of the Company prior to 25th January, 2017. The
Company is ultimately controlled by a person and his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules), who had significant influence over
ITCM up to 28th March, 2017.
(b) Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, an executive Director, is also the shareholder (b)
of Hi Park.
(0) Vectr is controlled by Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, being an executive (©
Director.
(d) At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments for the (d)

R CE RS

Rental and management fee

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease with Fortress State amounting to HK$76,800,000 (2017:
HK$73,600,000) which fall due within one year; and
HK$80,000,000 (2017: HK$156,800,000) which fall due in the
second to fifth year inclusively.

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @

REMESEER QA

2018
—B-N\F
HK$'000
BETT

2017

T —tF
HK$'000

BETT

N/A 2,772
391 538
564 394
24 -
1,088 634

R-_ZTE—+t&—A_+HAR/ &%
TEEBEARNREEREREBRR
BREMCESEERAAZ—H2EN
BAR c AQRH—BR=ZT—tF
AT \BRIYEFELEERAS
HENZATREBEA(EER
ETRAD FE R -

FEGELE(BITEER) BRAZIR

Vectr Jh B 11T 25 S BRIBRA SE A2

RIEHR - AEBEBRER—FA
FH 2 R ATHE 2 RRRIE
A E N R BB 76,800,0007T( =
T —+4F : B%73,600,0007T) : &
RE_ZFHF (BEEEME) IS
Z RS SRS 2 RRSKIERE
- ZR A HE B 7 #5 80,000,000 7T (= &
—+4F : 7% 156,800,0007T) °
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41.

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41. EEEATXRZREER(E)

(Cont’d)

Related party transactions (Cont’d) BEEALRE (&)

(ii)  Compensation of key management personnel (i) EEEIEA SR
The remuneration of key management personnel, REETBEBEAE (AIES) B
representing the Directors, during the year was as follows: O

2018 2017
—g-\F —T+t%F

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Short-term benefits y SR B Y] 43,570 37,540
Post-employment benefits B2 R A 588 570
44,158 38,110

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEMEe T BFHEEE2RER
remuneration committee, with reference to the prevailing i HEZBEMEBE  AASE
market conditions, their duties and responsibilities and B EISFTIR N R R R IFELE
time spent on the affairs of the Group as well as their B o
performance.

Related party balances BHREALER

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set HEMEALZ W ARERERFHEIRN

out in the consolidated statement of financial position and in A MBI RIARME19 5% 20

Notes 19 and 20.

Other related party transactions HibEBEALRS

The Company provided corporate guarantee for loan facilities RRBIgETEERF R E QG E
granted to certain joint ventures and associates. Details of the REFRMERTRARER - BHERF
guarantee are set out in Note 42. TEERBIFE42 -
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42,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. RAREE

As at 31st March, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s contingent }5/\_i NER - E—+F=H=+—
liabilities mainly arose from financial guarantee contracts by - @Zj%ﬁ{ﬁzx BiEBmE
provision of corporate guarantee to its joint ventures and /\M’\T&%M’ijf AT AEHER
associates as follows: FTE S BTG EIRE 4 -

2018 2017
—2-N\E C—T+tF

HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

a 50% owned joint venture BB 50% 26 &R R] 91,000 18,800
a 40% owned associate A 40% 2 Bt & A7) 337,596 331,369
a 28% owned joint venture in Canada HH28% 2 NEREE AT 144,561 138,683
a 50% owned joint venture in Canada BH50% 2 MEXRAE AT 364,440 349,620
The Directors considers that the fair value of the above EERALRERZA $@#%}]¢Fﬁ§§’m
guarantees is insignificant on initial recognition and it is not RPN EE A+ 7oA B B 8 B A 4 & R 4%
probable that an outflow in settlement will be required. B o

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43, XA TBEHRREBE
THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E BT T ST IT

Non-current assets EMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZKE 1,074,530 1,079,875
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 5,406,563 5,099,712
6,481,093 6,179,587

Current assets MENEE
Other receivables and prepayments  E fib & U 5k 18 & T8 (- 5/ I8 334 375
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 354,172 561,264
354,506 561,639
Current liabilities mEaE

Other payables and accruals HoAth 8 A5 3RIB Ko FE AT 2 989 1,030
Bank borrowings RITEE 119,915 239,837
120,904 240,867
Net current assets MENEEFE 233,602 320,772
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHAE 6,714,695 6,500,359

Non-current liability SEmEBIAE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A<t — I Bt /B8 22 R RKIE 400,995 696,178
6,313,700 5,804,181

Capital and reserves PR s
Share capital %N 9,377 8,873
Reserves G () 6,304,323 5,795,308

6,313,700 5,804,181
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43, A TBMEMRREBE &)

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)
Note: Bz

(a) Reserves () @

Share-
Capital based

Share  Contributed redemption payment Retained

premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE URGH R
RGEE BB 1] XA REBEAF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT BETT BETT BT BT
(note)

THE COMPANY NG|
At 1st April, 2016 RZZ—"EMA—H 3,099,694 113,020 9,185 2,928 1,919,601 5,144,428
Profit and total comprehensive AERRNREAKRER

income for the year - - - - 834,960 834,960
Exercise of share options B RRE 1317 - - (225) - 1,092
Transfer of lapse of share options  FERR#EARAEE A = = = (81) = 81)
Issue of shares pursuant toscrip — 1RIEABRA ST BB 1Tk {D

dividend scheme for

~2016 final dividend - SR NERERE 68,423 = - - - 68,423
-2017 interim dividend - ZE—FERERE 7,052 - - - - 7,052
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 {EA k2 IR 8 (FizE13)

(Note 13) - - - - (260,566) (260,566)
At31st March, 2017 R=2—t£=A=1-8 3,176,486 113,020 9,185 2622 2493995 5795308
Profit and total comprehensive AERDEN R EERGRER

income for the year - - - - 572,912 572,912
Exercise of share options Tr{ErERE 216 - - 37) - 179
Transfer of lapse of share options  FRRHERRE & - - - (2,585) 114 2471)
Issue of shares pursuanttoscrip — IREEMARR S8 TR D

dividend scheme for

~2017 final dividend - TEEFERERE 75,184 - - - - 75,184
2018 first interim dividend -2 \FER
RS 61,135 - - - - 61,135
Dividends recognised as distribution ##2{E5 k2 &8 (Hf&E13)

(Note 13) - - - - (197,924) (197,924)
At 31st March, 2018 R=F-\F=A=+—A 3,313,021 113,020 9,185 - 2,869,097 6,304,323
note: The contributed surplus of the Company represented the credit Misk : RABZHMARBBIERE T —TF

arising from capital reduction pursuant to the capital = A+ =B 2 RAEEETRAEDR
reorganisation on 13th March, 2010. FRES#R -

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
March, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

E400
ARFEENBATR-B—N\FR=
T LE=A=t—AZHBOT

44.

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
iR/ BR/ BRARMAR
HEARZRE R k& /EhEx ARAFBCRORG EREREI L IBXHK
Directly Indirectly
&
2018 2017 2018
“E-NE “ETtEF ZR-N\F
% % %
Ace Idea Corporate Limited British Virgin Islands  USST ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ZERAES 1 ETEBR AR
Advance Tech Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Securities investment
HEARLA Bk AR TEER E5RE
Anyone British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Property development
ZERAES 1ETEBR VES S
Assets Island Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Property development
Bk AR TEER VES
Assets Oasis Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ZERLES 1 ETEBR AR
CWB Hong Kong HK$209 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property development
{30 R 209 BB YESS
Dormax Limited Hong Kong HKS1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Property development
SERRAT BR BRI TEER VES
DS Eastin Hong Kong HK$20 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
ABRR Bk AB0TEER RARR
Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ZERAES 1ETEBR AR
Global Intelligence Investments  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited RBRAES 1% B AR L
Great Intelligence Limited Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property investment
&R AR T EER VESIE
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

44. FEMBE LT (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
e/ B/ BRTRMR
HWEAREH R BA/HRER ARARKERTRG, ERERADL IREH
Directly Indirectly
B& L
2018 2017 2018
AL e S
% % %
ITCP Alberni Holdings Limited ~ Canada CAD100 common shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
JIEIN 100 ER AR
ITC Properties Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Money lending
RHBENHFARDA B B TERR &3
ITC Properties (Hong Kong) British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ARRLES 1XTE B RARR
TC Properties Investment (China)  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited RBRIHE 1 X ERR LS
TC Properties (Macau) Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ABELES 1XTERK RARR
ITC Properties Management Hong Kong HK$2,000 - - 100 100 Securities investment and
Limited & ordinary shares provision of management
BRUEEEARLA 2,000 ERR services
HK$500,000 - - - - BAERARRHEERE
non-voting deferred
shares (note )
781 500,0007
ERFRELK
(Hfita)
TC Properties (Overseas) Limited  British Virgin Islands  US$100 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
RERIES 100X ERR BARHR
ITC Properties (Townsend House)  United Kingdom GBP1 ordinary share - - 90.1 90.1 Property investment and
Company Limited B 1REEAR development
NERERER
Keen Step Corporation Limited  Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property investment
BRERLF &R BELTERR MERE

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EHESERRAR
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Name of subsidiary

WEADEH

Le Petit Rosedale Hotel Limited
RERREEERA]

Million Orient Limited
REARAH

Navy Blue Group Limited

Rank Ace

Rosedale Group Management
Limited
HESEEEARAA

Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited

NEHBEERRAF
Rosedale Restaurant and Catering

Limited
HEESBRAR

Silver Infinite

Smart Eagle Holdings Limited

Solid Riches Limited

EHERAT

Success Well Investment Limited

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 4. TERBAT (E)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
e/ B/ BRTRAR
R B /g ARAMBERORG ERERES L IERK
Directly Indirectly
E& L
2018 2017 2018
Z¥-\f TtF -B-NF
% % %
Hong Kong HKS$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Hotel operation
Bt BRI TEER BEERE
Hong Kong HKS$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
Bk BB TEER REZR
British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
B 1XTERRK AR
British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Property investment
ABRLES 1 XTERR VESE
Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Provision of management
&b AR TERR services
RUEERS
Hong Kong HKS$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Hotel operation
Bk BB TEER LR
Hong Kong HK$1,991,061,472 - = 100 100 Restaurant operation
B ordinary shares BEEE
78%1,991,061,47270
British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share 100 100 - - Investment holding
ABELES 1R ERRK REZK
British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ABRLES IXTERR REZR
British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
ABELES 1XTERRK REZK
Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property investment
BE AELTERR VESE

REREBRRAA
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(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (BZ=T—/\F=A=+—HILFE)

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration/ share capital/
establishment registered capital
e/ B/ BRTRAR
WEARZH AR B/ EfER

Name of subsidiary

2018
ZE-)\§
%

Top Century International Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share -

EBRAHE 1EnERR

Treasure Generator Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 ordinary share 100
ZERES 1ETERR

Unique Way Limited British Virgin Islands  US$2 ordinary shares -

HABRAA EERAEE DETLERR

“REMERREERLE  PRC(noteh) RMB275,389,430 -
B (D) AR% 2753894307

notes:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group,

practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(b) The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

Other than =T8I ZE ¥ AR 2 E which operates in the
PRC, ITC Properties (Townsend House) Company Limited
which operates in the United Kingdom, and ITCP Alberni
Holdings Limited which operates in Canada, all of the above
subsidiaries have their principal place of operations in Hong
Kong.

Other than Treasure Generator Limited which is the issuer of
the Notes as disclosed in Note 28(a), none of the subsidiaries
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

4. TEWMBEAT (&)

Percentage of
issued share/
registered capital
held by the Company

Principal activities

ARARKERIRG,/ ERERA AL IERK
Directly

Indirectly
L
2018
“E-NE
%
- 100 100 Investment holding
100 - - Loan note issuer
ERRRETA
- 100 100 Investment holding
- 100 100 Property development
VES
HI7E :

@  UIFHAKERAZERERELERD &
B 3 S B ) R AR AR, ‘X?’*%E&’&
AMEMBRAS 2B E K ERRAGHRN
BERE  NERF2EEIMDIK

b  EHERRBNFERIZNEEELE

BR-mRIMEXRBEARARZEZM
2L 7 H B - ITC Properties (Townsend
House) Company Limited 2 £ & b B i
R ZE B 2 ITCP Alberni Holdings Limited
Z%«%fﬁgﬁuﬁ’\ﬂﬂiﬁﬂ\ iz =)
NEIZ EBRKEHMBEMAEE -

& Treasure Generator Limited ( 20 Hf 7
@FT#HE) RRIBZIT AN RIS

HR S FREMEME - SHEB A E

EEARERE 2 EBES

EXRFINESRAUAKRERENEE
BEAXEBZARANBRR - EER
BB EMHBARZENEEHE
@B I °
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44.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 44,

(for the year ended 31st March, 2018) (B Z=F—)/\F=A=+—HI-FE)

At the end of the reporting period, the compositions of the
Company’s subsidiaries are as follows. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

FEXK

Property
SUES

Hotel and leisure

B IE KB

Securities investments

EFRE

Finance

A

Others
HAh

Country/place of incorporation/establishment

MM, R ZER, R

Hong Kong/PRC/Canada/Others
B/ HENEXREA

Hong Kong/PRC/Others
BB/ R EHAM

Hong Kong/Others
BB b

Hong Kong/Others
e

Hong Kong/PRC/Macau/Others
BB/ HE R EA

Annual Report 3 @ 2017-2018

FEMBE QR @)

RBERR - ARFHE AR AR
T ZEMBRAARMBANEELE -
&QWE Bz EBXBHANT

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
33 25
16 16
3 3
3 3
99 100
154 147




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
CURL

For the year ended 31st March,
HE=A=t—-HALEFE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

—FNF —T—hHF ET—FF T—+tF ZEB-NE
HK$/000 HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BETrx BETrx BB Ta

Revenue Wz 35,274 59,610 143,402 188,871 246,625
Profit before taxation B 5 A2 430,848 823,710 1,467,846 302,849 183,626
Taxation Fi18 (44,597) (22,646) (9,227) (24) (1,477)
Profit for the year ANEE T 386,251 801,064 1,458,619 302,825 182,149
Profit attributable to: THIA TG EF) :
Owners of the Company ~ ARRQEHA A 386,853 803,550 1,460,094 303,238 182,488
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#ZEf% #E2S (602) (2,486) (1,475) (413) (339)

386,251 801,064 1,458,619 302,825 182,149

As at 31st March,
MR=B=+—8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

—T-ME —F-AF —BRF —T—tF —B-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETIT AB%Tr BETT BRI BBTT

Total assets BERE 5399219 6,206,445 7,679,130 9,442,543 8,983,396
Total liabilities BIRME (1,662,621) (2,012,658) (2,164,232) (3,865,117) (3,446,488)

3,736,598 4,193,787 5,514,898 5,577,426 5,536,908

Equity attributable to: THALREIERER

Owners of the Company AR E#HE A 3,737,891 4,194,070 5,516,749 5,574,275 5,532,655
Non-controlling interests ~ JE{E % #E2E (1,293) (283) (1,851) 3,151 4,253

3,736,598 4,193,787 5,514,898 5,577,426 5,536,908

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
FTEMEWR

Group'’s
Approximate Stage of ownership

Location gross floor area Lease term completion rEEZ

1ty 2 BAOREER B TR ] BEE
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SELF USE AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

BEERARREZME

30th Floor, Bank of America Tower, 13,880 Long Office Completed 100%
No. 12 Harcourt Road, Central, KH i/ EERK

Hong Kong

BEBTHRERE125
ERIRITH L 301E

Le Petit Rosedale Hotel 31,000 Long Hotel Completed 100%
No. 7 Moreton Terrace, = BE EERK

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB EEREZT7 R

AR 4 B
Cheuk Nang Plaza 55,600 Long Office/Car Parks ~ Completed 100%
Nos. 244, 246, 248 and 250 =5 MAE/ B BEK

Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB BITHBTIE244 - 246 - 248 %

25058 FREE
Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Beijing 400,000 Medium Hotel Completed 20%
No. 8 Jiang Tai Road West, Chao Yang H A 5 =835

District, Beijing, the PRC
I R A & FE S 8 5

tRIABBE

Rosedale Hotel Kowloon 110,000 Long Hotel Completed 40%
No. 86, Tai Kok Tsui Road, =3 BEE B &R

Tai Kok Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

EENEAABEABEE 865

NEEHBBE

The Westin Bayshore, 442,000 Freehold Hospitality/ Completed 50%
1601 Bayshore Drive, KA Conference/  B&RK

Vancouver, BC, Canada Ancillary Uses

MERRE S Mk EERTE BIE/ &%

Bayshore Drive 16071 5 RER®

BESERRITHE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEMEWER

Group'’s
Approximate Stage of ownership
Location gross floor area Lease term  Use completion rEEZ

1t 2 BAREER B Rz TERE I ] BEE
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

STOCK OF PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

ERUEEFE
Nos. 205 — 211A Hai Tan Street, 38,000 (Gross site Long Residential/ Foundation works 100%
Sham Shui Po, Hong Kong area approximately & Commercial completed (Anticipated
BRI B EAT205-211A 5 4,550 sq. ft.) =P completion date: 2020)
(#asth AR TR WETEETK
#94,550°F 77 R) (EHTHE
—E_FF)
Lote 2 to Lote 12 of One Oasis, 2,137,000 (Gross site Medium Residential/ Development by phase 35.5%
Estrada de Seac Pai Van, area approximately H Af Commercial (Anticipated completion
Coloane, Macau 302,000 sq. ft.) T/ m% date: 2018 to 2021 in
MPIREIR A B SRR (MR phases)
S UEFF Z Lote 2 E Lote 12 1R %1302,000 £ 5 R) ER PR
(FEEITITHE :
—ZE-N\FE
B HER)
No. 23 Po Shan Road, Mid-levels, 80,000 (Gross site Long Residential Foundation works in 40%
Hong Kong area approximately = EE progress (Anticipated
EREFILEME 23 57 15,000 sq. ft.) completion date: 2020)
(Hb R mia W ETIREITH
#915,000F771R) (FEHETHE :
—T_FF)
Nos. 41, 43 and 45 30,000 (Cross site Long Residential/ Demolition completed 100%
Pau Chung Street, area approximately £H Commercial (Anticipated
To Kwa Wan, Kowloon, 3,532 sq. ft.) T/ m¥ completion date: 2020)
Hong Kong (A iE BB TR
FENERLIVERLE #3,532 FAR) (FEEIETHE :
41~ 43455 —TTF)
Townsend House, 26,531 Freehold Commercial Application for 90.1%
5 Greycoat Place, KA [HES redevelopment
London, United Kingdom BHEERE
B Greycoat Place 5 5%
Townsend House
1444 Alberni Street, Proposed: Freehold Residential/ Application for re-zoning 28%
711 Broughton Street and o KA Commercial ~ HFEH DR
740 Nicola Street, 648,000 (Gross site FE %
Vancouver, BC, Canada area approximately
MEREB S mt R IR 43,230 sq. ft.)
Alberni Street 14445 * Broughton (4B AR TR
Street 711 5% % Nicola Street 740 5% #943,230 FH5R)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED @ EEMESEBARAR



DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, the following expressions have the following meanings unless otherwise specified:

ERFEHA - BXESEAEN > THRAREERNTRE

Annual General Meeting

BRBFRE

Board
BExg

Bye-laws
NCIEGEL
CAD
ik
CG Code

EREATA

Company
ZAYNC]

Director(s)

5%

Group
A%E

HK$
B

Hong Kong
BB

Listing Rules

EmABA

Macau
JELPY

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at 15/F., Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 7th September, 2018 at 10:30 a.m.
ARBEANR-ZZF-N\FALALE(EHR) LF TR =ZTOREFTEEFHEFE250
SREREES SBRTZRRAFAE

the board of Directors

Exg

the bye-laws of the Company as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time
to time

RRF ZREAR (ETEHERT - R BITIER)

Canadian dollars, the lawful currency of Canada

MEXEEEEINE

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules
LR AR SR+ BB REETAD RAEEEBRE)

ITC Properties Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
the Shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 199)
EHEBEREERAR  —RARBREEMANILZERETAR - ERONRERAER
£ (AR AEE 2 199)

the director(s) of the Company
ARRIES

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZAN/NCIPYE L) 2 PNC]

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEREEER B

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEB TR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B X FTRE 5 E AR A (EAEHER] ~ RS ITIER)

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI B TR

Annual Report 3§ @ 2017-2018



DEFINITIONS

Model Code
EE ]

MOP
RPTHE

PRC
F

RMB
AR

SFO

B R EAE A
Share(s)

& 7

Share Option Scheme
BB EETE
Shareholder(s)

A&z

Stock Exchange
B2 PRy

UsS$
ETT

Year

REE

%

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETRRIM ST B EM BT AESETESFXHNRESTE])

Macau Patacas the lawful currency of Macau

BEVEE B RPTHE

the People’s Republic of China
hEARLME

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEIAEEEARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FEEDIE 571 EE 7 R AE GG (BTRIER] MR SITER)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the Company
ARBDETRAREREELSE0.01 T2 EBRBN

the existing share option scheme of the Company adopted at its annual general meeting
held on 17th August, 2012
ARBHEER-FT——F\A+LABTZRRAFRE LRM 2R EBRET S

holder(s) of the Share(s)
fEnFE A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARSMABRIA]

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

KBAEEHET

the financial year ended 31st March, 2018
BHE_Z-N\F=ZRA=+—HILIHBFE

per cent.

B
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Photos and drawings in this annual report have been enhanced by computer graphics. All information is for reference or identification only.
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ITC = = % & 2 B & R & 9
ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED

30/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
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